Bank

G ROWTH. Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
(Scheduled Bank)
SAFETY.

#» Saraswat
PROGRESS. o

www.saraswatbank.com | @ ﬁ Q O @



7

£ : P\
VY Two years in a row, selected g
amongst the World's Best Banks
by Forbes Survey

Forbes

BEST BANKS |

Based on a customer-centric methodology,
Forbes recognizes

Saraswat Bank

as one of

The World's Best Banks 2021

Based on over 43,000 consumer surveys representing 28 different countries on
overall recommendation, satisfaction, and bank ratings in five different criteria:
Trust, Terms & Conditions, Customer Services, Digital Services, and Financial Advice.
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PROGRESS.

GROWTH. SAFETY.

This year’s Cover Page is dedicated to the
triumvirate of Progress, Growth and Safety
- qualities that every financial institution
should embody and exemplify.

Your Bank has always taken special and
consistent efforts to overcome trials and
tough situations. The Covid-19 pandemic
has had a grave, wide-ranging impact
worldwide. Global markets shuddered

and crashed, foreshadowing months of
economic pummeling. As shutdowns
became the norm, life as we knew it
changed completely. Just as we thought we
had turned a corner, the 2" Covid-19 wave
is upon us, more aggressive and virulent
than before, and has triggered a threat of
renewed economic downturn with attendant
lockdown restrictions.

Amidst this challenging scenario, your Bank
has consolidated all its efforts to remain
steady and sturdy. Progress, Growth and
Safety have been the Bank’s major focus
areas during this period.

Starting out as a humble co-operative

credit society in 1918, the Bank is today the
largest co-operative bank in the country. A
few figures will help put its progress into
perspective. At the turn of the century, the
Bank’s Total Business (on 31t March 2001)
was ¥ 4623.18 crore with a Net Profit of

3 23.42 crore. The business grew nearly ten-
fold by the year 2014 — on 31t March 2014,

the Bank’s Total Business had reached

¥ 39409.56 crore with a Net Profit of

% 147.09 crore. Saraswat Bank was the

first bank in the co-operative sector to cross
a Total Business of ¥ 50,000 crore in

March 2016.

In 2016, due to demonetization, the informal
sector was badly affected and 2017 saw
unevenness in implementation of the GST
bill. This, followed by the outbreak of Covid
in 2019, has impacted the performance of
the banking sector in general. In spite of this,
by maintaining adequate safety measures,
the Bank was able to move to ¥ 67,042.31
crore in 2021.

Even at the height of the pandemic, your
Bank has delivered commendable growth
results, keeping all banking parameters
intact, in fact with some even improved
over the last year. For FY 2020-21, the
Bank’s Net Profit is ¥ 270.24 crore. While
most banks are waging war with NPAs,

our position is confidence boosting! Our
Net NPAs are at a low level of 1.04%. Thus,
the Bank has posted excellent business
figures, with strong key financial parameters.
Initiatives such as revamp of the Retail
Banking Department of the Bank;
tailor-made schemes for small businesses
and start-ups; greater emphasis on financial
inclusion and Self Help Groups thereby
ensuring economic upliftment of women;
concentration on Product Development,
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Business Development and Customer
Engagement; improvisation in Tab Banking;
Migration to new Core Banking Solutions
platform, have all yielded fruit.

As the pandemic has shown, technology
helped in keeping organizations up and
running. From technological adoptions

to new age digital products, we have
constantly pushed the envelope. Your
Bank has proactively embraced best-
in-class technology and industry-best
practices. It has matched strides with
India’s digital revolution through a varied
range of paperless, user-friendly, tech-
enabled initiatives. Also, during the
pandemic, fraudsters adopted different
methods to attack users’ systems/devices.
Your Bank has a dedicated Information
Security Department, headed by the Chief
Information Security Officer (CISO), to
monitor overall Information and Cyber
Security for the Bank. Additionally, in an
effort to help customers prevent fraud and
stay safe and vigilant, the Bank recently
came out with an educative safety video in
public interest, thereby ensuring Progress
and Growth with Safety.

The other aspect of safety is the financial
health related safety of your Bank. We
have made more than adequate provisions
to ring-fence ourselves from further
slippages, especially in the context of the

economic uncertainty which has seen many
businesses stressed even today. With these

provisions, the Bank can safeguard itself to
withstand any such onslaught so that

its financial performance remains solid
and intact.

Over the 100 plus years of our existence,

so much has changed and there has been
much growth and development - far beyond
what our Founders could have envisaged!
Through our focus on professionalism,
excellence and innovation, we shall continue
to grow and fulfil the evolving needs

and expectations of our customers with
unwavering commitment and resolve.

To PROGRESS, GROWTH & SAFETY, we
rededicate ourselves.

I Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 3
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Padmashri M. M. Karnik
Director

Shri H. M. Rathi
B.Com.
Director

>

Shri N. G. Pai
B.E. (Electrical)
Director

Shri K. D. Umrootkar
B.Com. (Hons.), L.L.B., FLL.LB.F,,
M.C.1.PD. (UK).
Director

Shri Gautam E. Thakur Shri S. K. Sakhalkar
B.E. (Civil), DFM M.Com., PGD (IR), PGD (Comp. Sc.)
Chairman Vice Chairman

Shri S. N. Sawaikar Shri K. V. Rangnekar
M.Com., D.M.A,, C.A.l1.B. M.A.

Director Director

Shri A. A. Pandit
B.Com., F.C.A,D.B.F.
Director
(Till 24 December, 2020)

Shri S. V. Saudagar Dr. (Mrs.) A. P. Samant
B.Com., F.C.A,, D.I.S.A. M.B.B.S.
Director Director

Shri S. S. Shirodkar
Dip. (Indl. Electronics), PD.M.S.E.
Director

Shri A. G. Ambeskar Shri S. M. Lotlikar Shri S. S. Bhandare

B.A., C.A.LILB. B.Sc. (Chemistry) M.A. (Economics), L.L.B., D.B.M.
Director Director Director

Shri S. K. Banerji
B.Sc. (Hons.), D.B.M.,
L.L.M,, FLLB.F. Administrative Management
Director Director

(From 23 April, 2021)

Shri K. G. Masurkar
M.Sc. (Biochemistry), Diploma in

Mrs. Smita Sandhane
B.Com., C.A.LL.B,, FLL.B.F.
Managing Director
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Senior Management

Shri L. R. Samant Shri A. M. Khot
Jt. Managing Director Dy. Managing Director
Wholesale Banking Dept.

B
Shri A. S. Jain Shri B. L. Khose
CGM & Nodal Officer CGM

Legal & Services Dept.

Registered Office & Corporate Center :
Ekanath Thakur Bhavan,

953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg,

Prabhadevi, Mumbai 400 025.

Phone No.: (022) 6600 5555

Email : corporatecenter@saraswatbank.com
Website : www.saraswatbank.com

Date of Establishment :
14" September, 1918

No. and Date of RBI Licence :
ACD-MH-220-P dated 27-08-1980

Area of Operation :
ALL INDIA

Audit Classification :
‘A’ (Since 1933, i.e. the year in which we were
registered as a Bank)

Wholesale Banking Dept.

Mrs. P. S. Rege Mrs. P. R. Varghese
CGM CGM
HRD Dept. & SLC

Shri A. V. Prabhu Mrs. A. A. Patil
CGM CGM
Retail Banking Dept. Treasury Dept.

Statutory Auditors
M/s. G. D. Apte & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Bankers

Axis Bank

Bank of India

HDFC Bank Ltd.

Canara Bank

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.
Standard Chartered Bank Ltd.
ICICI Bank Ltd.

IDBI Bank Ltd.

Legal & Tax Advisors
Shri K. M. Naik
B.A., LL.B.

M/s. Little and Company

Ernst & Young LLP
PricewaterhouseCoopers Pvt. Ltd.
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Dear Shareholders,

| am glad to present to you the Annual Report for

the Financial Year 2020-21. It has indeed been an
unprecedented year in itself, a year which pushed the
world to its edge. It has been a year of lockdowns and
tremendous uncertainty; yet it has also been a year of
hope and resilience — a year which tested our abilities
and brought out the best in us. Your Bank stood up

to this challenge and ensured that uninterrupted
banking services were provided to customers during
this period while continuing on its growth path with
single-minded resolve.

Despite all the challenges, the business of your
Bank has increased from ¥ 63,422.13 crore as

on 31st March, 2020 to % 67,042.31 crore as on

31t March, 2021. Deposits increased from

¥ 38,083.49 crore as on 315t March, 2020 to

% 40,800.61 crore as on 31t March, 2021. Advances
increased from ¥ 25,338.64 crore as on 31t March,
2020 t0 ¥ 26,241.70 crore as on 315t March 2021.

Considering the severity of the economic slowdown
and the uncertainties, the overall business growth
has been noteworthy. While attaining this growth,
the Bank has also kept a firm check on the quality

of the Balance Sheet. The key financial parameters
like Capital Adequacy Ratio, NPA Ratio, Provision
Coverage Ratio, etc. have been maintained at healthy
levels.

At the same time, we have been taking several
initiatives which have been embedded in the larger
and consistent organizational plan of the Bank.
Over the past several years, we have had a focused

CHAIRMAN'S INSIGHT

‘ ‘It has been a year of lockdowns and
tremendous uncertainty; yet it has also
been a year of hope and resilience — a year
which tested our abilities and brought out
the bestin us. y3

approach on increasing the retail lending of the Bank.
Today, the Retail - Wholesale Ratio is 52% which

was around 36% just 3 years ago. The thrust on
retail lending ensured that we could spread the risk
across several products and a large number of small
borrowers and thus keep a check on non-performing
assets. The retail clients to whom we have lent
commercial advances of less than ¥ 10 crore are
substantial in number. As these retail clients grow

in their respective businesses, their requirements

of commensurate bank funding will also increase.
Today’s retail banking client is tomorrow’s wholesale
banking client. With increase in ticket size of the
advances granted to such customers, we slowly plan
to handhold these retail customers as they undergo
their transition to the wholesale banking segment.
The growth potential in this segment is huge.
Besides, with the prior experience of dealing with
these clients, it may be a win-win situation both from
the client’s as well as the Bank’s perspective.

In order to lay thrust on the marketing function,

your Bank is realigning its organizational structure,
thereby segregating branches as marketing verticals
and back offices as operational verticals. Thus, an
enabling operational structure is being put in place
to ensure a focussed approach towards various
banking activities, in general & sales and business
development, in particular.

Further, the marketing team has been strengthened
by creating a dedicated team of young and
enthusiastic Business Development Officers (BDOs).
The BDO Team has been catering exclusively to the
sales and retail business development function of the

6 Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 I
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Bank and has garnered around ¥ 900 crore during
the year, which is about 20% of retail advances. With
the successful initial results of the BDO Team, we are
now planning to strengthen this team further. We are
confident that this team will pave the way for future
growth of your Bank as the economy slowly starts
picking up. We are creating a new Marketing Team
for Wholesale Banking on similar lines.

At the Board and the Management level also, we
endeavour to constantly engage in a dialogue with
the customers, to get a sense of the needs and
requirements of our clients. During our interactions,
we noticed that sometimes there is a time lag
between customers approaching a bank for a loan
and the final sanction/disbursement of the loan.

We do have a mechanism in place to reduce the
Turn - Around - Time (TAT). However, we want to
ensure that even this little time lag does not cause
inconvenience to our customers (especially in cases
of retail loans like housing or educational loans for
admission to foreign universities). We are therefore
coming up with a scheme of pre-sanction for such
loans in which a sanction letter will be extended to a
customer upfront, subject to subsequent fulfilment
of the documentation requirements. This will provide
solace to such retail customers and free them from
unnecessary anxieties at such times.

To cater to the needs of the new age customers,

we continue to increase the bouquet of our digital
product offerings. We have recently received the
prestigious Winner's Award for ‘The Best Technology
Bank’, ‘The Best IT Risk and Cyber Security Initiatives’
and Runner-Up Award for ‘The Best Digital Financial
Inclusion’ in the Co-operative Banks’ category from
the Indian Banks’ Association (IBA). Such recognition
inspires us to keep improvising and challenging

our boundaries. We have laid specific emphasis on
penetration of digital products which has culminated
in increase in digital transactions over the past few
years.

We have successfully implemented new Core
Banking Solutions (CBS) recently. The existing CBS
was implemented when your Bank had a business
level of ¥ 5,000 crore. The CBS helped us scale up
our operations and has supported us as we touched
% 67,000 crore of business. As a proactive measure
however, we initiated a shift to Finacle, the CBS
offered by M/s. EdgeVerve Systems Ltd., a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Infosys Ltd. Finacle is presently
being used by several large PSU banks as well as
private sector banks and we are confident that the

inherent functionalities and capabilities of Finacle
will help support your Bank’s growing business in
the coming years. The software upgradation is aptly
supported by strengthening of the cyber security
controls as well as the risk management and internal
audit systems of the Bank.

All these and many such measures are slowly being
unfolded by your Bank and | am confident that they
will be instrumental in shaping the future of the Bank.

The journey till now has been possible only because
of the relentless support and co-operation of all our
respected shareholders, depositors, customers and
stake holders. The unrelenting support of Depositors,
Customers and Stakeholders is the sole reason for
the phenomenal growth of our Bank, which in turn
accorded us the ‘numero-uno’ position in the co-
operative segment.

Your Bank has strongly emerged as a customer-
centric and customer-friendly organization, delivering
the best services, a fact which is once again
recognized by Forbes. | am delighted to inform you
all that your Bank is once again in the Forbes list of
World’s Best Banks for the year 2021 i.e. two years in
arow. This is indeed a proud moment for the entire
Saraswat Bank Team.

With our sustained efforts of operational excellence
on one hand and undertaking organizational
transformation on the other, we are confident of
taking Saraswat Bank to the pinnacle of success. We
thank each and every one of you for your support and
encouragement as we continue to steer your Bank to
new heights of glory.

Best Regards,

M
Gautam E. Thakur

‘ ‘The relentless support and
co-operation of all our shareholders,
depositors, customers and stake holders
is the sole reason for the phenomenal
growth of our Bank, which in turn accorded
us the ‘numero-uno’ position in the
co-operative segment. 79
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Deposits (% in crore)

35056.66
33737.42 ‘
FY17 FY18

Total Business (3 in crore)

58525.77
55273.49 I
FY17 FY18

Advances (% in crore)

40800.61
25797.49
38083.49
23460.11
21536.07
FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY19
Retail Assets (Z in crore)
67042.31
63422.13
9621.17
7602.36
5709.00
FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY19

26241.70
25338.64

FY20 FY21

11993.07
10856.94

FY20 FY21
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Working Funds (% in crore) Own Funds (% in crore)
47669.83 3953.70
44700.57 2502.04
4291512
3237.38
40520.30
38442.22 2869.03
2684.93 i
FY17 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY21
Gross Profit (% in crore) Net Profit (% in crore)
270.24
651.69
630.27 250.79
240.68
577.50 234.05
528.51 I i
FY17 FY1 8 P19 FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21
Business per Employee (% in crore) Net NPA (in %)
1.82 1.80
15.80
1.56
14.94
14.41
14.24
- i i
FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21
CRAR (in %) CASA Deposits (X in crore)
12497.76
14.75
14.26
14.00 10793.88 10723.94
10386.94
13.60
13.16 9449.12 a
FY17 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY17 FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21
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MOMENTS
WE TAKE

PRIDE IN

FRONTIERS IN CO-OPERATIVE BANKING AWARDS-2020

Saraswat Bank won the Best Digital Bank Award (for the second year in a row) and
Best ePayments Initiative Award at the Frontiers in Co-operative Banking Awards
2020.

3 ST

2 {
BANKING N
FRONTIERS

THIS CERTIFICATE IS PROUDLY AWARDED TO

Sanaswat Co-Operative Bank LI,

For : Best Digital Bank, Best ePayments Initiative
In Large UCB category, at the FCBA 2020 Awards function held online,
on the 23rd January 2021.

fosl

BABU NAIR MANOJ AGRAWAL
P 3 . Banking Frontiers
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@ IBA BEST TECHNOLOGY BANK AWARD 2021

The IBA Technology Awards recognize
and reward individuals, professionals
and banks that have recorded
noteworthy technology and business
benefits. Saraswat Bank won the IBA
Best Technology Bank Award for the
year 2021 for the 5" time in a row!
There are more feathers in our cap now:
Winner (Best IT Risk and Cyber Security
Initiatives) & Runner-Up (Best Digital
Financial Inclusion Initiatives)

FORBES 2021 GLOBAL SURVEY ] Fﬂrmﬁ
WORLD'S

Forbes in partnership with market ERELLE
research firm Statista released the ‘
list of World’s Best Banks basis their
market survey on customer service
and satisfaction. Saraswat Bank is : Sy
recognized as one of the World’s Best T e
Banks by Forbes—Statista for the Garmm i
second year in a row.

as one of

The World’s Best Banks 2021

Based on over 43,000 consumer surveys representing 28 different countries on
overall recommendation, satisfaction, and bank ratings in five different criteria:
Trust, Terms & Conditions, Customer Services, Digital Services, and Financial Advice.

fie iy

Douglas A. Lopenzina Manuel Mérbach
Vice President at Forbes Media LLC CEO Statista Inc.

Forbes statista¥%
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE: 103RD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 103 Annual General Meeting of the Bank will be held on Thursday, 30" September,
2021 at 4.00 p.m. at Pracharya B. N. Vaidya Sabhagruha, 2" floor, Raja Shivaji Vidya Sankul, Patkar Guruji Chowk,
Hindu Colony, Dadar (East), Mumbai — 400 014 to transact the following business concerning the Bank:-

AGENDA

1. To consider and approve the Annual Accounts which consist of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report
of the Statutory Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended 315t March,
2021.

2. To declare dividend on Perpetual Non Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) as recommended by the Board
of Directors for the year ended 315t March, 2020.

3. To appropriate Net Profit and declare Dividend on Equity Shares and Dividend on Perpetual Non Cumulative
Preference Shares (PNCPS) as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended 31t March, 2021.
To approve amendments to Bank’s Bye-law Nos. 5(e)(vii).

5. To appoint Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2021-22 and to authorize the Board of Directors to fix
their remuneration. The Board of Directors recommends M/s Mukund M Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants,
2" floor, Kapur House, Paranjape B Scheme, Road No.1, Vile Parle (East), Mumbai — 400057 & M/s M. P. Chitale

& Co. Chartered Accountants, Hamam House, 1¢t Floor, Ambalal Doshi Marg, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001, for
appointment as Statutory Auditors.

6. To grant Leave of Absence to the members of the Bank who have not attended this 103 Annual General
Meeting.
7. To elect Board of Directors for the term 2021-2026: Returning Officer will preside over the General Body for
declaration of the election results.
By Order of the Board of Directors.

sd/-
Smita Sandhane
Managing Director

Mumbai, 13™ August, 2021

Note:

The Annual Report of the Bank consisting of the Report of the Board of Directors, the Report of the Statutory
Auditors, the Balance Sheet and the Profit & Loss Account for the year ended 315t March, 2021 is annexed with
this Notice.

The detailed notice of Election will be issued by Returning Officer, Shri Jayant D. Patil.

If there is no quorum for the Meeting at the appointed time, in terms of Bye-law No. 48, the Meeting shall stand
adjourned to 5.00 p.m. on the same day and the Agenda of the Meeting shall be transacted at the same venue
irrespective of the Rule of Quorum.
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+ Attendance at the Annual General Meeting will be subject to COVID-19 guidelines prevalent on the day of the
AGM in the State of Maharashtra.

«  Dividend, when declared, will be paid on or after 15" October, 2021 to those shareholders whose shares are fully
paid as on 31t March, 2021 and whose names are on the record of the Bank as on 27™ August, 2021.

+ If any member desires to have information in connection with the Accounts, he/she is requested to address
a letter to the Managing Director of the Bank, to reach her office at Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Ekanath
Thakur Bhavan, Plot No. 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400 025, not later than
25" September, 2021, so that the required information may be made available at the Annual General Meeting.

+  Members are requested to bring valid photo identity proof at the time of attending Annual General Meeting for
security purpose.

TO SERVE YOU BETTER:

1. Shareholders are requested to intimate change in address, if any, to the Share Department along with a copy
of proof of new residence at Madhushree, 5" Floor, Plot No. 85, District Business Centre, Sector 17, Vashi, Navi
Mumbai — 400 703 Phone No.: (022) 27773800/01/02 or by e-mail to shareholders @saraswatbank.com for
updating the Bank’s records.

2. Shareholders are requested to avail of nomination facility by submitting prescribed Nomination Form, as
required under Section 36 of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002 and Bye-law No. 19 of the Bank.

3. Shareholders having Current / Savings Bank / Cash Credit accounts with the Bank and desirous of crediting
their dividends to their accounts are once again requested to record their standing instructions with the Share
Department.

4. The Annual Report is available on the Bank’s website www.saraswatbank.com. Members, desirous of
having a printed copy, are requested to collect the same from the nearest branch/Zonal Office or from
the Registered Office of the Bank.

Notice is hereby given that Dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2018 (97* Dividend) if not drawn
on or before 30" October, 2021, will be forfeited by the Bank and credited to Reserve Fund in terms of
Bye-law No. 68A.

I Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 13



¢ Saraswat
Bank PROGRESS. GROWTH. SAFETY.

Detailed Notice of Election Programme

To
All the members of Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.,

DETAILED NOTICE OF ELECTION PROGRAMME

Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the General Body for declaration of results of Election (2021-2026) to the
Board of Directors of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Mumbai, having its Registered Office at Ekanath Thakur
Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai — 400 025 to be held on Thursday, 30.09.2021 at 4.00
p.m. at Pracharya B.N. Vaidya Sabhagruha, 2" Floor, Raja Shivaji Vidya Sankul, Patkar Guruji Chowk, Hindu Colony,
Dadar East, Mumbai 400 014.

No: Saraswat Bank-ELN-2 of 2021 Mumbai dated 24" August 2021.

In exercise of the powers conferred by Section 45 of the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, read with
Rule 19(1) of the Rules made thereunder, |, Jayant D. Patil, Returning Officer, appointed to conduct the Election
of the Board of Directors of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd., Mumbai having its Registered Office at Ekanath
Thakur Bhavan, 953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400025, hereby notify that the Annual
General Meeting of the General Body of the said Bank has been convened on Thursday, 30.09.2021 at 4.00 p.m. at
Pracharya B.N. Vaidya Sabhagruha, 2" Floor, Raja Shivaji Vidya Sankul, Patkar Guruji Chowk, Hindu Colony, Dadar
East, Mumbai 400 014 to declare the results of Election scheduled to be held on 24t September 2021 (for the period
2021-2026) to 16 (sixteen) seats of the Directors on the Board.

1) CONSTITUENCIES NO OF SEATS ON THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
i) Candidates from amongst the Members of the Society residing in and/or carrying on 10 seats

business and/or engaged in gainful occupation within limits of Mumbai Metropolitan
Regional Development Authority

[Bye-law No 55(1)]

ii) Candidates from amongst the Members of the Society residing in areas outside the 04 seats
limit of Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development Authority but within the State of
Maharashtra.
[Bye-law No 55(2)]

iii) Candidates from amongst the Members of the Society residing in State or States other 02 seats

than the State of Maharashtra or Union Territories in the Union of India where the Bank
has or may have its Branches.

[Bye-law No 55 (3)]
Total No of candidates to be elected 16 seats

(Total sixteen seats)

Note

Under Bye-law No 54, the Board shall consist of sixteen members. The composition of the Board is given in the Bye-
law and the same is being reproduced below for the information of all the members.

Bye-law No 54

The affairs of the Society shall be managed by the Board of Directors consisting of not less than 16 members and
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not more than 19 members in addition to the Managing Director, who shall be an Ex-Officio Member of the Board
provided that (i) at least two Directors of the Board shall, at all times, have suitable banking experience (at middle /
senior management level) or relevant professional qualifications, i.e., a Chartered Accountant with bank accounting

/ auditing experience and (ii) at least one Director of the Board shall be a woman member of the Society, provided
further that at every periodic elections of the Board of Directors, 16 members of the Board shall be elected in the
manner hereinafter provided in Bye-Law No 55 of the Society and in case none or one of such elected member of the
Board possesses the requisite qualifications of suitable banking experience (at middle / senior management level)
or relevant professional qualifications, i.e., a Chartered Accountant with Bank accounting / auditing experience, the
elected members of the Board shall co-opt two persons or one person respectively having an aforesaid qualification
from amongst the other members of the Society who are not disqualified from being member of the Board under
the provisions of the Act, Rules or Bye-laws of the Society and provided further that in case none of the members of
the Board including the co-opted members of the Board is a woman member of the Society, the Board shall co-opt
one woman member from amongst the other members of the Society who are not disqualified from being member
of the Board under the provisions of the Act, Rules or Bye-laws. Such co-opted member/members including the
woman member shall have the same rights, duties and tenure as that of the elected members of the Board.

2) The list of members eligible to vote as on 24-08-2021 prepared by the Bank and finalized by the Returning
Officer will be published by the Bank on 01-09-2021 on the Notice Board of Regd Office of the Bank and will also

be available at all the Branches of the Bank.

3) The Election Programme is as under:

SR. EVENT DATE & TIME VENUE REMARKS
NO.
1 Obtaining of 31-08-2021 (Tuesday) to Office  of Returning The Nomination Forms can be

Nomination Forms

07-09-2021 (Tuesday)

Officer or from Zonal

obtained free of charge by any

Between 11.00 a.m. Offices/Branches of the member by submitting written
and 4.00 p.m. (on every Bank outside MMRDA application addressed to the

working day) areas as specified in Returning Officer.

Annexure |

2 Filing of 31-08-2021 (Tuesday) to Office of Returning The Nomination Form  shall
Nominations 07-09-2021 (Tuesday) Officer. be presented in person or
Between 11.00 a.m. sent by Registered Post with
and 4.00 p.m. (on every acknowledgement due by the

working day)

candidate himself to the Returning
Officer or any other Officer authorized
by him in this behalf. Nominations
sent by Registered Post with
acknowledgement due should reach
latest by 4.00 p.m.on 07-09-2021.

3. Publication of list
of nominations
received

On 07-09-2021 (Tuesday)
at 5.00 p.m.

Office of the Returning
Officer.

4, Scrutiny of
nominations

On 08-09-2021
(Wednesday) from

12.00 noon onwards till
completion of the scrutiny.

Office of the Returning
Officer

5. Publication
of list of Valid
Nominations.

On 08-09-2021
(Wednesday) immediately
after the scrutiny.

Office of the Returning
Officer.
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SR. EVENT
NO.

DATE & TIME

VENUE

REMARKS

6. Withdrawal of
valid nominations

From 09-09-2021
(Thursday) to 15-09-2021
(Wednesday) between
11.00 a.m. to 4.00 p.m.
(on every working day)

Office of the Returning
Officer.

The Nomination can be withdrawn by
the candidate by written application.
Candidature may be withdrawn
by Notice signed by the candidate
and delivered in person or by the
person duly authorized by him at
any time after the presentation of
the nomination papers to the Office
of Returning Officer. The Notice of
withdrawal shall be irrevocable.

7. Publication of final
list of contesting
candidates

On 15-09-2021
(Wednesday) at 5.00 p.m.

Office of the Returning
Officer.

8. Polling if required

On 24-09-2021 (Friday)
from 8.00 a.m. to 5.00
p.m.

Respective Polling
Centers.

Polling Stations are set up at places
as specified in Annexure Il

9. Counting

On 26-09-2021 (Sunday)
from 10.00 a.m. till the
completion

Saraswat Co-operative
Bank Ltd.

2" floor, Madhushree,

Plot No. 85,

Sector 17, Vashi,

Navi Mumbai-400703.

10. Declaration of
Result of Election
by Returning
Officer

At 5.00 p.m. on 30-09-
2021 (Thursday) in Annual
General Meeting

Pracharya B N Vaidya
Sabhagruha, Hindu
Colony, Dadar (East),
Mumbai 400 014

After AGM a meeting of the newly constituted Board will be held on 30-09-2021 (Thursday) to elect the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman. Separate notice will be issued to elected Directors.

NOTES:

a) All lists and notices shall be published on the Notice Board of the Office of the Returning Officer.

b)

d)

All the members are requested to produce Polling Notices sent to them indicating their M.R. Number and
Polling Centre, at the Polling Centre with any photo identity card issued by the Chief Election Commissioner
of India or PAN Card or Aadhaar Card or Driving License or Passport which can prove their identity.

The detailed Notice of Election Programme is being sent to every member by post and copies thereof are
being published on the Notice Boards of the Bank’s Regd. Office, Zonal Offices and all the Branches of the
Bank. Notice (in brief) of Election has also been published in leading dailies at various Regions where the
Bank has its Branches.

A Company, Partnership firm or any other Body Corporate constituted under any law, which is a Shareholder
of the Bank, may appoint any of its Directors/Partners/Officers to vote on its behalf. The resolution/letter
of such appointment must be produced by the authorized person intending to vote on behalf of such
Company/any other body Corporate/firm alongwith Polling Notice and identification of the person.
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e) All eligible members of the Bank are entitled to vote for election of candidates in each constituency as

under:
Constituency (mentioned at 1 above) No of Seats
i) 10 seats
ii) 04 seats
iii) 02 seats

Any vote more than specified herein shall invalidate the entire ballot paper.

f)  After the close of the polling, the Ballot boxes used for polling shall be sealed at respective Polling Centres
and the same shall be brought to the Returning Officer at the place of counting at Staff Learning Centre,
2" Floor, Madhushree, Sector 17, Vashi, Navi Mumbai 400 703.

g) Qualifications for members on the Board: As per Bye-law No 55 it is stated as under:
I) The candidate shall hold at least 50 fully paid shares on the date of nomination.
II) A member who is indebted to the Bank as a borrower shall not be eligible for Election on the Board.

h) Under Bye law 55 A, candidates contesting for directorship should have been member for a minimum
period of twelve months immediately preceding the date of such election or appointment. The contesting
candidate should have an operative savings/current/term deposit account of ¥ 50,000/- in the bank for a
minimum period of twelve months continuously prior to the date of nomination and will continue till he/she
remains as a Director of the Board.

i) Under Bye law 55 B, a candidate who wishes to contest the election to the Board of Directors of the Bank
is required to deposit ¥ 25,000/- as Security Deposit at the time of filing the nomination. Provided that if a
candidate withdraws his nomination or if his nomination is rejected, the deposit will be refunded within 15
days of his withdrawal/rejection. The deposit shall be forfeited, if at an election where a poll has been taken,
the candidate is not elected and the number of valid votes polled by him does not exceed one-tenth of the
total number of valid votes polled by all the candidates or, in the case of election of more than one member
at the election one-tenth of the number of valid votes, so polled divided by the number of members to be
elected. In other cases, Security Deposit will be returned.

j) Disqualifications: As per provisions of the Multi-State Co-op. Societies Act, 2002 and Rules framed
thereunder.

k) The Notice Board of the Office of the Returning Officer will be kept near the Reception on the ground floor
of the Registered Office.

[) COVID appropriate SOP guidelines will be applicable.

(Jayant D. Patil)

Returning Officer
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
Place: Mumbai &
Date: 24" August, 2021 District Deputy Registrar Mumbai (1) City
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PLACES WHERE NOMINATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE

ANNEXURE-I

SR. OFFICE / BRANCH SR. OFFICE / BRANCH
NO NO
1 Office of the Returning Officer 11 Kudal Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op.Bank Ltd
Ekanath Thakur Bhavan, Pratham Apartment, Opp. Kudal High School,
953, Appasaheb Marathe Marg, Kudal Vengurla Road, Kudal 416520,
Prabhadevi, Mumbai - 400 025 Dist Sindhudurga
2 Alibaug Branch 12 Malvan Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
Hotel Meera Madhav, Opposite S.T. Stand, Madhu Sindhu, Somwar Peth,
Alibaug — 402201 Taluka Malvan, Dist. Sindhudurga
3 Mahad Branch 13 Ratnagiri Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
Mahad Trade Centre, 15t Floor, Opp Local Post Office, Benjamin Enclave, 15t floor, Opp. Central Bus Stand,
M. C. Road, Near Shivaji Chowk, Mahad - 403 201. Ratnagiri-Kolhapur Highway, Ratnagiri — 415612
4 MCCH Society Branch, Panvel 14 Rajapur Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.
Hare Madhav Niwas, Plot No. 48, Rajapur Shikshan Prasarak Mandal,
M.C.C.H. Society, Panvel, Municipal House, 129, Mahotsav Bhavan, Main Road,
Navi Mumbai 410 206. Rajapur, Dist. Ratnagiri 416702
5 Pen Branch 15 Vengurla Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.
Shop No. 53 - 55 & 62 - 64, Pen Municipal Saraswat Bank Building, Bar.
Corporation Bldg., Chinchpada, Next to Pen ST Balasaheb Khardekar Road,
Depot., Pen, Dist. Raigad 402107 Vengurla, Dist. Sindhudurga — 416516
6 Zonal Office IV, 16 Zonal Office VI,
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd.
2" Floor, 8/3, Erandvana, 'Madhu Shilp’ Plot No 6, C/2, Town Centre,
Karve Road, Pune - 411 004 Near CIDCO Bus Stand, CIDCO, Aurangabad, - 431 003
7 Budhwar Peth Branch, Solapur 17 Gandhibaug Branch,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.,
“Rathi Tower”, Ground Floor, Plot No. 74/B, Ground Floor, Vidhya Bhavan,
Plot No. | + 23 B, Budhwar Peth, Near Seva, Sadan Square, Central Avenue,
Near Nila Nagar, Solapur - 413 002. Nagpur — 440018
8 Chiplun Branch, 18 Tilak Road Branch, Akola
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd., Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd
Janarganga, Opp. Central S T Stand, Ground floor, Shiv-Daya Complex,
Burum Tali, Chiplun, Dist — Ratnagiri - 415605 Near Uday Theatre, Tilak Road, Akola — 444 001.
9 Devgad Branch 19 Zonal Office VII,
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd.
2268, Patankar Complex, College Road Corner, Kuber, 480/5, Gole Colony,
Tal. Devgad, Dist. Sindhudurg 416 613. Nashik - 422 002.
10 Kankavli Rameshwar Plaza Branch 20 Jalgaon Branch
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
Rameshwar Plaza Building, M.K.G. Marg, Mangal Jeevan Building, Gr. Floor,
Near Prant Office, Kankavli 416602 27, Gandhi Nagar, Jilha Peth,
Dist. Sindhudurg Near S. T. Stand, Jalgaon - 425 001
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SR. OFFICE / BRANCH SR. OFFICE / BRANCH
NO NO
21 Savedi Road, Ahmednagar 32 Zonal Office IX
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
Ground Floor, 176/ 3A, Plot No. 46/8, Savedi Road, Sogo Properties, Site No.47, 100 Ft Road,
Ahmednagar, - 414 001 4™ Block, Ward No. 68, Koramangala,
Bangalore - 560 034.
22 Zonal Office VIII, 33 Belgaum Branch,
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
C Ward, 2127, Bhanusingi Road, 3475, Samadevi Complex, Samadevi Galli,
Kolhapur - 416 002 Belgaum - 590 002
23 Mahavirnagar Branch, 34 Davangere Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
102A, Mahavir Nagar, 269 / 1, Near Mallikarjuna Motor and Scooter Mart,
Opp Jain Mandir Vakharbhag, Jayadeva Circle Road,Davangere,
Sangli 416416. Karnataka — 577 002.
24 Karad Branch 35 Dharwad Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
109, Budhwar Peth, Opposite Cottage Hospital, Vishwa Laxmi Arcade, Ground Floor, P.B.Road,
Karad - 415110 Dharwad, Karnataka- 580 001.
25 Satara Branch 36 Hubli Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
‘Silver Arch’, Plot No.1, Survey No. 288/289, Divate Complex,
Opp. Kadam Petrol Pump, Sangli 415 001 Club Road, Hubli - 580029
26 Lajpat Nagar, Delhi Branch 37 Mysore Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd., Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
20A, Lajpat Nagar IV, Ring Road, 2909, Kanthraj URS Road, Ground Floor,
New Delhi-110024. Saraswathipuram, Mysore, Karnataka - 570 009
27 Zonal Office V, 38 Tumkur Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd
Mushtifund Saunstha Building, Hotel Shri. Vigneshwara,Comforts,
Dr Dada Vaidya Road, 15t Floor, Opp. Tumkur University,
Panjim, Goa - 403 001 BH Road, Tumkur, Karnataka - 572 102
28 Zonal Office X, 39 Mangalore Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd. Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.
Unit No. 10 and 11, Shivalik Yash, 132 ft. Ring Road, Shop No. 1 to 7, Manasa Towers, Gr. Floor, Kodialbali,
Naranpura - Wadaj, Ahmedabad - 380 013 M G Road, Mangalore - 575 003.
29 Vapi Branch 40 Udupi Branch
Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd, Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
Shop no 2 B/3 & 4, Gr Floor, Shanti Complex, Ballal Tower, Gr. Floor,
Plot No P/50/1, Near Reliance Mall, GIDC, Court Road, Opp. Y.M.C.A.
Vapi - 396195, Gujarat Udupi- 576101
30 Varachha Surat Branch 41 Indore Branch
Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd Saraswat Co-op Bank Ltd,
Yash Plaza, B-101, Grd Floor, G-10, Shree Vardhan Complex,
Opp Dhaanamal Silk Mills, 4,R.N.T. Marg, Indore - 452 001 M.P.
Varachha Main Road, Surat - 395 006.
31 Alkapuri Branch

Saraswat Co-op. Bank Ltd

Ground Floor, Abhinav Complex, 67, Vishwas Colony,
Below Venus Hospital , Jetalpur Road

Vadodara - 390 005.
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ANNEXURE-II

LIST OF POLLING CENTRES WITHIN MMRDA / BYE-LAW NO. 55(1)

POLLING BRANCH ADDRESS
NO.
1 AIROLI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHREEJIDHAM COMPLEX, SHOP NOS. 1 to 3, SECTOR 7,
AIROLI, NAVI MUMBAI 400708.
2 ALIBAUG SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
HOTEL MEERA MADHAV, 15T FLOOR, OPP S.T STAND ALIBAUG, RAIGAD 402201
3 AMBARNATH (E) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
CHANDRAMA, SARVODAYA CO-OP HSG SOCIETY LTD.
PLOT NO 24 AMBARNATH (E), THANE 421501.
4 ANDHERI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHIVCHHAYA CHS., GR. FLOOR, 33, M.V. ROAD, ANDHERI EAST, MUMBAI 400069.
5 ANDHERI (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
1-3 ARUNODAYA CHS C.D BARFIWALA ROAD, ANDHERI (W) MUMBAI 400058.
6 ANDHERI, MIDC SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PREMIER CHEMICAL, GROUND FLOOR, PLOT NO 38, MIDC, CENTRAL ROAD,
ANDHERI EAST, MUMBAI 400093.
7 ANTOP HILL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
KALPAK ESTATE, KIRAN CHS., SHAIKH MISTRY MARG, ANTOPHILL, MUMBAI 400037,
8 BADLAPUR (E) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHUKUNJ APARTMENT, GROUND FLOOR, OLD, KATRAP ROAD, KATRAP NAGAR,
P. 0. KULGAON, BADLAPUR, KALYAN (E), TAL.KALYAN, THANE 421503.
9 BANDRA (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
341, GROUND FLOOR, CHETANA'S INSTITUTE OF MANAGEMENT AND RESEARCH,
SURVEY NO. 341, GOVERNMENT COLONY, BANDRA (E), MUMBAI 400051.
10 BANDRA (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
NATIONAL LIBRARY, OPP. BANDRA TALAO, S.V. ROAD,
BANDRA (WEST), MUMBAI 400050.
11 BARVE NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
(GHATKOPAR) SANTOSHIMATA CO-OP HSG SOCIETY, ASALFA, R. B. KADAM MARG, KAJUPADA,
GHATKOPAR (WEST), MUMBAI 400084.
12 BHANDUP SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
14-15, GRD. FLOOR, JAYASHRI PLAZA, NEAR DREAM MALL, LBS MARG,
BHANDUP (W), MUMBAI 400078
13 BHAYANDER (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
4TH FLOOR, NARAYAN KUTIR, OPP. GANESH MANDIR, 60™ ROAD,
BHAYANDER (W), THANE - 401101.
14 BHIWANDI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS. 1-6, J. P. TOWER, GAURIPADA OPP. B.S.N.L. TELEPHONE EXCHANGE,
DHAMANKAR NAKA, BHIWANDI, THANE 421302.
15 BORIVALI (WEST), SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
KESAR KRIPA, CHANDAVARKAR LANE, BORIVALI (WEST), MUMBAI 400092.
16 BORIVALI (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
LAXMI BUILDING, 8 CARTER ROAD, BORIVALI (EAST), MUMBAI 400066.
17 CARNAC BUNDER SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
110/111, VYAPAR BHAVAN, 49 P. D’MELLON ROAD, MUMBAI 4000009.
18 CBD BELAPUR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS. 20, 21, 37, 38, GR. FLOOR, SHREE NANDDHAM, SECTOR 11,
C.B.D. BELAPUR, NAVI MUMBAI 400614.
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POLLING BRANCH ADDRESS
NO.
19 CHEMBUR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
SHRI SUNDER CO-OP HSG. SOCY LTD.,
PLOT NO. 560, SION TROMBAY ROAD, CHEMBUR, MUMBAI 400071.
20 DADAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
12, FRAMROSE COURT, 60/60B, DADASAHEB PHALKE ROAD
DADAR (E), MUMBAI 400014.
21 DAHISAR (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SUMAN KUNJ, OFF HARI SHANKAR JOSHI ROAD, MARATHA COLONY,
DAHISAR (EAST), MUMBAI 400068.
22 DHARAVI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
8/9, JAI GANESH CHS, OPP URBAN HEALTH CENTER, 60 RD R.P NAGAR,
DHARAVI, MUMBAI 400017.
23 DOMBIVLI (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
15T FLOOR, SILVER COIN APARTMENTS, BHAGAT SINGH ROAD, BHANU NAGAR,
THANE 421201.
24 DOMBIVLI (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
BILWAKUNJ BLDG., GROUND FLOOR, M G ROAD,
OPP. RAILWAY STATION, DOMBIVLI (WEST), THANE - 421202.
25 FORT SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
YUSUF BUILDING, SHOP NO 2/3, OPP. ZARA SHOWROOM,
FLORA FOUNTAIN, FORT, MUMBAI 400023.
26 GHATKOPAR (WEST)  SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
BHAVESHWAR ARCADE, OPP. SHREYAS CINEMA
LBS MARG, GHATKOPAR (WEST), MUMBAI 400086.
27 GHATKOPAR (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SAI PLAZA, JAWAHAR ROAD, OPP. GHATKOPAR RAILWAY STATION
GHATKOPAR (E), MUMBAI 400077.
28 GIRGAUM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHUKOSH, S.V. SOVANI PATH, GIRGAUM, MUMBAI 400004.
29 GOREGAON (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
RAGHUNATH KRUPA BUILDING, 15T FLOOR, WALAWALKAR WADI,
NEXT TO D.G.S.OFFICE, GOREGAON (E), MUMBAI 400063.
30 GOREGAON (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PRATIKSHA APARTMENT, OPP FILMISTAN STUDIO, S.V. ROAD,
GOREGAON [WEST], MUMBAI 400062.
31 GOREGAON LINK SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
ROAD SHOP 10,11,12,CTS NO. 219 (PART), S. N. VRINDAVAN CHS LTD., GROUND FLOOR,
BUILDING NO. 9, SHASTRI NAGAR, LINK ROAD, MUMBAI 400104.
32 HIRANANDANI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
(THANE WEST) EMERALD PLAZA, SHOP NO. 1 & 15, BLOCK NO.1, HIRANANDANI MEADOWS OFF.
POKHRAN ROAD NO. 2, THANE 400610.
33 JOGESHWARI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SAIDHAM CO-OP HSG. SOCIETY LTD., GROUND FLOOR, NEAR GANESH HOTEL,
MAJASWADI, JOGESHWARI (EAST), MUMBAI 400060.
34 JUHU SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHUSAGAR, N.S. ROAD NO. 13, NEAR JUHU CHURCH, MUMBAI 400049.
35 KALINA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
CENTRAL PLAZA, 166, C. S. T. ROAD, KALINA, SANTACRUZ (E), MUMBAI 400098.
36 KALWA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

KISHORE SMRITI, ST FLOOR, STATION ROAD, KALWA, THANE, THANE 400605.
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37 KALYAN (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GOKULDHAM COMPLEX, MURBAD ROAD, NEAR SYNDICATE NAKA,
KALYAN (W), THANE 421301.
38 KAMOTHE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS 1-4, GROUND FLOOR, GREEN SCAPE ROYALE, PLOT NO. 25,
SECTOR 7, KAMOTHE, NAVI MUMBAI 410 209.
39 KANDIVALI (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PLOT NO. CIS 383-A, JUNCTION OF SV ROAD & JAMNADAS, ADUKIA RD,
KANDIVALI [WEST], MUMBAI 400067.
40 KANDIVALI (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
THAKUR PUBLIC SCHOOL, NEAR THAKUR COLLEGE GROUND,
W E HIGHWAY KANDIVALI E, MUMBAI 400101.
41 KASARVADVALI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
THANE (WEST) 6-10, OM SAI PLAZA, KASARVADVALI, GHODBUNDER ROAD, THANE (WEST) - 400602.
42 KHARGHAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
OFFICE NOS. 15 TO 18, GROUND FLOOR, SWARNA BUILDING,
SECTOR 7 KHARGHAR, NAVI MUMBAI 1 410210.
43 KALYAN (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NO 3,4,5,6,7 S. NO.118-C, KOLSHEWADI, HISSA NO. 23 (PART),
GANESH LAHAR VILLA, KALYAN (EAST) - 421306.
44 KOPARKHAIRANE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHREE RAVECHI APARTMENT, SHOP NOS. 5,6,7 & 8, NEAR S.S.D. HOSPITAL,
SECTOR -20 , KOPARKHAIRANE, NAVI MUMBAI 400709.
45 KOPRI COLONY SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
6-11, SAITIRTHA, GROUND FLOOR, SIDDHARTHNAGAR,
KOPRI COLONY, THANE (EAST), THANE 400603.
46 LINKING ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
AMEYA, PLOT NO. 346-B, OPP HOTEL NILKANTH,
LINKING ROAD, KHAR, MUMBAI 400052.
47 LOKHANDWALA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHLOK HOUSE, NEAR WALAWALKAR GARDEN, K. L. WALAWALKAR ROAD,
LOKHANDWALA COMPLEX, ANDHERI (W), MUMBAI 400053.
48 LOWER PAREL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
ORBIT ETERNIA (LOWER PAREL)
LOWER PAREL, SHOP NO 14, GROUND FLOOR, N. M. JOSHI MARG,
LOWER PAREL, MUMBAI 400013.
49 MADHUKENDRA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
OFF. N. C. KELKAR ROAD, KOLSA GALLI, DADAR (W), MUMBAI 400028.
50 MAHAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MAHAD TRADE CENTRE, 1°T FLOOR, OPP. LOCAL POST OFFICE, M. C. ROAD,
MAHAD, RAIGAD 403201.
51 MAHIM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
G.S.B. TEMPLE TRUST BUILDING, SITLADEVI TEMPLE ROAD, MAHIM, MUMBAI 400016.
52 MALAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PATEL COMPLEX, GR. FLOOR, MAMLATDAR WADI, MALAD (WEST), MUMBAI 400064.
53 MALAD LINK ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PARIJA CO-OP HOUSING SOCITY, OPP HUNDAI SHOWROOM & CHINCHOLI BUNDER,
NEAR CLUBLINK, MALAD WEST, MUMBAI 400064.
54 MAROL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

ROCK-WILBUR, MAROL MAROSHI ROAD, MAROL VILLAGE,
ANDHERI [EAST], MUMBAI 400059.
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55 MASJID BUNDER SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PRAGRAJ, 80/82, ISSAJI STREET, MASJID BUNDER, MUMBAI 400003.
56 MATUNGA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PIONEER SCHOOL BUILDING, TELANG ROAD, MATUNGA CENTRAL, MUMBAI 400019.
57 MCCH SOCIETY, SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PANVEL MCCH SOCIETY, HARE MADHAV NIWAS PLOT 48,
NEAR MTNL PANVEL, RAIGAD 410206.
58 MULUND (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
EKNATH APARTMENTS, FIRST FLOOR, M.G. ROAD, MULUND (WEST), MUMBAI 400080.
59 MULUND (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
101-104, SHREENATH PLAZA, 1STFLOOR, L. T. ROAD, MULUND(EAST), MUMBAI 400081.
60 MUMBAI CENTRAL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
B-3 & 4, SHRI SANTOSHIMATA CHS., DR D. B. MARG,
MUMBAI CENTRAL, MUMBAI 400008.
61 NERUL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GREAT GALARIA, PLOT NO. 20, SECTOR 4, NAVI MUMBAI 400706.
62 OVERSEAS SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
KIMMATRAI BUILDING, MAHARSHI KARVE ROAD, MARINE LINES, MUMBAI 400002.
63 PALGHAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
ALCO ARCADE, OPP LION’S CLUB COMMUNITY HALL, KACHERI ROAD,
PALGHAR [WESTI, THANE 401401.
64 PAREL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MAHARASHI DAYANAND EDUCATION SOCIETY,
MANGALDAS VARMA CHOWK, 25 DR. S. S. RAO ROAD,
PAREL, MUMBAI 400012.
65 PEN SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS. 53-55 & 62-64, PEN MUNICIPAL CORP BLDG,
NEXT TO PEN ST DEPOT, CHINCHPADA, TALUKA PEN , DIST. RAIGAD, RAIGAD 402107.
66 POWAI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHRI SHRADHAMATA CO-OP HSG SOC., OPP MAIN GATE -IIT, POWAI, MUMBAI 400076.
67 PRABHADEVI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
URVASHI, GROUND FLOOR, OPP RAVINDRA NATYA MANDIR,
PRABHADEVI, MUMBAI 400025
68 SAKINAKA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
(ANDHERI EAST) K/8, ANSA INDL. ESTATE, GROUND FLOOR,
SAKINAKA, ANDHER(EAST), MUMBAI -400072.
69 SANPADA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
VIVEKANAND SANKUL, SECTOR 4, SANPADA, NAVI MUMBAI 400705.
70 SION SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GANESH BHUWAN, GRD. FLR., S. V. ROAD, SION- WEST, MUMBAI 400022.
71 THANE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
(JAMBHALI NAKA) PATWARDHAN BUILDING, GR. FLOOR, AGYARI LANE, THANE 400601.
72 THANE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
(VARTAK NAGAR) GROUND FLOOR, SHREE RAMESHWAR,
POKHRAN ROAD NO. 1, THANE [WESTI], THANE 400606.
73 TILAK NAGAR, SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
CHEMBUR (WEST) AMRAPALI WORKING WOMAN'S HOSTEL 6, TOWNSHIP COLONY,
TILAK NAGAR, CHEMBUR (WEST), MUMBAI 400089.
74 ULHASNAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

RIGENCY HOUSE, OPP. VISHNU DARSHAN BLDG,
NEAR AMAN TALKIES, ULHASNAGAR, THANE 421002.
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75 VASAI WEST SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
ASHOKVAN BUILDING, VASANTKRISHMA COMPLEX,
AMBADI ROAD, VASAI (W), THANE 401202
76 VASHI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHUSHREE, PLOT NO. 85, DISTRICT BUSINESS CENTRE,
SECTOR 17, VASHI, NAVI MUMBAI 400703.
77 VIKHROLI (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PLOT NO 11 TO 14, SAISUMAN HOUSING SOCIETY,
B WING, BEHIND BUS DEPOT, VIKHROLI (E), MUMBAI 400079.
78 VIKHROLI (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
CHANDAN HOUSE, STATION ROAD, VIKHROLI [WEST], MUMBAI 400079.
79 VILE PARLE (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PHATAK BUILDING, 66, NEHRU ROAD, VILE PARLE [EAST], MUMBAI 400057.
80 VILE-PARLE (WEST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
NISARG APARTMENTS, BESANT ROAD,
OFF BAJAJ ROAD, VILE PARLE(W), MUMBAI 400056.
81 VIRAR (EAST) SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
PARIJAT Il, BAZAR WARD, VIRAR (E), DIST. THANE 401303.
82 WADALA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

86, USHA, R.A. KIDWAI ROAD, WADALA, MUMBAI 400031.

LIST OF POLLING CENTRES OUTSIDE MMRDA BUT WITHIN THE STATE OF MAHARASHTRA / BYE-LAW NO. 55(2)

AKOLA
83 TILAK ROAD AKOLA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GROUND FLOOR, SHIV-DAYA COMPLEX, NEAR UDAY THEATRE,
TILAK ROAD, AKOLA 444001.
AHMEDNAGAR
84 SAVEDI ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GROUND FLOOR, 176/ 3A, PLOT NO. 46/8, SAVEDI ROAD, AHMEDNAGAR 414 001.
AURANGABAD
85 CIDCO AURANGABAD  SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PLOT NO. 6, TOWN CENTRE C-2, NEAR CIDCO BUS-STAND,
CIDCO, NEW AURANGABAD - 431003.
86 KHADKESHWAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHULENI, KHADKESHWAR, AURANGABAD 431001
87 STATION ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
KANCHAN CHAMBERS, KRANTI CHOWK, STATION ROAD, AURANGABAD 431005.
JALGAON
88 JALGAON SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MANGAL JIVAN BULD., GR. FLOOR,27, GANDHI NAGAR,
NEAR S T STAND, JALGAON 425001.
KOLHAPUR
89 ICHALAKARNJI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MOHAN MARKET, OLD STATION ROAD, NEAR S. T. STAND, ICHALKARNJI - 416115
KOLHAPUR
90 RAJARAMPURI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

1429, E WARD, FINAL PLOT NO. 198, 7TH LANE, RAJARAMPURI, KOLHAPUR 416008.
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NO.
NAGPUR
91 GANDHI BAUG SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PLOT NO 74/B, GROUND FLOOR, VIDHYA BHAVAN, NEAR SEWA SADAN SQUARE,
CENTRAL AVENUE ROAD, NAGPUR 440018.
NASHIK
92 JAIL ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MADHURA BLDG, DASAK SHIVAR, JAIL ROAD, NASIK ROAD, NASHIK 422101.
93 MAHATMA NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
OPP GANPATI MANDIR. 182, SUMANT APARTMENT,
MAHATMA NAGAR, NASHIK 422007.
94 MAIN ROAD , NASIK SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
G — 4 AND 5, SUYOJIT RATAN MALL OPP. NEHRU GARDEN,
SHALIMAR, NASHIK 422001.
95 SHARANPUR ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SUYOJIT CENTER, G-1, SHARANPUR ROAD, OPP RAJU GANDHI BHAVAN,
N M C NAGAR, NASHIK 422002.
PUNE
96 AUNDH SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
YOGITA PARK, OPP. ITl, ITI ROAD, PUNE- 411007.
97 BANER ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
SHOP NOS. 1-3, DAULAT COMPLEX, SURVEY NO. 314, BANER ROAD, PUNE 411045 .
98 CHAKAN SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
SHOP NO.2/3/SHUBHMANGAL PLAZA, GAT NO 1280, NEAR KOHINOOR CENTER,
PUNE NASIK HIGHWAY, CHAKAN, PUNE, 410501.
99 DAHANUKAR COLONY SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
INDRANAGARI SOCIETY, OPP.CUMMINS IND. LTD.,
DAHANUKAR COLONY, KOTHARUD, PUNE 411029.
100 HADAPSAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
RAVI DARSHAN, SURVEY NO.221, NEAR AKASHVANI, HADAPSAR, PUNE 411028.
101 HINJEWADI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
PLOT NO.9, MIDC, HINJEWADI,
TALUKA MULSHI, PUNE 411027.
102 KARVE ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
8/3, ERANDVANA, MADHUBAN, KARVE ROAD, PUNE 411004.
103 KATRAJ SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
SUGANDHA TARA ARCADE, SURVEY NO. 83/84, KATRAJ CIRCLE, PUNE 411028.
104 KONDHAVA PUNE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
SHOWROOM NO. 3A, ADITYA BUSINESS CENTRE, S NO 1A (PART),
NIBM CHOWK, CAMP KONDHWE ROAD, NEAR JYOTI RESTAURANT,
KONDHWE KHURD, PUNE 411048.
105 PAUD ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
PLOT NO.16, SURVEY NO.121-122, RAMBAG COLONY, PAUD ROAD, PUNE 411038.
106 PIMPRI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
SURVEY NO.127, OPP. HOTEL PANCHSHEEL, MOHAN NAGAR,
TELCO ROAD, PIMPRI CHINCHWAD, PUNE 411019.
107 SAHAKAR NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,,

PENTAGON BUILDING, PLOT NO.477 A, GROUND FLOOR, SHOP NOS. 1 TO 5, PARVAT],
KALPANAMATI HOUSING SOCIETY, SAHAKAR NAGAR, PUNE 411009.
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108 SME-PUNE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
110, C-2, KOHINOOR ESTATE CO.OP. SOC, PLOT NO12, MULA ROAD, SANGAMWADI,
NEAR KAMALNAYAN BAJAJ GARDEN, PUNE, 411003.
109 SOMWAR PETH SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
ZILLA PARISHAD BLDG., 329/330, OPP GADGE MAHARAJ MATH,
NAVPAT GIRI CHOWK, SOMWAR PETH, PUNE 411011.
110 TALEGAON DABHADE = SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD,,
P. L. KHANDAGE PLAZA, SHOP NOS. 33 TO 39, GROUND FLOOR,
SURVEY NO 33, TALEGAON CHAKAN RD. TALEGAON, PUNE, 410507.
111 TILAK ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD,,
991, SHUKRAVAR PETH, TILAK ROAD, PUNE, 411002.
112 VIMAN NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.,
NIKO ANNEXE, NEAR NIKO GARDEN, SURVEY NO 209, VIMANNAGAR, PUNE 411014.
RATNAGIRI
113 CHIPLUN SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
JANARGANGA, OPP. CENTRAL ST STAND,
BURUM TALI, CHIPLUN, DIST. RATNAGIRI 415605.
114 LANJA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GROUND FLOOR, OPP NEW ENGLISH HIGH SCHOOL
AT MUMBAI - GOA HIGHWAY, LANJA, DIST- RATNAGIRI, RATNAGIRI 416701.
115 RAJAPUR THE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
RAJAPUR SHIKSHAN PRASARAK MANDAL, MUNICIPAL HOUSE,
129, MAHOTSAV BHAVAN, MAIN ROAD, RAJAPUR, DIST RATNAGIRI 416702.
116 RATNAGIRI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
BENZAMIN ENCLAVE, 1T FLOOR, CENTRAL ST STAND,
RATNAGIRI KOLHAPUR HIGHWAY, RATNAGIRI 415612.
SANGLI
117 KUPWAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MAIN ROAD, 473/18 473/38/2, PLOT NO. 10, KUPWAD, SANGLI 416425.
118 MAHAVIR NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
102A, MAHAVIR NAGAR, OPP JAIN MANDIR VAKHARBHAG,
SANGLI 416416.
SANGALI DIST.
119 KARAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
109, BUDHWAR PETH, OPPOSITE COTTAGE HOSPITAL, KARAD - 415110.
120 LAXMI MARKET SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
C.S.NO. 5544, SUNDER COMPLEX, DANEKAR BLDG. SHANIWAR PETH,
MIRAJ, SANGLI 416410.
121 SATARA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SILVER ARCH’, PLOT NO.1, SURVEY NO0.288/289, NEW RADHIKA ROAD,
OPP. KADAM PETROL PUMP, SATARA, SANGLI 415001.
SINDHUDURGA
122 DEVGAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
2268, PATANKAR COMPLEX, COLLAGE ROAD CORNER,
TAL. DEVGAD, SINDHUDURG 416613.
123 KANKAVALI- SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
RAMESHWAR PLAZA RAMESHWAR PLAZA BUILDING, M. K. G. MARG, NEAR PRANT OFFICE,

KANKAVLI, DIST. SINDHUDURG 416602.
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124 KUDAL SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
PRATHAM APARTMENT, OPP KUDAL HIGH SCHOOL, KUDAL VENGURLA ROAD,
DIST SINDHUDURGA, KUDAL 416520.

125 MALVAN THE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
MADHU SINDHU, SOMWAR PETH, TALUKA MALVAN,
DIST. SINDHUDURGA 416602.

126 SAWANTWADI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GALA NO. 64 TO 69, RAMESHWAR PLAZA, NEAR MOTI TALAO, A&P: SAWANTWADI
SINDHUDURG 416510.

127 VAIBHAVWADI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
HOUSE NO. 253, GROUND FLOOR, NEAR VAIBHAVWADI BUS STAND,
VAIBHAVWADI, SINDHUDURG 416810.

128 VENGURLA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SARASWAT BANK BUILDING, BAR. BALASAHEB KHARDEKAR ROAD,
VENGURLA, DISTRICT: SINDHUDURG 416516.

SOLAPUR
129 BUDWAR PETH SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SOLAPUR RATHI TOWER”, GROUND FLOOR,

PLOT NO. I + 23 B, BUDHWARPETH NEAR NILA NAGAR, SOLAPUR 413002.

LIST OF POLLING CENTRES OUTSIDE THE STATE OF MAHARASHTRA / BYE-LAW NO. 55(3)

DELHI
130 LAJPAT NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
20 A LAJPAT NAGAR - IV, RING ROAD, NEW DELHI 110024.
GOA
131 BICHOLIM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS. 8 & 9, GOUND FLOOR, SHETYE RESICOM, BICHOLIM GOA, GOA 403504.
132 CURCHOREM- SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SANVORDEM MEGHAKUNJ, OPP POLICE STATION, SANVORDEM, GOA 403706.
133 MAPUSA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
JESSMA BUSINESS CENTER, OPP MAYURA HOTEL, MOROD, GOA 403507.
134 MARGAO SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
HIRA NIKETAN, MENEZES ROAD, BEHIND MARGAO POLICE STATION, GOA 403601.
135 PANJIM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MUSHTIFUND SAUNSTHA BLDG. DR. DADA VAIDYA ROAD,PANJIM, GOA, GOA 403001.
136 PONDA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
HOTEL YASHADA, SUPER MARKET COMPLEX, PONDA, GOA 403401.
137 PORVORIM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NO. 1-B, GROUND FLOOR, COSME COSTA'S NUCLUES
PORVORIM, BARDEZ, GOA., GOA 403521.
138 VASCO SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MURGAON MUTT SANKUL, FR. LUIS GOMES RD. VASCO DA GAMA, GOA 403802.
GUJARAT
139 BAPU NAGAR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
AHMEDABAD. UNIT NO.12,14,15 AND 16, DEVRAJ, THAKKAR BAPU NAGAR, INDIA COLONY ROAD,
AHMEDABAD 380024.
140 CG ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
AHMEDABAD 3, EYE COMPLEX, UNIT NO. 7 AND 8, PANCHVATI, PANCH RASTA, C.G. ROAD

AHMEDABAD 380006.
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141 NARANPURA- WADAJ  SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
AHMEDABAD UNIT NO.10 AND 11, SHIVALIK YASH,132 FT., RING ROAD,
NARANPURA - WADAJ, AHMEDABAD 380013.
142 RING ROAD, SURAT THE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
LEGEND TEXTILE MARKET, GROUND FLOOR,
NEAR SAHARA DARWAJA, BESIDE PADMAVATI TEXTILE MARKET,
RING ROAD, SURAT 395002.
143 VAPI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SHOP NOS. 2B, 3 & 4, GROUND, FLOOR, SHANTI COMPLEX,
P/N P/50, NEAR RELIANCE MALL,GIDC, VAPI, VAPI 396195.
144 ALKAPURI, VADODARA SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
GROUND FLOOR, ABHINAV COMPLEX,67, VISHWAS COLONY
BELOW VENUS HOSPITAL, JETALPUR ROAD, VADODARA 390005.
KARNATAKA
145 BELGAUM SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD.
3475, SAMADEVI COMPLEX, SAMADEVI GALLI, BELGAUM 590002.
146 BENGALURU SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
SOGO PROPERTIES, SITE NO.47, 100 FT ROAD, 4™ BLOCK, WARD NO.68,
KORAMANGALA, BENGALURU 560034.
147 DAVANGERE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
269 /1, NEAR MALLIKARJUNA, MOTOR AND SCOOTER MART,
JAYADEVA CIRCLE ROAD, DAVANGERE 577002.
148 DHARWAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
VISHWALAXMI ARCADE,, GROUND FLOOR, P. B. ROAD, DHARWAD 580001.
149 HUBLI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
DIVATE COMPLEX, UPPER GR. FLOOR, CLUB ROAD, HUBLI 580029.
150 M. G. ROAD SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
MANASA TOWERS, SHOP NOS 1 TO 7 GROUND FLOOR, KODIALBAIL, M. G. ROAD,
MANGALORE 575003.
151 MYSORE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
2909, KANTHRAJ URS ROAD, GROUND FLOOR, SARASWATHIPURAM,
MYSORE 570009.
152 TUMKUR SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
HOTEL SRI. VIGNESHWARA COMFORTS, 1ST FLOOR, OPP. TUMKUR UNIVERSITY,
TUMKUR 572102.
153 UDUPI SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD
BALLAL TOWER, GR FLOOR, COURT ROAD, OPP Y.M.C.A, UDUPI,
MANGALORE 576101.
MADHYA PRADESH
154 INDORE SARASWAT CO-OP. BANK LTD

G-10, SHREEVARDHAN COMPLEX, 4, R.N.T. MARG, INDORE 452001.
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Performance Highlights
(% in crore)
Particulars For The Year Ended % Change
31-03-21 31-03-20
Total Income 3,711.79 3,742.24 -0.81
Total Expenditure 2,983.74 3,090.55 -3.46
Gross Profit 728.05 651.69 11.72
Less: Provisions 283.84 258.80 9.68
Profit Before Tax 44421 392.89 13.06
Less: Income Tax 173.97 142.10 22.43
Profit after Tax carried to Balance Sheet 270.24 250.79 7.76
At The Year End
Own Funds 3,953.70 3,522.04 12.26
Share Capital 304.82 285.99 6.58
Reserves and Surplus 3,648.88 3,236.05 12.76
Deposits 40,800.61 38,083.49 7.13
Current 2,715.40 2,210.60 22.84
Savings 9,782.36 8,513.34 14.91
Term 28,302.85 27,359.55 3.45
Advances 26,241.70 25,338.64 3.56
Secured 25,915.42 25,089.39 3.29
Unsecured 326.28 249.25 30.90
Total Business 67,042.31 63,422.13 5.71
Priority Sector 14,412.03 10,911.51 32.08
% to Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC) 52.14 42.30 -
Small Scale Industries 3,776.50 1,083.99 248.39
Small Businessmen and Traders 4,590.36 4,693.23 -2.19
Other Priority Sectors 6,045.17 5134.29 17.74
Working Capital 47,669.83 44,700.57 6.64
Investments 14,020.71 13,129.03 6.79
Borrowings and Refinance 1,117.16 1,706.49 -34.53
Net NPAs (%) 1.04 1.56
Capital Adequacy (%) 14.26 14.75
Number of Members
Regular (Shareholders holding 50 shares & above) 237,262 225,245
Nominal 88,864 61,886
Number of Branches 283 284
Number of Employees 4,242 4,246
Productivity per Employee 15.80 14.94
Profit per Employee (% in lac) 6.37 5.91
Return on Average Assets (%) 0.58 0.58
CD RATIO (%) 64.32 66.53
NIM (%) 2.14 2.39
Cost to Income Ratio (%) 52.01 54.57
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Report of the Board of Directors

Dear Members,
Your Directors have great pleasure in presenting the 103 Annual Report on the business and operations of your
Bank together with the Audited Accounts for the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2021.

THE GLOBAL ECONOMY AND INDIA

The Financial Year 2020-21 was an unprecedented
year for the global economy, with the year starting
on a note of tremendous uncertainty amidst the
global pandemic. In fact, the pandemic hit the
economy at a time when the growth numbers were
already decelerating.

The global Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
contracted by around 3.3% during calendar year
2020, as businesses around the world continued
to suffer the impact of stringent lockdowns,
poor demand and a near standstill of business
activity. Global central banks supported growth by
maintaining a low interest rate environment and
providing abundant liquidity to the system.

The US economy growth rate shrunk by 3.5%
during the year. The Euro Zone economy also was
sharply impacted as GDP shrunk by 6.6%. Among
the member states, countries like Italy, Spain,
Austria and France were more severely affected.

The pattern witnessed across countries at large,
including the US, was a sharp deceleration in
Q1 and Q2 following the initial stoppage of
economic activity, an incipient recovery in Q3 by
partial easing of lockdown followed by further
slowdown caused by the subsequent resurgence
of Covid-19 cases.

On the Emerging Market and Developing
Economies front, the GDP numbers saw shrinkage
of 2.2%. However, China remained an exception as
itrecorded a growth of 2.3%, despite the disruptions
from the pandemic, as output rebounded with
particular support from the infrastructure
spending.

Overall, the global economy witnessed a period of
unprecedented crisis, prompting aggressive policy
action by central banks as well as significant
stimulus to public spending on health, welfare
programs and infrastructure development. All
major regulators launched or expanded asset
purchase programs, albeit with a risk of high debt
levels.

Indian Economy

Onthe Indian front, the strategy adopted to confront
the pandemic head-on was the willingness to take
short-term pain for long-term gains as the country
imposed a nation-wide lockdown towards the end
of FY 2019-20. The focus was, thus, on saving lives,
while recognizing that GDP growth would gradually
recover from the temporary lockdown-induced
shock.

The Indian economy witnessed the worst
contraction since the past several decades as
the real GDP shrunk by 24.4% in Q1. As the
lockdown was slowly lifted, recovery was seen
across all key economic indicators. On an annual
basis, however, India’s real Gross Domestic Product
(GDP) rate has been estimated to have shrunk by
8.0% in FY 2020-21 compared to a 4.0% rise in the
preceding year.

The agricultural sector remained resilient with a
growth rate of 3.0% in FY 2020-21, on the back of
higher rabi sowing and supported by above normal
monsoon rainfall. On the other hand, industry and
services contracted by 9.6% and 8.8% respectively
during the year. The agricultural growth thus
cushioned the pandemic and lockdown-induced
shock on the Indian economy to some extent.
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Key Macro-Economic Indicators

India adopted a four-pillar strategy of containment,
fiscal, financial and long-term structural reforms.
A calibrated fiscal and monetary support was
provided, ensuring abundant liquidity and providing
of immediate relief to debtors in the form of
low interest rates, ensuring of monetary policy
transmission and also providing moratoriums to
the stressed sectors.

Inflation averaged above the upper tolerance band
of 6% of RBI for the initial half of the year. However,
a sharp correction in vegetable prices, softening
of cereal prices, supply side intervention as also
with the favorable base effect, inflation numbers
marginally dropped to 5.52% levels by the end of
the year.

With the sharp contraction in tax revenues as also
increased spending to revive growth, the fiscal
deficit numbers shot up sharply to 9.5% of GDP as
against the 3.5% budgeted earlier. The fiscal deficit
was funded mainly through higher Government
borrowings, multilateral borrowings, small savings
funds and short-term borrowings. The gross
borrowings for FY 2020-21 rose sharply to ¥ 12.74
lakh crore against the original estimate of ¥ 5.36
lakh crore. Net borrowings stood at ¥ 10.52 lakh
crore.

With subdued businesses and restricted travel
during the pandemic, the demand for oil fell sharply
during FY 2020. The unprecedented demand shock
coupled with an oil price war between Saudi Arabia
and Russia further aggravated the situation.

International crude oil prices plummeted sharply
with subdued businesses across the globe and low
demand. In fact, oil futures even turned negative
during the year for the first time in history and oil
producers were left scrambling to find space to
store oversupply. With India having a high amount
of oil imports, merchandise imports witnessed a
sharper contraction under the impetus of falling
international oil prices as compared to exports.
Also, travel services registered a lower outgo. The

country, thus, posted a Current Account Surplus at
2% of the GDP- a surplus seen after 17 years.

With improved Current Account balances and
robust capital inflows, the forex reserves increased
to an all-time high of USD 579.3 billion during the
year. The increased forex reserves are enough to
cover around 18 months worth of imports.

On the Monetary Policy front, the Reserve Bank of
India continued with its soft Policy stance since
the beginning of the year. A repo rate cut of 40 bps
was effected on 22" May, 2020 (taking the repo
rate to 4%), while maintaining an accommodative
stance and extending of significant liquidity
support. At 4%, the repo rate has been the lowest
for the past many years and has been maintained
unchanged for the past one year. RBI undertook
several conventional as well as unconventional
measures like Open Market Operations (OMOs),
Long Term Repo Operations (LTROs), Targetted
Long Term Repo Operations (TLTROs), etc., to
provide sustained liquidity support to the markets.
Special refinance facilities were extended to
various All India Financial Institutions and special
liquidity windows were kept open for mutual funds,
in order to meet various sectoral credit needs.

As signs of normalcy started emerging, the
Reserve Bank of India also reversed some of the
steps taken earlier as a response to the pandemic
viz. restoration of Cash Reserve Ratio (CRR) back
to 4% in two tranches, resumption of normal
liquidity management operations from Q4 onwards
and conduct of variable rate term reverse repo
auctions. However, despite all these measures, the
liquidity in the banking system remained in surplus
mode.

Financial Markets

Global bond yields, including US Treasuries,
remained historically low during calendar year
2020 amidst low policy rates. However, since the
start of calendar year 2021, yields started rising
sharply, as investors started to factor in the full
impact of the stimulus as also expectations of the
pandemic subsiding with availability of vaccines.
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The domestic G-sec yields too mirrored global
trends with a softening bias for the initial part of the
financial year, tracking lower policy rates, subdued
oil prices and surplus liquidity. The dip in yields
was sharper at the shorter end of the curve. The
yields, however, started moving upwards towards
the last quarter of the financial year, with markets
getting jittery over the huge borrowing program
announced in the Budget as also global factors
like rising US yields and oil prices. The yields finally
closed for the year at 6.18%.

The year 2020-21 witnessed a buoyant Sensex
and Nifty with surge in capital inflows, as India
continued to remain a preferred investment
destination for Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs).
Both Sensex and Nifty rallied during the year to
finally close at 50,029 and 14,867 respectively.

With huge capital inflows as well as due to
dollar weakness, the Indian Rupee witnessed
appreciation, since end June 2020. RBI intervention
in the forex markets ensured financial stability and
orderly conditions, controlling the volatility and
one-sided appreciation of the rupee. The currency
finally settled at ¥ 73.21 per US Dollar as on 31s
March, 2021.

Overall Assessment

The year 2020-21 has been an unusual year with
the devastating health crisis emanating from
the Covid-19 pandemic. The Indian economy
technically entered a recession with GDP growth
remaining in negative territory for two consecutive
quarters. The Government of India and the Reserve
Bank of India announced several measures at
different stages of the pandemic to provide solace
to the impacted sections of the society as well as
to aid the fledgling economy.

With the lifting of the lockdown and resumption
of business activities, the country has managed
to clock positive GDP numbers i.e. 0.4% for Q3 of
FY 2020-21 and 1.6% for Q4 of FY 2020-21. The
Reserve Bank of India has estimated the GDP
growth for FY 2021-22 at 9.5%. However, we have
seen a sharp resurgence of Covid cases as the
country has been hit with the second wave of the

pandemic. The economy’s return to normalcy will
now hinge upon factors like pace of vaccinations
in the months ahead and successful tackling of
the expected third wave of the pandemic as well
as calibration of budgetary policy measures.
Localized lockdowns could hit consumer mobility
and demand in the economy.

GDP growth would, thus, be subdued for the
initial part of FY 2021-22 and may start gaining
momentum only in the second half of the year.
With the surge in second wave of pandemic,
Businesses have got impacted which will result in
lower GDP numbers for the whole of FY 2021-22.
S&P has also revised India's economic growth to
9.5%, in line with RBI projection. GDP estimates for
FY 2021-22 might be even lowered by RBI in the
next Monetary Policy review.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE BANKING
AND FINANCIAL SECTOR IN INDIA

The various measures undertaken by the
Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India and
other regulatory authorities during FY 2020-21 are
as below:

Moratoriums for Term Loans and Working Capital
Facilities - In order to help borrowers tide over the
disruptions due to lockdown, lending institutions
were permitted to grant moratoriums on payment
of instalments and recovery of interest, in the case
of all term loans and working capital facilities.
RBI also permitted banks to convert the interest
charges on working capital facilities during the
moratorium period into a Funded Interest Term
Loan (FITL), in orderto reduce burden on borrowers.
In case of working capital financing, institutions
were permitted to recalculate the drawing power
by reducing the margins till the moratorium period.

RBI thus granted banks and NBFCs a breather from
recognising Non-Performing Assets (NPAs) during
the moratorium period. While granting this relief,
RBI however maintained caution by asking banks
to provide 10% additional provisioning spread over
two quarters, in view of the risk build-up in balance
sheets.
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RBI also appointed an expert committee under
the Chairmanship of Shri K. V. Kamath which
outlined the parameters for resolution framework
for the stressed sectors, based on which lending
institutions were permitted to extend the residual
tenor of a loan by a period not more than 2 years.

Measures for betterment of MSME sector - For
the smooth development of the MSME sector,
the Government undertook several measures
including change in the definition of MSMEs from
July 2020 onwards, by raising the investment limits
for classifying MSMEs and introducing ‘annual
turnover’ as an added feature to define them.
Credit to new small-ticket MSME borrowers by
Scheduled Commercial Banks was exempted from
maintenance of CRR so as to incentivize the MSME
sector. Further, announcement of collateral-free,
automatic loans worth ¥ 3 trillion for 4.5 million
MSME units was also made.

Series of relaxations to benefit importers and

exporters - Offering importers and exporters

more time and liquidity against the backdrop of
the Covid-19 crisis, RBI has issued a series of
relaxations, few of which are as below:

e Increase in the maximum permissible period
of pre-shipment and post-shipment export
credit sanctioned by banks.

e Extension of the time period for completion of
remittances against normal imports.

e Increase in the period of realization and
repatriation of export proceeds to India.

e Extension of period for Investments by Foreign
Portfolio Investors (FPIs) under the Voluntary
Retention Route.

Measures to strengthen digital payments
segment - In order to strengthen regulatory
mechanism and information dissemination, the
Reserve Bank of India undertook a number of
steps for digital payments segment viz. setting
up of 24*7 helpline, institution of Integrated
Ombudsman, issuance of outsourcing guidelines
and adherence to fair practice code, guidelines
for regulating payment aggregators / gateways,
announcement of creation of a Payments

Infrastructure Development Fund, framework for
establishment of a new umbrella entry for retail
payments, improving oversight framework for
Financial Market Infrastructures(FMI), inclusion of
NPCI as an FMI.

Measures to deepenthe bond markets viz. Allowing
retail investors to open Gilt Accounts directly with
RBI, permitting Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs)
to invest in Defaulted Bonds, proposal to form a
permanent institutional framework and set-up
of market maker to purchase investment grade
debt securities, raising of FPI limits for corporate
bonds, issuance of special series of Government
securities under the fully accessible route.

Broadening the scope of Priority Sector Lending
(PSL) to include start-ups, increased limits for
renewable energy, increasing the target for
lending to ‘Small and Marginal Farmers’ and
‘Weaker Sections’ and assigning higher weight for
incremental PSL credit in the identified districts.

Introduction of Positive Pay mechanism for all
cheques above X 50,000/, under which the cheque
issuer will need to electronically submit certain
details of the cheque like date, beneficiary name,
amount etc. to the drawee bank for cross checking
before the payment.

Setting up of innovation hub to encourage start-up
companies to address the challenges of financial
inclusion and efficient banking transaction through
areas like cyber security, data analytics, delivery
platforms and payment services.

Automation of asset classification rules - RBI
has mandated that asset classification rules
should be configured in the system i.e. all asset
accounts should be automated for the purpose of
identification of Non-Performing Assets (NPAs),
provisioning and filing returns with RBI by 30" June
2021.

Extension of LEl requirement for large-value
transactions in RTGS/NEFT for all payment
transactions of ¥ 50 crore and above using RTGS /
NEFT systems. Member banks are now required to
include remitter and beneficiary LEI information in
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RTGS and NEFT payment messages. Further, they
have to maintain records of all transactions of ¥ 50
crore and above through RTGS and / or NEFT.

Other Development Measures - Other measures

include:

o Recapitalisation of ¥ 20,000 crore for PSU
banks in FY 2021-22.

e Hike in Foreign Direct Investment limit for
insurance from 49% to 74%.

o Fast-tracking of the disinvestment policy, with
the disinvestment of stake from companies
like BPCL, IDBI Bank, Air India, Shipping
Corporation of India, Container Corporation of
India, to name a few. Initial Public Offer (IPO)
of LIC is also scheduled.

e Announcement of privatization of two PSU
banks (other than IDBI Bank) and one public
sector General Insurance Company.

Measures for tiding over the economic shock due

to Covid scenario - With a view to giving solace to

the banking and financial industry reeling under the
pandemic impact, RBI extended the time period of
certainguidelinesissuedearlierviz.implementation
of Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB) and Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NSFR), implementation date for
hedging of foreign exchange risk, implementation
of various provisions on enhancing security of
card transactions, etc. Also, group exposure limits
were raised marginally to enable corporates to
raise funds. Borrowing limits under Marginal

Standing Facility (MSF) were enhanced. For State

Governments and Union Territories, the limits

under the Ways and Means Advances were hiked

while norms for availing overdraft facilities were
relaxed for an extended period.

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS IN THE URBAN
CO-OPERATIVE BANKING SECTOR

The Reserve Bank of India also undertook several
measures for Urban Co-operative Banks (UCBs)
during the year, which are indicated below:

System based audit classification - In order to
improve efficiency, transparency and integrity
of the asset classification process, RBI has

mandated UCBs to undertake system-based asset
classification effective from FY 2021-22. Timelines
for adherence to the same have been allotted
based on the size of the UCBs.

Introduction of risk-based audit in large UCBs -RBI
has introduced risk-based audit in UCBs, in order
to strengthen the internal audit function and bring
the audit standard at par with commercial banks.
In case of your Bank, we have already implemented
risk-based audit proactively.

Constitution of an Expert Committee on Primary
(Urban) Co-operative Banks - The RBI decided to
set up an Expert Committee on UCBs involving all
stakeholders in order to provide a medium-term
road map to strengthen the sector, enable faster
rehabilitation/resolution of UCBs, as well as to
examine other critical aspects relating to these
entities.

Guidelines on Amalgamation in the UCB space -
To enable consolidation in the UCB space, RBI
approved fresh guidelines for amalgamation of 2
or more UCBs. Amalgamation amongst UCBs will
be permitted under 3 different circumstances viz.

e Positive networth of acquired bank and
acquirer bank assures protection of all
depositors of acquired bank.

* Negative networth of acquired bank and
acquiring bank assures protection of all
depositors.

« Negative networth of acquired bank and
acquiring bank assures protection of all
depositors with financial support of State
Government.

Contribution to Rural Infrastructure Development
Fund (RIDF) and other funds for Priority Sector
Lending - Effective from March 2021, RBI has
mandated that UCBs will be required to contribute
to Rural Infrastructure Development Fund (RIDF)
established with NABARD and other funds with
NABARD, NHB, SIDBI, MUDRA Ltd. against their
Priority Sector Lending (PSL) shortfall vis-a-vis the
prescribed targets.
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The total business of your Bank increased
from % 63,422.13 crore as on 315t March, 2020
103 67,042.31 crore as on 31t March, 2021 i.e.
arise of ¥ 3,620.18 crore.

Deposits increased from ¥ 38,083.49 crore as
on 31t March, 2020 to ¥ 40,800.61 crore as on
315t March, 2021 i.e. arise of ¥ 2,717.12 crore.

A notable feature is that the CASA deposits
have increased from ¥ 10,723.94 crore as on
31st March, 2020 to ¥ 12,497.76 crore as on
31t March, 2021 i.e. by ¥ 1,773.82 crore.

Retail advances rose from % 10,856.94 crore
as on 315t March, 2020 to ¥ 11,993.07 crore as
on 31st March, 2021, a rise of ¥ 1,136.13 crore.

The gross profit of your Bank increased from
T 651.69 crore as on 31t March, 2020 to
3728.05 crore as on 31t March, 2021 i.e. arise
of ¥ 76.36 crore.

Graph No. 1

GI‘OSS Proﬁt (Kin crore)
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4. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE DURING Graph No. 2
FY 2020-21: Net Profit —
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« The ratio of Net NPA to Advances of the Bank,
which stood at 1.56% as on 31t March, 2020
has improved to 1.04% as on 31t March, 2021.

« Own funds of your Bank have risen from
T 3,522.04 crore as on 31t March, 2020 to
¥ 3,953.70 crore as on 31%t March, 2021 i.e. a
rise of ¥ 431.66 crore.

« The Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets Ratio
(CRAR) stands at 14.26% as on 31t March,
2021, much higher than the 9% stipulated by
the Reserve Bank of India.
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Gross Profit for FY 2020-21

e The net profit of your Bank has increased
from ¥ 250.79 crore as on 315t March, 2020 to
¥270.24 crore as on 315t March, 2021 i.e. arise
of ¥ 19.45 crore.

5. SEGMENT-WISE PERFORMANCE

(i) Retail Banking

Retail Banking has been a major contributor of
growth during the year despite the pandemic
situation. Factors like increased usage of
technology, concessions in stamp duty and
consumption-based mindset has culminated
into the growth of retail advances. Your Bank’s
thrust on customer service and focused
efforts have also been an instrumental factor
in this growth.

During the preceding year, your Bank’s
Retail Banking Department underwent a
revamp from the point of view of operational
convenience. Two specialised verticals were
formed with focused energies on (i) Retail
Business Operations and (ii) Retail Business
Development.
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These initiatives have started showing positive
impact on overall business of Retail Banking
vertical.

Retail Advances
With the ongoing focus on increasing retail
portfolio, your Bank was successful in
registering 10.46% growth in retail advances
during the year.

The portfolio has increased from
3 10,856.94 crore as on 31t March, 2020 to
¥ 11,993.07 crore as on 31stMarch, 2021.
Besides, loan against tangible securities stood
at< 1,562.11 crore as on 31t March, 2021.

Thus, the share of retail advances to
total advances increased from 48.27% in
FY 2019-20 to 51.66% in FY 2020-21.

Table No.1: (X in crore)

Advances 31.03.2021 [131:03:2020 Risein % Rise

absolute

terms

Retail 8,578.47  7,645.41 933.06 12.20
Commercial 3,414.60 3,211.53 203.07 6.32
upto¥ 10
crore
Total 11,993.07 10,856.94 1,136.13 10.46

36

Retail Deposit Portfolio

Bank's low-cost deposits i.e. Current and
Savings Accounts (CASA) constitute a vital
ingredient of the Bank’s deposit mix, for
improving overall profitability. Bank provides a
wide range of products under CASA to cater to
all customer segments.

Overall, 83,114 new CASA accounts were
opened during FY 2020-21, of which 74,292 are
Savings Bank accounts and 8,822 are Current
accounts. There have been improvements
in opening of quality CASA accounts as
compared to earlier year. There is significant
increase in CASA balances from ¥ 10,723.94
crore as on 31t March, 2020 to ¥ 12,497.76
crore as on 31t March, 2021 i.e. an increase
of ¥ 1,773.82 crore in absolute terms (16.54%

growth in CASA). The CASA percentage to
overall deposits has also increased from
28.16% t0 30.63%.

Position of CASA Deposits

Table No.2: (X in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Savings Deposits 9,782.36 8,513.34
Current Deposits 2,715.40 2,210.60
CASA Deposits 12,497.76 10,723.94
Increase in CASA (y-0-y) 1,773.82 337.00
Total Deposits 40,800.61 38,083.49
% of CASA to Total Deposits 30.63% 28.16%

Implementation of Pradhan Mantri Awas
Yojana (PMAY) - Credit linked subsidy scheme
Your Bank has entered into an agreement with
National Housing Bank (NHB), the nodal agency
established for the implementation of PMAY,
credit-linked subsidy scheme. It is launched
by the Central Government for Economically
Weaker Sections (EWS) and Lower Income
Groups (LIG) to provide affordable housing
through credit-linked subsidy. The scheme is
extended for Middle Income Group (MIG) as
well.

The details of subsidy claims sent and settled
by NHB during the FY 2020-21 is as below:

Table No. 3:

Scheme Types Total Total Total amount
applications  applications of subsidy
sent to NHB settled received

 in lakh)

EWS/LIG old 10 7 14.35

EWS/LIG new 955 448 1,096.69

MIG | 530 388 843.59

MIG Il 73 59 120.62

TOTAL 1,568 902 2,075.25

Priority Sector Advances

It is mandatory for banks to lend to the priority
sector; thereby ensuring timely availability of
credit and growth of these sectors.
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As per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India,
UCBs are expected to achieve 45% of total
advances portfolio towards Priority Sector
Lending during FY 2020-21. Your Bank achieved
Priority Sector business of ¥ 14,412.03 crore
(including Priority Sector Lending Certificates
purchased) thus reaching 52.14%.

Business Loans and Govt Schemes

For the growth of small entrepreneurs and
start-ups, your Bank offers Retail Business
loans upto T 10 crore. We also have tailor-
made schemes like Unnati and Mudra loans
for small businesses, which have contributed
towards achievement of these targets.

During the present financial year, your Bank
disbursed Unnati loans of ¥ 102.58 crore and
Mudra Loans amounting to ¥ 10 crore.

Various Government introduced schemes
like Chief Minister's Employment Generation
Program (CMEGP) and Prime Minister's
Employment Generation Program (PMEGP)
were successfully implemented to reach out
to deserving entrepreneurs for their start-up
business ventures.

We have disbursed loans amounting to ¥ 2.84
crore under CMEGP and ¥ 3.26 crore under
PMEGP.

Your Bank is the first co-operative bank to be
eligible for offering loans without collateral
security under Credit Guarantee Trust for
Micro and Small Enterprises (CGTMSE). This
year, we disbursed 563 loans worth ¥ 183 crore
which are covered under CGTMSE.

Your Bank also implemented the Covid relief
schemes introduced by the Government
initiative such as the PM Svanidhi Scheme -
Clean loan to street vendors with ticket size of
¥ 10,000/-. This year we disbursed 131 loans
under this scheme to street vendors.

The Atmanirbhar Gujarat Sahay Yojana
launched by the Government of Gujarat was
implemented in the Gujarat State. Under this

scheme, we disbursed loan amount of ¥ 32.25
lakh.

Financial Inclusion by way of funding
Microfinance and Self-Help Groups

Your Bank has always been supportive of
financial inclusion for individuals. This year too
we concentrated on upliftment of individuals
and women by catering to their financial needs
through Micro Finance and Self-Help Groups.

Your Bank gave loans to more than 4,500
Self-Help Groups, and 2,400 plus individual loans
under Micro Finance during current financial year.

We opened more than 4,600 Self-Help Group
accounts, which helped us additionally reach
several women across villages in Maharashtra
through our association with Mahila Arthik
Vikas Mahamandal (MAVIM) in this financial
year.

Loans disbursed under SHG finance during
FY 2020-21 stood at ¥ 105.56 crore as against
¥ 50.23 crore in FY 2019-20 - arise of 110%.

Table No.4: (X in crore)
SHG Loans 105.56 50.23
Micro Finance 11.90 11.48

117.46 61.71

The Micro Finance Clean Loan Scheme was
offered to all our customers, who were in
requirement of quick and immediate finance.
Total loans disbursed under Micro Finance
during FY 2020-21 amounted to ¥ 12 crore.

Performance of newly introduced initiatives:-

Business Development Vertical

The Business Development vertical was
started in July 2019, with the intention of
having a dedicated sales team across the
Bank. A dynamic and enthusiastic team of
more than 80 individuals is successfully
functioning under this vertical, in all areas - be
it customer service or business performance -
in most of our branches across Maharashtra.
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The members of this team are designated
as ‘Business Development Officers’. The
BDO team has been provided online/offline
training by specialized trainers in areas of
customer interactions, product knowledge
and technology products. The team is also
well-equipped with devices like tablets to
facilitate instant account opening and mobile
application which track their business and
enable faster customer service.

During the present financial year, the team
garnered a total business 0f ¥ 911 crore, which
includes Advances of % 653 crore, Deposits of
¥ 238 crore and third-party business of
¥ 20 crore as on 31t March, 2021. Together,
they contributed to around 20% of Bank's
retail advances portfolio for FY 2020-21.
The Business Development Officers have
contributed towards strengthening its retail/
commercial business portfolio to improve
its business proportion within the overall
business of the Bank.

The Bankintends to increase the team strength
of BDOs to over 300 employees in the next
year to strengthen overall focus on business
growth.

Product Development Team

Special attention on products that are being
offered to our customers is crucial to ensure
that they fit their need. Developing a new
product and making relevant changes in
the existing products from time to time is
important considering the ever-changing
customer behaviour, market trends, technology
and regulations.

Your Bank understands that every customer
is unique and so are their needs. To offer a
product to suit their requirement, we will be
introducing an expert team which will study
the market, consider various risk indicators
and propose a product that is the best fit at
best possible interest rates.

Key tie-ups for new products include collateral
free business loans under Credit Guarantee

Trust for Micro and Small Enterprise
(CGTMSE), Chief Minister's Employment
Generation  Program  (CMEGP), Prime
Minister's Employment Generation Program
(PMEGP), and Atmanirbhar Gujarat Sahay
Yojana (AGSY).

Customer Relations and Experience (CRE)
Customer  Relations and  Experience
Department is primarily concerned with
engaging with customers, attending to their
requests, resolving their queries/complaints, if
any, and thus creating a favourable experience
for the customers.

As the ongoing pandemic prevented
conducting of customer meets/events/direct
interactions with customers, the CRE team
depended heavily on tele-calling and emails to
reach out to customers.

* Attending to Customer Query/Requests
We attempted reaching out to more than
4.5 lakh customers by proactively calling
through our contact centre and could
connect with 1.5 lakh customers during
the FY 2020-21. This helped in garnering
around 20,000 business leads for the
Bank.

Customers too, have utilised the contact
center to resolve their queries/concerns.
During the FY 2020-21, we answered
1.26 lakh incoming calls/requests from
different customers.

E-mails have also been an ‘easy to connect’
option for the customers. During the year,
the team attended to more than 6,030
emails received from different customers.

The missed call option under ‘Sparsh’
also received more than 2,000 calls from
customers. All the queries of customers
have been satisfactorily resolved.

* Customer Re-engagement
Customer Relations &  Experience
Department took up the initiative to re-
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engage with over 95,000 customers
through an internal activity, ‘Customer
Re-engagement’. The objective of
this initiative was to interact with the
customers and ensure that they enjoy
seamless banking with us. Regular
interactions with the customers have
helped your Bank in improving customer
transactions while ensuring that there is
rise in CASA.

To engage with customers from different
segments, age groups, demographic
backgrounds, several initiatives like
‘Welcome Calling’ to new customers,
birthday wishes to minor customers as
they turn major, connecting with senior
citizens and professionals like Doctors,
Chartered Accountants was undertaken.

Efforts were alsotakentoreviveinoperative
accounts and accounts categorised under
Depositor Education and Awareness Fund
(DEAF) Scheme.

With a view to connect with our young
customers, Bank organised a “Bright
Minds” Competition, inviting the young
Picassos and Agatha Christies in drawing
and creative writing contests. We received
an overwhelming response and the
winners were awarded Gift Cards worth
% 1,000/- each.

Monitoring Customer Experience

Under ‘Operation Sparsh’, Bank this year
too, conducted mystery audits to monitor
if customer service standards are being
maintained across the branch network.
The aim of these audits was to ensure that
customers walking into branch receive the
desired service and attention uniformly at
all branches. This activity also aimed at
re-inforcing the importance of ‘May | Help
You' counters at the branches.

Based on the feedback of this audit, the
concept of ‘Lead Information Slip’ was

introduced and it was also ensured that
the ‘May | Help You’ counters effectively
guide the customers.

To re-emphasise the importance of
Customer Service, interactive training
sessions were organised for the branch
staff through external agency.

Third Party Products
The Third Party Product (TPP) sale is an
important source of income for increasing

overall

profitability as well as customer

stickiness for the banking industry. Bank has
entered into a tie-up arrangement with various
Insurance Partners with focus on specific
segments as under:

Table No.5:

Segment

Name of the Partner

LIFE

HDFC Life Insurance Co. Ltd. (HDFC Life)

Future Generali Life Insurance Co. Ltd.

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co, Ltd.

GENERAL

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. (BAGIC)

HDFC Ergo General Insurance Ltd.

HEALTH

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Manipal CIGNA Health Insurance Co. Ltd.

OTHERS

Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana

During the year 2020-21, your Bank has earned
revenue of ¥ 22.66 crore from sale of Third-
Party Insurance Products as under:

Table No.6:

(% in crore)

Insurance Business progress:

Premium Mobilised Revenue Generated

2020-21 2019-20° 2020-21 |2019-20
Life 95.74 81.88 17.82 11.21
Insurance
General 18.73 18.61 2.22 212
Insurance
Health 15.00 17.21 2.59 2.37
Other 0.24 0.24 0.03 0.04
Insurance
Total 129.71 117.94 22.66 15.74
Growth 10% 44%
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Pradhan Mantri Bima Yojana

Bank has extended Pradhan Mantri Bima
Yojana facility to its customers through
tie-up with HDFC Life Insurance Co Ltd.,
for Pradhan Mantri Jeevan Jyoti Bima
Yojana (PMJJBY). Your Bank also tied up
with New India Assurance Company Ltd.
for providing services under the Pradhan
Mantri Suraksha Bima Yojana (PMSBY).
Bank has earned an income of ¥ 0.03 crore
from this activity towards reimbursement
of expenses.

Mutual Fund

Your Bank had launched its Mutual Fund
distribution activity in January 2018 and
continued its mutual fund distribution
with HDFC Mutual Fund, LIC Mutual Fund,
L & T Mutual Fund, Nippon India Mutual
Fund, Aditya Birla Mutual Fund and ICICI
Prudential Mutual Fund.

During the financial year 2020-21, the
Bank achieved a net business of ¥ 25.33
crore and total AUM stood at ¥ 186.35
crore with earned income at¥ 1.12 crore.

Demat

Your Bank provides depository services
through both NSDL and CDSL. Over 1,347
new demat accounts were opened during
the year under review. Thus, total demat
accounts increased to 78,254 accounts as
on 31t March, 2021.

Bank supported IPOs through ASBA for
62 Equity, 25 Rights and 17 Debt Market
issues. Bank has received / processed
more than 80,000 IPO applications during
the year. The total revenue earned from
demat services during the year was ¥ 3.70
crore. This includes income of ¥ 73.86
lakh through the tie—up arrangement
with Religare Securities Ltd., for providing
online broking facility. More than 625
trading accounts have been opened during
the FY 2020-21.

Credit Card

Your Bank issues RuPay Platinum cards
in collaboration with National Payments
Corporation of India (NPCI). These credit cards
add to our foray of products and services
and are important for increasing overall
profitability. As on 31t March, 2021, Bank has
a card base of more than 28,000 cards with an
exposure of ¥ 30.93 crore.

A standout feature of your Bank's credit card
is the lowest interest rate in the industry and
exclusive rewards and cash back programmes
that we offer to our customers regularly. The
Bank will continue to explore the potential of
this business to improve profitability as well as
customer stickiness with our Bank.

Your Bank also offers you a secured credit card
backed by deposits, which is safe to use and
has no requirement of additional documents.
This facility is offered free of cost to our
customers.

Income recorded by Credit Card Department is
as under:

Table No.7: (R in lakh)
Particulars FY. FY.
2020-21 2019-20
Interest Income 336.10 290.59
Interchange Income 109.18 96.59
Other Income 158.79 142.95
Gross Income 604.07 530.13

(ii) Wholesale Banking

Due to pandemic impact and the strategic
decision of the Bank to mitigate the risk of
credit concentration viz. reducing exposure
in large value borrowal accounts, restricting
entry level exposures at a reasonable level,
restricting entry into large size consortium,
restricting exposures to existing borrowal
accounts by forming consortiums, the level
of wholesale advances reduced marginally.
Also, due to Covid-19, customers were
more cautious, resulting into large undrawn
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positions throughout the year. LCBD exposure
too declined.

The combined effect of the above factors
resulted in total wholesale advances ending
the year at¥12,686.52 crore.

(iii) Forex Business

Your Bank has the RBI license for foreign
exchange business since 1979. The Bank
caters to the foreign exchange requirements
of its customers through well-established nine
Forex Centres. Trade finance requirements
of the customers of SMEs and retail foreign
exchange requirements of customers of
branches are handled through these Forex
Centres. The Bank offers all the major foreign
exchange products to its customers.

During the year under review, foreign exchange
merchant turnover of the Bank stood at the
level of ¥ 30,227.50 crore. Export finance
outstanding as on 31 March, 2021 was at
the level of ¥ 1,469.32 crore. As export /
import trade activities during lockdown were
continued, handling of relevant documents
was a great challenge. However, your Bank has
successfully handled the adverse situation
and extended timely services to its customers.

Your Bank has NOSTRO accounts in ten major
currencies with leading international banks
and correspondent relations with a number of
banks acrossthe globe. Your Bank also handles
foreign exchange business of customers of
select co-operative banks which do not have
RBI license to deal in foreign exchange, under
line of credit sanctioned to them. During the
review year, lines of credit of ¥ 155 crore for
foreign exchange business were continued for
11 co-operative banks.

(iv) Treasury Operations
The Treasury Operations of any Bank have a
very crucial role to play in the day-to-day funds
management of the Bank. Your Bank has a
dedicated SBU — Treasury which undertakes
funds management and also plays an active

role in the optimum profitable investment of
surplus resources of the Bank. The crucial role
that the Treasury of your Bank has played is
reflected in the active contribution of SBU -
Treasury to the bottomline of the Bank, over
the years.

Duringthe year2020-21, softening of yields was
seen as Reserve Bank of India reduced repo
rates while maintaining an accommodative
stance, so as to spur the economy. The
Treasury team encashed on the favourable
market movements to generate substantial
trading profits. Besides, the core role of
compliance with the statutory requirements of
maintaining the stipulated Cash Reserve Ratio
(CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) was
also ensured seamlessly.

Your Treasury also deals in Foreign Exchange
and has ensured continuous support to
branches by providing spot and forward cover
operations for exports, imports, remittances,
etc. even during the lockdown period.

6. HUMAN RESOURCES

The HRD Department of your Bank has always
played an important role in aligning human
resources functions for the overall success of
the organization. The core function of your Bank’s
Human Resource Department is to be a strategic
business partner and key business driver by hiring
quality talent, developing, managing and retaining
them for the attainment of the organization’s
objectives. Recruitment of employees, extensive
training and development of existing employees,
devising new HR policies and processes,
motivation and retention of skilled employees
through job rotation, job enrichment and
empowerment, open communication, employee
counselling are the various activities undertaken
by the HRD Department on a regular basis.

Amidst the nationwide lockdown imposed
since March 2020, it was a challenge to ensure
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uninterrupted banking services to our customers.
The business continuity plan was invoked and
critical functions were undertaken throughout the
lockdown period thereby ensuring no business
disruptions. The Bank formed a Quick Response
Team to provide prompt and speedy solutions to
queries / grievances and various advisories were
issued from time to time regarding the various
HR initiatives viz. Work from Home, change in
working hours, alternate day working, special leave
to employees affected with Covid, deployment of
staff, etc. Even in such trying times, employees
of your Bank ensured seamless functioning of
branches and gave exceptional service to the
customers. In recognition of their efforts, 73
outstanding performers were presented a Badge
of Honour as “COVID WARRIORS” and given a cash
reward. This initiative not only helped in giving
recognition to the employees who did outstanding
work but also served as an inspiration to the
other employees. Special issue of the in-house
magazine “Madhusatva” was issued to recognise
the contribution of “COVID WARRIORS".

Some of the other major initiatives taken by the
HRD Department during the year are as under:

1. Upgradation from Grade B to Grade A:

In the Memorandum of Agreement and the
Memorandum of Settlement both dated 22
January, 2018, it was decided to upgrade the
employees who were in Grade B pay scale of
the Bank as on the date of the Agreement /
Settlement, to Grade A pay scale within a span
of three to five years, in phased manner. All
employees who have completed four years of
service in Grade B pay scale as on 31t March,
2020 were considered for upgradation in Grade
A w.e.f. 015t April, 2020, subject to acceptable
performance.

Accordingly, 93 employees who had completed
four or more years of service in Grade B pay
scale as on 31t March, 2020 were considered
for absorption in Grade A pay scale in the
accounting year.

2. Recruitment:

In view of your Bank's continued expansion
programme, for strengthening the Bank's
marketing and operations and also filling
the vacancies created by exit of some
employees, 231 employees were recruited
during the year, of which 3 are in Executive
cadre, 58 in Management cadre and 170 in
Non-management cadre. The new recruits
include 22 in Grade A and 209 in Grade B.
Lateral recruits, who have prior banking
experience with reputed nationalized / private
/ co-operative banks, were mainly recruited
for supporting new business initiatives,
critical and specialized roles requiring domain
expertise, and adding value to our existing
systems and thereby helping us in adopting
the best practices followed across the banking
industry.

Employee Strength:

Overall, your Bank’s employee strength
reduced by 4 during the year. 231 employees
were recruited during 2020-21 while 235
employees exited due to various reasons like
death, retirement, resignation and dismissal.

Table No.8:

Summary of Employees Recruited/ Exited during FY 2020-21

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2020 4,246
Number of Employees recruited during the 231
year

Sub-Total 4,477
Less the number of Employees who exited 235
during the year

Number of Employees as on 31.03.2021 4,242
Net reduction during the year 4

3. Learning and Development

Itis a skilled and robust workforce that lends an
organisation an edge over its peers in this era
of competition. Keeping this in view, the Bank
has always prioritised the need for training
or upskilling its employees, both through
in-house training at “Staff Learning Centre” as
also through external training programmes.
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Owing to pandemic situation, the SLC
conducted 79 training programmes in virtual
mode thus extending training to 2,314
employees of different cadres. The
programmes covered include Handling
Customers in Covid Era, Marketing of Bank’s
Products in Present Scenario, Motivation for
Work Excellence, Operation SPARSH-Engaging
Customer... a ‘New Way of Life’, Financing
MSME, Credit Monitoring, Monitoring of
Overdues and NPA Recovery, Information
Security and Cyber Security, Developing Sales
and Service Culture at branches, Preventive
Measures in Branch Operations, Digital
Products, Refresher programmes for lobby
coordinators, KYC/AML/CFT guidelines and
compliance in Bank, Orientation Programme
for Laterally Recruited officials and Induction
Programme for newly recruited Junior Officers.
Besides imparting training, the SLC also
supports the self-learning culture by
conducting periodic online tests, publishing
learning nuggets and contributing articles in
banking and finance, ‘Test your Banking
Knowledge' column in in-house magazine of
the Bank ‘Madhusatva'.

External Training Programmes

Your Bank has endeavoured to provide the
best learning opportunities to its employees.
During the year, your Bank deputed 101
officials to external training programmes/
seminars to reputed institutions/organisations
such as CAFRAL, NIBM, FEDAI, IIBF, IDRBT, IBA,
CRISIL, Confederation of Indian Industry (Cll),
Bombay Chamber of Commerce & Industry
(BCCI). A wide range of topics were covered
during these training programmes including IT
& Cyber Security, Trade Finance, Asset Liability
Management, Risk Management in Banks,
MSME Lending, Leadership as also Covid-19
related stress in borrowal accounts, to name a
few.

Such training exposure has helped your Bank
to acquire valuable inputs on latest
developments from specialized training

institutes which will eventually enhance the
operational efficiency of the employees.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk Managementis the process of identifying,
assessing and controlling threats to an
organization’s capital and earnings. Your Bank
has a Risk Management Department, independent
of business functions, which helps in identifying,
monitoring and measuring the risk profile of the
Bank and helps to maintain a healthy trade-off
between risk and returns. As per the RBI guidance
note for Management of Operational, Credit and
Market Risk, there should be an ideal organizational
set-up for reporting of risk issues of the Bank.

To complete risk management organizational
structure, your Bank has formed an integrated Risk
Management Committee (RMC), which is a Board
level committee empowered with full responsibility
of evaluating overall risks faced by the Bank,
determine the level of risks which will be in the
best interests of the Bank and to take a holistic
view of the risk management function in the Bank.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk or potential risk that may
occur due to failure of borrower/counterparty
to meet the obligations on agreed terms and
conditions of financial contract. All credit
risk management related aspects regarding
identification, measurement, monitoring and
control of the credit risk exposures are governed
by Bank’s Credit Risk Management Policy which is
approved by the Board of Directors.

To assess and combat the adverse impact of
Covid-19 pandemic on quality of credit portfolio of
your Bank, Credit Risk Management Team during
the year under review undertook extensive study
on industry wise portfolio for major industries.
Industry Outlooks were assigned considering the
overall market effect and revival horizon of the
industry. These measures are being monitored and
reviewed at regular intervals by the team to help
in maintaining and improving the quality of credit
portfolio of your Bank.
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Operational Risk

As one of the leading UCBs, your Bank has
recognized that there is an impending need to
establish an ORM Department within the Bank,
understand operational risks and impact on the
Bank as a whole.

Having sustained in this volatile and highly
competitive financial sector for over 100 years, the
Bank’s focus area is on building and strengthening
its Operational Risk arm.

This system helps in early identification of process
and control gaps to focus on strengthening its
controls culture. It also helps in creating operations
Loss Database and recording near-miss events as
required under Basel norms.

To have an integrated risk management approach,
your Bank has an Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC) which meets regularly for early
identification, assessment, monitoring, prevention
and mitigation of operational risks. It has helped in
identifying gaps and improving business processes
and thus reducing risk involved. Bank also has
a dedicated committee viz Product Evaluation
Committee to recognise new risks involved before
launch of any new product or process.

Your Bank also has an Outsourcing Policy in place
to keep a check on the activities performed by third
party and the risks from the same.

Your Bank also has an effective Fraud Risk
Management (FRM) framework which serves as
a check to prevent frauds from occurring/early
detection of frauds and effective response to
frauds when they occur. As part of an organization’s
governance structure, Bank has FRM Cell for
monitoring digital channels like Debit cards, Credit
cards, UPI etc.

Your Bank is also in the process of implementation
of enterprise-wise fraud risk management tool.
This tool will facilitate robust cross channel
monitoring of all digital products.

Market Risk

The Market Risk activities in case of your Bank
primarily focus on the management of Liquidity
Risk which arises because of Asset Liability
mismatches. Your Bank also takes care of Interest
Rate Risk which arises because of changing
market rate scenarios.

Your Bank has in place an Asset Liability
Management Committee which meets every
month to take a view on the interest rate and
liquidity gap position of the Bank in the backdrop
of the prevailing trend in the economy.

The Liquidity Risk Profile and Mismatch Profile of
your Bank are studied using various monitoring
tools. The adverse impact of interest rate
movements (if any) on the investment portfolio of
your Bank is also studied periodically.

The Risk Management Team of your Bank
endeavors to adopt the best practices in Risk
Management to counter the dynamic economic
scenario.

INTERNAL AUDIT DEPARTMENT

Your Bank’s Internal Audit Department (IAD)
continues to function as an effective tool of control
and compliance by putting in place a detailed risk
assessment and audit planning process, under
the able guidance of the Audit Committee of the
Board (ACB) and in line with the Audit Charter and
Audit Policy. All the branches and departments
are thus covered by both concurrent audit by well-
experienced Chartered Accountant firms as well
as annual internal inspection conducted by Bank’s
internal audit team.

IAD has implemented a system to monitor
compliance to the audit observations made by
external concurrent auditors as well as internal
inspection team. Status of compliance is reviewed
meticulously to ensure timeliness, accuracy and
completeness of compliance and is reported to the
ACB.
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IAD endeavours to continuously improve the
quality and effectiveness of audit by way of
continuous training and upgradation of skills,
rotation of internal and external auditors, rating
of external audit firms and also assigning audit
ratings to branches and other operating units post
completion of audits.

The audits of Internal Audit Department can be
broadly classified as:

e Transaction Audit: During the year 2020-21,
the Department has undertaken 304 internal
inspections of the operating units (Branches
and Departments) of the Bank covering all
aspects of banking functions.

* Credit Portfolio Audit (CPA): Considering
the inherent risk in large commercial loans,
your Bank undertakes Credit Portfolio Audit.
Commercial loans with exposure of ¥ 5 crore
and above are covered under such audits
to ensure credit risk and compliance risk
management.

e Internal Control Assessment: IAD has carried
out risk assessment and identified the critical
processes of Branches and Departments.
These processes have been subjected to
Process Audits carried out by experienced
Chartered Accountant firms as external
auditors.

These audits were conducted on the basis of
Internal Financial Controls framework by
documenting risk and controls associated
with each process in the Bank and testing of
these controls annually. This ongoing process
of embedding the controls for mitigation of the
risks, ensures the robustness of the Systems
and Procedures and provides assurance to
the Management and stakeholders about the
necessary comfort on internal controls and
overall compliance.

* IT-IS Audits: Your Bank has an Information
Security Policy and Cyber Security Policy in
place and has formulated a dedicated team
to oversee and ensure Information Security.

An independent IT- IS audit is ensured by
IAD which includes the risk assessment
of emerging digital banking products and
automated systems and processes. Your Bank
has appointed CERT-IN empanelled security
assessment firms having well-qualified and
experienced SO 27001 LA certified, CISAs,
CISMs, etc for ensuring quality and relevance
of Information Systems Audit.

The broad coverage of IS Audits includes
Core Banking Processes, Treasury System,
Demat (NSDL/CDSL), Cyber Security audit,
e-KYC system audit and IT critical processes.
IS audit also included the audit of migration
to new Core Banking Solution which covered
Pre-Migration System security assessment,
functional audit and Data Migration audit.

New Initiatives - RBIA Audit :

IAD acts as the third line of defence by broadly
assessing and contributing to the overall
improvement of the organization’s internal
controls, governance, risk management, and
control processes using a systematic and
disciplined approach. For the said purpose, as
a proactive approach, your Bank had initiated
Project ‘NIYANTRAN' related to Risk Based Internal
Audit (RBIA) in the year 2019-20. RBIA is an audit
approachwherein IAD pre-emptively performs arisk
assessment — to identify existing / future inherent
risks within Bank’'s operations and categorise
them qualitatively (High, Medium and Low) and
quantitatively (through scores) - and prioritise
audit areas on the basis of its risk perception such
that higher risk areas are audited more frequently
as compared to lesser risk areas, thus achieving
the objective of optimised use of audit resources.
RBIA has now been made mandatory by RBI for all
Primary Urban Co-operative Banks vide its circular
dated 3 February, 2021.

IAD has reviewed the RBIA risk assessment
methodology for the various identified critical
processes to ensure that new and emerging
risks and controls are covered in assessments.
Additionally, a centralised off-site monitoring
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mechanism has been put in place. This centralised
monitoring of audit compliances will help in
cutting down the onsite audit time schedules and
also bring uniformity in audit perspective as well
as reporting.

VIGILANCE

Your Bank has a robust Vigilance Department
which believes that “Prevention is always better
than cure” and undertakes vigilance activities in a
pro-active and pre-emptive manner. The
Department undertakes incognito branch visits
to verify adherence to the Reserve Bank of India
guidelines as well as the Bank's internal rules,
regulations and guidelines. It undertakes scrutiny
of various types of transactions, especially any
unusual transactions to detect suspicious/
fraudulent nature of transactions. Such
transactions as well as incidences of lapses / staff
negligence are analysed and awareness is created
amongst the staff, so that such events do not recur.
The Department educates and spreads awareness
amongst staff members by issuing circulars /
uploads on the ‘Employee Portal’, circulating the
modus operandi of various types of frauds that
have occurred in your Bank and in banking industry
along with the precautions to be taken to thwart
recurrence of similar instances of frauds.

Your Vigilance Department thus undertakes
detectivevigilance, punitive vigilance and corrective
vigilance and reports the findings and the status of
follow-up of such findings to the Board and the top
management of the Bank. Other major activities
at Vigilance Department include timely reporting
of fraud cases and counterfeit notes detected at
branches to RBI. From this year, your Bank has also
commenced reporting of payment related frauds
to RBI through their Electronic Data Submission
Portal.

DIGITAL BANKING

Digital technologies have become an integral part
of the banking industry as they provide a touchless
experience and increase convenience. Digital

banking has become all the more relevant in the
prevailing pandemic situation.

Your Bank has always embraced the Digital-First
approach and strategically formed the ‘Digital
Banking Department’ a few years ago to embrace
digitalization across the institution by adopting
emerging technologies and newer business
models, considering the continuously evolving
digital domain.

Graph No. 3:

Share of Digital Transactions

@ Digital 87%
Cash 2%
Clearing 5%

B Transfer 6%

Inthe prevailing scenario, your Bank provided digital
services to its customers by leveraging technology
through Contactless-Banking. The dependence on
the digital platforms has increased by leaps and
bounds. We are very proud to announce that the
Bank has reached a percentage of 87% of digital
transactions during the last financial year.

Your Bank strives for industry-best products
considering the future banking trends with robust
infrastructure, latest technologies and effective
project management. As a result, your Bank
today has a bouquet of over 30 digital products/
services which are being used by all categories of
customers.

* Bank on WhatsApp: Your Bank is First in
co-operative banking sector to launch its
services on WhatsApp. At Bank on WhatsApp,
Bank’s customers can use the widely used
social media platform i.e. WhatsApp to check
balance, request for last 10 transactions,
look for information and raise any query by
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selecting different services in the application.
Registrations for Bank on WhatsApp have
increased by 23% over the last year.

Bank on TAB: Bank started the ‘Bank on Tab’
service in 2018 which is based on Aadhaar
Authentication through which customer
accounts can be opened instantaneously.
Your Bank is one of the very few entities in
the industry which uses IRIS (Retina Scan)
Authentication for the account opening. This
was another giant step towards conducting
banking business in a paperless and secured
manner. Out of all the accounts opened in
last financial year, 49% accounts were opened
through TAB.

Mobile Banking: Your Bank has made
available a state of the art Mobile Banking
App “GOMOQ” for its customers. Your Bank's
Mobile Banking has enabled the customers
to access the Bank’s services on their own
with incredible ease from wherever they have
mobile connectivity. This application has seen
arise of 14% in registrations this year.

Unified Payment Interface (UPI): Your Bank
is already live on UPI platform. UPI is an
interoperable instant funds transfer platform
developed by National Payments Corporation
of India (NPCI) which enables our Bank's
customers to access banking services
24X7. Through UPI, customers can send and
receive funds online through any UPI-based
application. Your Bank registered a record
increase of 126% in UPI transactions during
the financial year 2020-21.

Saraswat Bank 100+: Your Bank introduced
Saraswat Bank 100+, a multilingual mobile
application for online account opening through
smartphones. Saraswat Bank 100+ enables
potential customers to open an account within
3 minutes through PAN, Aadhaar and OTP
from customer’s own device. Also, it allows
customers to choose desired account number.

- Gift Card: The Gift Card is an innovative
form of prepaid payment instruments and a
perfect instrument for individual as well as for
corporate gifting. Your Bank is the first bank
in the co-operative sector to offer Gift Cards
to its customers. Your Bank is also the leading
issuer of gift cards in the co-operative banking
space. This year, Bank witnessed a huge rise
in the issuance and crossed a figure of 75,000,
i.e. an increase of 299%.

- National Electronic Toll Collection (NETC):
Your Bank started issuance of NETC FASTags
in association with NPCI (National Payments
Corporation of India) to its Current account
holders. Through these tags, customers make
national highway toll payments at toll plazas
through RFID (Radio Frequency Identity)
technology. NETC transactions increased by
208% and issuance increased by 200% over
the last year.

Your Bank also offers other digital banking
services such as Saraswat Quick Pay (Referral
model), POS (Point of Sale) Services (Referral
model), QR (Quick Response) Solutions
(Referral model), Missed Call & SMS Banking,
Debit Cards, ATMs & Cash Recyclers, E-lobby,
Aadhaar Enabled Payment System (AEPS),
etc.

The Bank has also moved to an enhanced
version of Internet Banking and Corporate
Internet Banking platform thereby providing an
improved internet banking experience to our
clients.

11. ADVERTISING, ALLIANCES AND CORPORATE
COMMUNICATIONS

Your Bank has adopted novel and innovative
communication strategies in this pandemic-struck
year, to remain connected with its customers and
maintain the ideal brand and product positioning in
the new normal. Your Bank, through effective brand
and product communications - both traditional and
new media - ensures it reaches the right audience
to the last mile.
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Various communication means, as below were
adopted during the year:

- Expression of gratitude to all the stakeholders,
i.e. customers, shareholders and employees
via print media in major publications across
regions on the occasion of the Bank’s
Foundation Day on 14" September, 2020.

- Creation of a short audio-visual film in
association with Shri Mahesh Manjrekar to laud
the efforts put in by various Covid warriors viz.
medical staff, policemen, sanitation workers,
essential personnel, and the Municipal
Corporation during the pandemic.

« Usage of 360-degree media communications
- Print, Radio, Digital, Outdoor, and TV (with a
specially designed TV commercial) to promote
our lowest interest rates on loans.

« Establishing Bank's presence on Linkedin.
The addition of LinkedIn will help your Bank
to reach a new set of audience, augmenting
its digital reach manifold. Your Bank currently
has lakhs of dedicated followers on its official
Facebook, Twitter, Instagram and YouTube
channels.

- Displaying the Bank’'s advertisement at the
Vijay Sales outlets

«  Exploring communication through large media
formats, by displaying Bank's advertisements
at the Mumbai Metro.

« Enabling of digital displays showcasing Bank’s
key communications related to products,
services, important notices, advertisements,
interest rates, etc and so on at around 90
branches.

- Tie-up with leading retailers to extend festival
offers on electronics, groceries, etc.

« Offering cashback to customers on fuel
surcharge, Utility Bill payments, and online
shopping to give back to the customer and in
turn improve customer stickiness.

« Promoting of products by partnering with
a leading show ‘Majha Maharashtra Digital

Maharashtra’ on ABP Majha, a special platform
created to get experts to discuss/debate
and spread knowledge about the important
aspects of digital technology and its impact on
daily life. This year, your Bank associated with
the show to talk about its digital services and
the E-fraud prevention initiatives taken by the
Bank.

« Launch of a customer safety initiative -‘Jo
Satark Wohi Surakshit’, a customer education
video that educates individuals to stay vigilant
and safe from cyberattacks.

12. STATUS OF PROJECT UDAAN

Saraswat

PROJECT UDAAN

Your Bank had, a year ago, announced Project
Udaan — the Bank’s ambitious plan to migrate to a
new Core Banking System. The need to migrate to
a new CBS was taken in line with the larger
organizational goal of business growth and the
consequent need for a more robust, agile and
scalable CBS.

Based on the in-depth assessment, your Bank then
finalized Finacle, the Core Banking Solutions (CBS)
system offered by M/s Edgeverve Systems Ltd., a
wholly owned subsidiary of Infosys. The inherent
functionalities and the capabilities of Finacle were
the deciding factors in finalizing Finacle as our
CBS system. Also, Finacle is being used by several
large PSU & Private banks and has a strong market
reputation for itself in all segments.

Under the Finacle Project, a simultaneous and
integrated transformation was also planned
across other banking channels viz. Digital Banking,
Treasury Operations etc. apart from branch
banking. During the year under review, your Bank
undertook functional testing across all the multiple
modules in Finacle as well as tested its seamless
integration with other applications.
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We have finally gone live on Finacle Core Banking
Solutions on 26™ April, 2021. The adoption of
Finacle has been undertaken in an integrated
manner across all the verticals of the Bank and
has enabled the Bank to enhance its service
offerings across Retail, Wholesale, Treasury and
Digital Banking verticals. The new CBS system
has enhanced the overall banking experience by
supporting our personalised front desk services.
The shift to a new Core Banking System has come
at the right time, considering the future growth
prospects of the Bank. However, there are also
few teething issues which happen usually at the
beginning of implementation of any project of such
magnitude and scale. Your IT team is continuously
monitoring these issues and providing resolution
for the same. We are confident that the inherent
functionalities and capabilities of Finacle will be
able to scale up and support the Bank’s business
for years to come.

INFORMATION SECURITY

The Information Security Department s
responsible for ensuring effective implementation
of information and cyber security in the Bank. The
Department has taken various initiatives to
ensure due diligence by implementing appropriate
security controls within your Bank’s environment
like next generation firewalls, anti-rogue, anti-
phishing, anti-malware, data loss prevention and
internet access control.

The Department undertakes / participates in cyber
resilience simulation exercises and carries out all
types of vulnerability assessments regularly, aiding
your Bank to proactively gauge and enhance the
preparedness of Information and Cyber Security
solutions. The Department endeavored to ensure
that employees of the Bank, from any cadre,
undertook training or awareness programs in
information and cyber security. It also provided
awareness to customers and larger audiences by
various means like Bank’s website, SMS Campaign
or Social Media Channels (Facebook, Instagram,
Twitter) and shared a video titled Na, No, Never!
on YouTube, in public interest — sensitizing people
about never sharing sensitive details with any

14.

stranger. Our branches also have information
and cyber security awareness posters placed at
strategic locations for maximum visibility. There
was also a representation of Information and
Cyber Security preparedness of your Bank for the
"Majha Maharashtra, Digital Maharashtra” event
conducted by ABP Majha.

An Information Security Committee has been
constituted for strategy and governance to ensure
an effective and holistic implementation of robust
and comprehensive Information Security controls
around people, process, and technology. During
the Financial Year 2020-21, four meetings of the
Committee were held.

SPECIAL CREDIT MONITORING CELL (SCMC)

Special Credit Monitoring Cell (SCMC) of your Bank
is instrumental in monitoring of the commercial
borrowal accounts which are under stress i.e. in
other words, Special Mention Accounts (SMAs).
Early identification of stressed accounts helps
in taking timely remedial action to avoid their
potential slippage into NPAs. These accounts
are reviewed at SCMC at regular intervals and
appropriate corrective action plan is formulated
for ensuring upgradation of such borrowers within
a reasonable timeframe.

RBI vide its notification on “Reporting of Large
Exposures to Central Repository of Information on
Large Credits (CRILC)-UCBs” dated 27" December
2019, has made a reference about various
categories of Special Mention Accounts.

Position of SMA accounts having exposure of T 1
crore & above year-on-year basis is as under:-

Table No. 9:
31.03.2020 31.03.2021
No of Exposure No of Exposure
borrowers™ (R Incrore)) borrowers (% In crore)
SMA-2 8 83 15 85
SMA-1 36 487 86 862

There is rise in SMA-2 portfolio from < 83 crore to
¥ 85 crore and SMA-1 portfolio from ¥ 487 crore to
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¥ 862 crore, which is mainly on account of Covid-19
pandemic.

Position of SMA accounts having exposure below
3 1 crore is as under:-

Table No.10:
31.03.2021
No. of borrowers Exposure (3 In crore)
SMA-2 1486 148
SMA-1 4521 524

RBI has announced various relief measures
with the objective to mitigate the burden of debt
servicing brought about by disruptions on account
of Covid-19 pandemic and to ensure the continuity
of viable businesses. Your Bank has also framed
policies in pursuance of the RBI circulars dated
August 6,2020 pertaining to “Resolution Framework
for Covid-19 related stress” and “Restructuring of

Administrative systems. Restrictions on transport
and movement, personal assemblies and closure
of physical courts further hampered recovery
actions. Your Bank, too, faced several impediments
in disposing of properties taken under possession
and obtaining orders from various Courts, DRT,
CMM / DM and NCLT for cases filed under various
statutes.

Amidst anticipation of rise in NPAs, your Bank
undertook a shift in perspective during the year -
from “Lending & Investing money” to “Recovering
money”. Recovery teams were directed to
re-calibrate their strategies and focus on “Quick
Recovery” as the key result area. Multiple
alternative approaches were explored to ensure
early closures of delinquencies and acceleration
of cash recovery. Various soft-recovery options
like voluntary repayments, restructuring, weed-out,

MSME Advances”. compromise settlements, OTS funding from ARC/
PE funds and sale of properties through mutual
consent were advocated instead of legal recourse

to catalyze the recovery process.

SCMC in co-ordination with Retail Credit Monitoring
Cell hasimplemented restructuring of the accounts
for borrowers facing stress on account of Covid-19.
Details of accounts restructured under the above
schemes are as under:-

Your Bank formed a team of specialist Retail
Recovery Officers (RROs) to perceive, prevent,

Table No.11: rehabilitate and recover the NPAs in Retail Loans
SBU-Retail SBU-Wholesale and Credit Cards, the pilot execution of which was
No.of  Exposure No.of  Exposure started in Mumbai, Pune and Nagpur.
Borrowers (Zincrore) Borrowers (3 in crore)
Resolution 204 96 12 495 A concerted and strenuous team-effort by the
Framework officers of the Recovery and NPA Management
for Covid-19 .
related stress Department resulted in commendable
Restructuring 82 150 8 109 performance in the recovery of NPAs. A total
of MSME reduction of ¥ 357.91 crore was registered in
Advances the Gross NPAs that were outstanding as on
Total 376 246 20 604

31t March, 2020 of which NPAs of ¥ 103.98 crore
were reduced due to prudential write-off.

These accounts are closely monitored by SCMC to
ensure revival within the stipulated timeframe. Hence, despite new NPAs of ¥ 306.38 crore
classified during this year, total Gross NPAs of your
Bank reduced significantly from ¥ 1,249.80 crore
to ¥ 1,200.58 crore during 2020-21. Resultantly,
the Gross NPA ratio has also reduced from 4.93%
1o 4.58% and Net NPA ratio reduced from 1.56% to

1.04%.

15. MOVEMENT OF NPAs

Non-Performing Assets:
During FY 2020-21, the pandemic situation posed
several constraints to the Regulatory, Judiciary and
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Movement of NPAs and Provisions during the year
was as under:

16. CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO - CRAR
Capital Adequacy Ratio as on 31t March, 2021 is

your Bank is against future unforeseen losses.

Table No.12: R in crore) 14.26% as against 14.75% as on 31t March, 2020.
PARTICULARS AMOUNT
ADVANCES AS ON 31.03.2021 26,241.70 Table No.13: R in crore)
As on 31t March, 2020 1,249.80 . .
Capital-Tier |
As on 315t March, 2021 1,200.58
PROVISIONS a. Share Capital (a) 304.05 285.22
As on 31st March, 2020 834.20 b. Reserves and Surplus
st
As on 31% March, 2021 898.56 Statutory Reserve 912.59 843.09
NET NPAs
31 March, 2020 156% Other Reserves 1,192.45 1,116.29
315t March, 2021 1.04% Profit and Loss Account 168.14 215.85
PROVISION COVERAGE RATI0 Sub-Total (b) 227318  2,175.23
31%t March, 2020 66.75%
31+ March. 2021 2 2.840% Gross Tier | Capital (a+b) 2,577.23 2,460.45
Less: Intangible assets &
Recovery in written off accounts: losses 2L 271.01
Your Bank has recovered ¥ 5.28 crore from written
off NPA accounts during earlier years. Considering Net Tier | Capital (A) 2,327.58  2,189.44
that the prospects of recovery in such accounts Capital-Tier Il
devoid of any secured assets are very remote, your
. . Revaluation Reserve 272.87 281.65
Bank has recovered this amount with all-round
recovery efforts. General Provisions 133.91 131.02
i i i Investment Fluctuation
Recoyery made in written off accounts directly 30035 23035
contribute to your Bank'’s Profit. Reserve
Provision Coverage Ratio: Subordinated Debts 671.82 810.78
Your Bank follows a prudent policy for making Tier Il Capital (B) 1,378.95 1,453.80
provisions on NPAs as per regulatory IRAC norms. ;
While strictly adhering to the regulatory norms, your Total Capital Funds (A+B) 3,706.53 3,643.24
Bank also makes additional provision, over and above Risk Assets
the required amounts. This year, additional provision ] -
. . i. Funded Risk Assets 22,898.74 21,957.28
on this account is to the tune of ¥ 190.31 crore.
o ) ii. Non-funded Risk Assets 952.21 1,014.14
Resultantly, the Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR),
ich indi i isi iii. Risk Weighted Assets for
which indicates the ratio of provisions made by the .9 2146.25 1724.93
Bank against NPAs, as on 31t March, 2021 improved market risk
significantly to 74.84% over the previous year's Total Risk Weighted Assets
66.75%. Higher PCR reflects better provisions made (i+ii+iii) 25,997.20  24,696.35
against the NPAs and is an indicator of how protected
Capital Adequacy Ratio % 14.26 14.75
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17. APPROPRIATIONS

We propose the following appropriations from the

Net Profit for FY 2020-21:

Table No.14: % in lakh)

Transfer to Reserve Fund (25%) 6,756.12  6,269.87
Contingency Reserve (10%) 2,702.45  2,507.95
Provision for Education Fund of 270.25 250.79
N.C.U.L.(1%)

Dividend on PNCPS @10.50% 571.66

Dividend on equity shares @20% 4,670.00

Provision for Ex-gratia to 4,536.00 3,100.00
employees @20%

Members’ Welfare Fund 50.00 50.00
Provision for Staff Welfare 10.00 10.00
Provision for Public, Charitable & 270.25 250.79
Co-operative Purposes (1%)

Investment Fluctuation Reserve 5,000.00 7,000.00
Special Reserve 2,000.00 2,000.00
General Reserve 185.00 3,639.67
Balance to be c/f to the next year 120.69 117.95
Total 27,142.42 25,197.02

Dividend on Equity Shares

Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend of
20% for the year ended 315t March, 2021 on Equity

Shares.

Dividend on Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference

Shares (PNCPS)

Your Board of Directors recommends a Dividend
of 10.50% for the year ended 315t March, 2021 on
Perpetual Non-Cumulative Preference Shares.

Members Welfare Fund

Your Board of Directors recommends contribution
of ¥ 50 lakh towards Members Welfare Fund. After
this accretion, the total amount in this fund will
be ¥ 1,373.50 lakh. During the year, 855 members
availed reimbursement of expenses towards
medical treatment and medical check-up. Nine
awards were granted to meritorious children of
members.

Ex-gratia to Employees

We propose that an Ex-gratia payment at the rate of
20% be granted to our employees for the financial
year ending 31t March, 2021.

Provision for Public Charitable and Co-operative
Purposes

As permitted under RBI Circular No. UBD. (PCB)/
BPD/Cir/43 dated 11*" April, 2005, your Board
recommends an appropriation of 1% of the net
profit i.e. ¥ 270.25 lakh for public, charitable and
co-operative purposes.

Special Reserve

In accordance with Section 36(1)(viii) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961, urban co-operative banks
are entitled to a deduction in respect of profits
earned from eligible business i.e. profits earned
from loans and advances granted to industries,
infrastructure, agriculture and housing. Twenty
per cent of such profits transferred to a Special
Reserve are eligible for deduction from taxable
income. Your Board, therefore, recommends an
amount of ¥ 2,000 lakh to be appropriated out
of profits derived from the said eligible business
towards Special Reserve.

Payout of Dividend on Perpetual Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares (PNCPS) for the year ended
31t March, 2020

For the financial year 2019-20, the Bank did not
undertake payment of dividend on Perpetual Non-
Cumulative Preference Shares (PNCPS) in line
with RBI Circular No RBI / 2019-20/218 dated
17% April, 2020 advising banks not to make any
dividend payouts from the profits pertaining to
financial year ended 31t March, 2020. The Bank
however approached the Reserve Bank of India
seeking permission to undertake the said dividend
payment to PNCPS holders.

Subsequently, the Bank received permission for
payout of the PNCPS dividend amount from RBI
vide e-mail dated 29" December 2020. The PNCPS
dividend was kept as ‘PNCPS Dividend Payable’ for
an amount of ¥ 5.72 crore @10.50%. Now, subject
to the approval in the ensuing General Body
Meeting, the ‘PNCPS Dividend Payable’ will be paid
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19.

to the PNCPS shareholders for the financial year
2019-20.

AMENDMENTS TO BANK'S BYE-LAWS

The proposed amendments during the year are :
Deletion of Bye-law No. 5(e)(vii)
The Bye-law No. 5(e)(vii) states that:

“The purchasing and selling of bonds, scrips or
other forms of securities on behalf of constituents
or others, the negotiating of loans and advances;”

Our Bank does not undertake any transaction on
behalf of Portfolio Management Scheme (PMS)
clients in their fiduciary capacity, and on behalf
of other clients, either as custodians of their
investments or purely as their agents. However,
it was observed that the said Bye-law is not in
accordance with instructions contained in para
3.1 of RBI Master Circular DCBR. BPD ( PCB) MC.
No. 4/16.20.000/2015-16 dated 1st July, 2015,
which prohibits Urban Co-operative Banks from
undertaking any transactions on behalf of Portfolio
Management Scheme (PMS clients) in their
fiduciary capacity, and on behalf of other clients,
either as custodian of their investments or purely
as their agents. Hence, it is proposed to delete the
Bye- Law No 5(e)(vii).

AWARDS

Awards not only acknowledge success but they
also recognise an organization’s ability, struggles
and above all efforts. For your Bank, it has been
raining awards and these awards are spurring us
to keep on forging ahead with renewed vigour and
enthusiasm.

e Forbes 2021 Global Survey
Your Bank has, for the second consecutive
year in a row, been recognized by Forbes in
its Global Survey of World’s Best Banks. It
has been included in the list of World's Best
Banks 2021 Survey. Forbes is a prestigious
American business magazine well-known for
its coverage on business, technology, financial
markets, etc. Forbes has partnered with market

research firm Statista to produce the list of the
World's Best Banks so as to measure the best
Banks in 23 countries. The survey compiled
data from around 40,000 customers around
the globe for their opinions on their current and
former banking relationships. This is indeed a
proud moment for us and we will continue to
strive to maintain the level of trust reposed in
us by our customers.

Awards on the technological / digital / cyber
security front

Your Bank received the awards of Best Digital
Bank and Best ePayments Initiative in Large
UCB category at the Banking Frontiers' Co-
operative Banking Awards (FCBA) 2020 held
online, on 23" January 2021. Your Bank was
also awarded the prestigious Winner’'s Award
for ‘The Best Technology Bank’ and ‘The
Best IT Risk and Cyber Security Initiatives’
and was adjudged Runner-Up for ‘The Best
Digital Financial Inclusion’ in the Co-operative
Banks’ category at the 16" Indian Banks’
Association (IBA) Technology Awards 2021.
These Awards were conferred on your Bank
at a virtual event held on 17" March, 2021.
The Bank scored a hattrick by winning in all
the three segments in the Co-operative Banks’
category. It also managed to set a unique
record by winning ‘The Best Technology Bank'’
Award for the 5" year in a row! Your Bank
has also won the prestigious 'Resilient CISO
Award' in the Annual Dynamic CISO Excellence
Award 2021. The Awards were decided by
eminent juries consisting of distinguished
professionals in the area of Banking and
Finance. The Bank received this recognition
for its continuous efforts in implementing
innovative technology, best security practices
and IT risk management across enterprise
wide networks and digital channels, and
innovative digital products such as TAB
Banking, Bank on WhatsApp etc. Your Bank
has always placed emphasis on penetration of
digital products and has experienced a great
increase in digital transactions in the last few
years. These Awards underscore the efforts
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taken by the Bank and boost the team to
achieve more such accolades.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

Your Bank believes that an essential part of
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is to
care for society at large and demonstrate it in
terms of constructive philanthropy towards
meaningful initiatives. Your Bank is aware of its
social responsibilities and has, from time to time,
extended service and contribution to the society
while supporting initiatives that have the potential
to make a difference to human life.

During the year under review, the world has
witnessed a once - in - a century pandemic. Our
country has been one of the worst impacted
countries and efforts at all levels — whether by
Government or private players — have been taken
to counter the impact of the pandemic on society.
Our State of Maharashtra, in particular, has been
severely affected and the situation on the ground
has been grim indeed. Taking a serious note of
the situation across the State and in tandem
with our deep and abiding commitment to the
cause of Maharashtra, your Bank donated an
amount of Rupees One Crore towards the Chief
Minister’s Fund for Covid Relief. This corpus is
being utilized by the State Government towards
implemention and execution of various plans and
policies towards Covid relief, setting up of Covid
relief centres, quarantine and isolation centres,
and providing medical assistance to the Covid-
impacted poor and needy people.

During FY 2019-20, we have also extended a
donation of an amount of ¥ 3 lakh towards
Cricketers' Foundation Trust. The Trust had
approached the Bank for funds toward raising a
corpus for financial and medical assistance to old,
retired and needy persons who have contributed
towards Mumbai Cricket, especially for their
medical and other major needs.

During the year under review, your Bank distributed
donations 0f¥33.07 lakhsto 263 worthy institutions
under its "Runanubandh Sohala" initiative.

21.

22.

OTHER DEVELOPMENTS

Your Bank has always taken an active interest
in reaching out to customers and educating
prospective customers and investors about
banking and finance. During the period under
review, your Bank organized a free educational
seminar for various co-operative credit societies
in Sindhudurg District, on various topics like
changing aspects of the financial world, need
for digital banking, importance of co-operative
credit societies, various types of loan and deposit
products, analyzing loan proposals as well as on
topics like customer service, communication skills
and team work.

ELECTION OF THE BOARD

The present Board of Directors of the Bank was
elected for a period of five years on 06" August,
2016. Hence, it is necessary to start the election
process to elect the Board of Directors of the
Bank for a period of five years i.e. 2021-2026 as
per Bye-law No. 56 of the Bank, Section 45 of
Multi-State Co-op. Societies Act, 2002 and
Para (1) (a) of the Schedule to the Rule 19 of the
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002.

Para (1) (a) of the Schedule to the Rule 19 of the
Multi-State Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002,
stipulates that the Board of Directors in office shall
meet atleast sixty clear days in advance from the
date of expiration of term and by resolution it is
necessary to:

(a) determine the date, time and place for
convening a General Body meeting for the
conduct of election of its successor Board for
the period 2021-2026.

(b) Appoint a Returning Officer for conducting the
ensuing election of Board of Directors of the
Bank for the period 2021-2026.

Accordingly, in the Board meeting dated 23 April,
2021, it was decided to hold the Annual General
Meeting for the conduct of elections for the period
2021-2026.
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However, the said Annual General Meeting could
not be conducted due to the continued Covid -19
situation.

Subsequently, the Board of Directors in its
meeting dated 11" June, 2021, decided to hold
the Annual General Meeting of the General Body
for electing the Board of Directors of the Bank for
the period 2021-2026, on Thursday, 30" September,
2021 at 4.00 pm at Pracharya B. N Vaidya
Sabhagruha, 2™ floor, Raja Shivaji Vidya Sankul,
Patkar Guruji Chowk, Hindu Colony, Dadar (E),
Mumbai — 400 014.

In terms of the above-mentioned Para (1)(a) of the
Schedule to Rule 19 of the Multi-State Co-operative
Societies Rules, 2002, the Board of Directors has
appointed Shri Jayant D. Patil, District Deputy
Registrar, Mumbai (1) City as the Returning Officer
for conducting the ensuing election of Board of
Directors of the Bank for the period 2021-2026.

Intimation for the same as required under Para (1)
(b) of the Schedule under Rule 19 of the Multi-State
Co-operative Societies Rules, 2002 has been given
by the Managing Director to the Central Registrar
of Co-operative Societies, New Delhi.

COMPOSITION OF YOUR BANK'S BOARD

The composition of the Board of your Bank is
governed by the Multi-State Co-operative Societies
Act, 2002 and the Bye-laws of your Bank. Presently,
there are sixteen Directors on the Board in addition
to the Managing Director. The Board includes
eminent persons with professional expertise
and experience in Banking, Finance and other
fields. Your Bank has one Chartered Accountant,
six Bankers and one Economist as its Directors.

Shri A. A. Pandit, Director of the Bank, resigned
from the Board of Directors of the Bank for personal
reasons and the said resignation was accepted by
the Board on 24" December, 2020. Shri Pandit is
a Chartered Accountant and holds a Diploma in
Business Finance from ICFAI. The Board is grateful

to Shri A. A. Pandit for his valuable contribution to
the Bank in providing guidance in areas of IT, Risk
Management, Audit and Policy making.

The Bank has co-opted Shri Kishore Masurkar
on the Board of the Bank on 23 April, 2021.
Shri Kishore Gurudas Masurkar is M.Sc in
Biochemistry from Mumbai University with a
Diploma in Administrative Management from
Jamnalal Bajaj Institute of Management Studies.
He is the Chairman and Managing Director of
Entod International Group, which specializes in
research-oriented ophthalmic specialties and
products. It is one of the leading international
and research-based pharmaceutical companies
with over three decades of experience and
specialty pharmaceutical expertise. Shri Masurkar
is also involved in various social and cultural
organizations.

During the period under report, twenty-four Board
meetings were held.

Loans to Directors

No Director has borrowed any money from your
Bank except against their fixed deposits as
permitted by RBI. This has been a healthy tradition
in your Bank and has been enshrined in Bye-law
No. 55 and Bye-law No. 63 (c) many years ago.

Working of Committees

The Board has constituted Committees which
include Directors and higher Management
Executives to take informed decisions in the best
interests of the Bank.

As on 31t March, 2021, five Committees of the
Board were in place viz.,

«  Executive and HRD Committee

e Audit, Accounts and NPA Management
Committee

« Risk Management Committee

« Information
Committee

Technology (IT)  Strategy

«  Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds

I Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 55



¢ Saraswat

Bank

PROGRESS. GROWTH. SAFETY.

The various Committees and the scope of
functions are as follows:

Executive and HRD Committee:

The Executive and HRD Committee looks
into HR and training issues, formulation and
implementation of action plan for sustaining/
improving the quality of the Bank's human
resources and welfare measures for employees
at all levels. It is also involved in decision-making
on all operational matters, except sanction of
loans/advances. It further decides upon branch
expansion, acquisition of premises on purchase or
lease for branches/offices, approves expenditure
and costs in relation thereto and also considers
any other matter which requires urgent attention.
During the year under review, six meetings of the
Committee were held.

Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the
Executive and HRD Committee of the Board.

Audit, Accounts and NPA Management Committee:
This Committee provides direction, oversees
the total audit function of your Bank, follows up
statutory/external/concurrent audit and ensures
strict adherence to RBI's guidelines and directives
from time to time. It deliberates on the progress of
recoveries of overdues and NPAs and decides on
issuing of securitization notices and possessions
of properties charged to your Bank to expedite
recoveries. Fifteen meetings of the Committee
were held during the year.

Shri S.K. Sakhalkar is the Chairman of the Audit,
Accounts and NPA Management Committee.

Risk Management Committee of the Board:

The Risk Management Committee of the
Board is a Committee that has, as its sole and
exclusive function, responsibility for the overview
of the risk management policies and practices of
the Bank’s operations and mitigation of prevailing
risks in line with the risk appetite of the Bank. The
Committee was constituted during the year under
review itself and one meeting was held during FY
2020-21.

Shri S. V. Saudagar is the Chairman of the Risk
Management Committee of the Board.

24.

25.

Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee
of the Board:

The Information Technology (IT) Strategy
Committee of the Board is a Committee to approve
IT strategy and policies and to ensure that an
effective IT organisational structure and strategic
planning process is in place. Key focus areas of
IT Governance include strategic alignment, value
delivery, risk management, resource management
and performance management. During the
financial year under review, three meetings of the
Committee were held.

Shri S. S. Shirodkar is the Chairman of the
Information Technology (IT) Strategy Committee
of the Board.

Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds:

The Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds as the name suggests, is a Committee
to monitor high value frauds involving amounts
exceeding 100 lakh, that may occur in your Bank.
The said Committee meets as per exigencies.
During the financial year under review, the
Committee met on two occasions.

Shri Gautam E. Thakur is the Chairman of the
Special Committee of the Board for Monitoring
Frauds.

MEMBERSHIP

2,37,262 members of your Bank individually hold
fifty and above fully-paid shares. The number of
nominal members of the Bank stood at 88,864 as
on 31%t March, 2021.

APPOINTMENT OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

The Reserve Bank of India vide its Circular
No. RBI/2021-22/25 Ref No. DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.01/08.91.001/2021-22 dated 27" April, 2021
has issued guidelines on broad requirements for
appointment of Statutory Auditors for UCBs. As
per the revised guidelines, UCBs are required to
take prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India,
Department of Supervision for appointment/
re-appointment of Statutory Auditors on an annual
basis. Further, in the case of entities with asset
size of ¥ 15,000 crore and above, the statutory
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26.

27.

audit should be conducted under joint audit of a
minimum of two audit firms.

In view of the same, your Bank shortlisted select
audit firms and approached the Reserve Bank
of India vide letter dated 18" May, 2021 seeking
approval for their appointment as Statutory
Auditors of the Bank for FY 2021-22. RBI vide
their letter dated 24" June, 2021, conveyed their
approval for the appointment of M/s Mukund M.
Chitale & Co. and M/s M. P. Chitale & Co, Chartered
Accountants as the joint statutory auditor of the
Bank for FY 2021-22.

In line with RBI approval, your Board of Directors
recommends the appointment of M/s Mukund
M Chitale & Co, Chartered Accountants, 2™ floor,
Kapur House, Paranjape B Scheme, Road No.1, Vile
Parle East, Mumbai — 400057 & M/s M. P. Chitale
& Co. Chartered Accountants, Hamam House, 1¢
Floor, Ambalal Doshi Marg, Fort, Mumbai 400 001
as the joint Statutory Auditors of the Bank for the
FY 2021-22.

DISCLOSURES

As per the disclosure norms stipulated by RBI, we
hereby declare that insurance premium to Deposit
Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation
(DICGC) has been paid upto 31t March, 2021 and
there are no arrears payable to DICGC.

OBITUARY

We deeply mourn the passing away of some of our
shareholders, former employees and employees of
your Bank during the year under report.

28. GRATITUDE

Your Board wishes to place on record the
appreciation of the support which the Board of
Directors and the Bank has received from all its
shareholders and other stakeholders, and thanks
them profusely for the confidence and trust that
they have reposed in the Board and your Bank. Your
Board would also like to place on record the deep
sense of gratitude to the authorities of the Reserve
Bank of India, the Office of the Central Registrar
of Co-operative Societies - New Delhi, the Office of
the Commissioner for Co-operation and Registrar
of Co-operative Societies, Maharashtra State,
Pune, bankers, legal advisors and auditors for their
valuable guidance, support and co-operation.

The Board is also grateful to the Registrars of
Co-operative Societies of the states of Karnataka,
Goa, Gujarat, Madhya Pradesh and Delhi.

The Board of Directors places on record its
appreciation of all sections of employees for their
loyalty, dedication and wholehearted involvement
in achieving the goals and missions of your
Bank, including providing excellent services to all
customers, even during lockdown period.

Your Board wishes to assure all shareholders
that it will continue to strive towards attaining
new heights in coming years through continued
commitment and sustained efforts.

For and on behalf of the Board,
Gautam E. Thakur
Chairman

Mumbai : 13™ August, 2021
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903 =T I1f¥h JFATATAT TNYIIRT -

AT 9L,
AT S 3Nk 99 3030-39 T 903 I D TS FIEX BIAMT Felolch HedTell IS 2l 3R,

9. SN SriauaselT 9 YR AU AT, SeTe ST 16 B A

MfAIF g¥ 030-39 B SR fTHaRAAS
NMEHETF Y B, Difs-9%  THAUTAT
R Il godrTd IR arERena
STl SR JTfaRell Hedelell NI
PRS- 9 AT AT NI el

qY 030 HEY SINIIh FIHATR 3.3 TIHIMI
TRl SRR hedh Cleaie a=ie
Felell U, HH AFON 9§85 deelel e
grar faaRia aRem srfegeRdaR A 3.
SRTHRICHET HEAd St TS &% B4l g d
IREN TRAT G TIFIRET IS e

SRR STefcaRen af 2030 AEY 3.4 TR
ATl TR RN eiegazel Mauol e
§.§& TR Qletl 37fell. JRIURIS geell, T,
SR T Sh 7 Sfeaaeriar Hifcge-9% Al
refrer Jaiferes gRem fSg Sire.

MRIE Tdd MY auienr dfdem @
g1 fovéia anfdfer aeR e, o=
e s/ s Fey R sreareR
JFITIRIT fTT: FURI fAGA eh. IRy
PRS- FITI 16 TR A
SfefaR it T Harae.

S IR .3 TIHET Gt
3T, 9 Il 9IS Rl Herd A, BTl
pefeaee 2.3 TIHAM aGal]. Pifws- 987
ENNISEEANCISICRY IRk SIS CRIENC

2 1Y ol

THUTd SIRTIh ATHAR AT Pl AR
AT gRRS=T AT her. IR 99
QA ATG T SFHB SRV STTEROY
SHAYTC 7oY. TROTHT Hezrai depivt STefcqeared
TR IGUATHRAT A ERE! AT BT
P fhar enefrean AreT faRaRe.

afdfd a§ 030-39 AHA  WRAT
SrefaeRa:

Pifge-9 TN AIGHTGIHS SO AT e
IR FRAT MRT IRBRA FSh e IR
AT et T AT Foileh el eI STITaRAT
SRIVTRT STTET e Sreidblond anfdfer iR
s ad R094%-0TT VAT YR
TIREE) ER BRUGIT ATl IT TS I
BT B ffFaRe I AR MY g
ST+ SATaRd, TR A Sia AT 37Hed 3T G

T Jrafdet aifg.

1 IR T I SUHI T dligelen
TR WRA JffeqaRes a1 anfdies autean
gfeear RMER oig¥aell. WRAN 3fefegasen
ufged RME Jeel 8.8 T e
e AEware e Mdwnian gaRen oA
aear. gl onfdfer aufer foaR @=ar @
WRATE el ICHT 3cared (GDP) & driie
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QU ¥ THH derAl Jolid fEderas! L

CRRITT AT ST

T MBI IRRLNTE! It IRUIHE Selen!
qTE T TR JIaRITHS U &5 3 Tl a6
Aefdell. TR SENT T JdT & A B $.§
q (.0 CFRAA ASEe. Blfde-9] T AGIAR
AISTelel Hed Y IMD IR FaRe
SiTeien BT BT BT HTE! STHI TR,

T BRI ANTHIRIGRI TT0T HH! HRUITD AT
ISP URUHS A0 Bvarg arel. srefeuared
R TR @R 3MMedl, TR BolaRd

TSGR U HO- Td Hofiaid 8<! I

ShelT BOIQRIT AT ST STl

qued] dfeedl eI HeMTs & 8 WRaY
Rer dp IO Poledl HHIA & IR
TR MRl IR TGRSl d A=
fpAiicier SAR e RIoT-AEaKilel ool
R TR TH-IERIG TS R & 4.4

CTFRRIa] ReRTaeT.

FR-AEAT Folell TR Ryl JFefeaa=ed
BSOS Seled Wakile aieie fa<ia
Jc (Fiscal Deficit) & 3.4 Tawh a1 i
A&GIEB T FAHONT AIgA R4 TR

e,

Plige-9% ANHS FaAN T JIRIER ATeted]
qoIRI doredl  fhAdl  SRedr.  Jolrel
IS INIRRS frchal Sfoerd dftediara
SU (Negative) Rerxiid digreedr. WRaren
AATN ATl AIST JHI €€ 8 99
quivR HeFE dlel @i (Current Account
Surplus) * TIb Ricerad faer.

IR R SH18) s quT=ar SIRHIRD
TR AR Jdeifdel. H, 030 HEY X
SR 0.80 TIRITA HUNT HRUATT 3Mell g a1
T ¥ TIRITGR ATOTOIT ST AT BIe! quierel
& Fald HH XA R 3R AN Uh JuiIRET
T HOATE! I&el HRUI Seiell el AMRIEN,
JIFIRAS  TRAdl IR 3D
SISl SR HRUAN AT, IFe
39 Hrehe 3MTaRe=g (OMO), Eref Jaira Xar
Fet (LTRO), fa<irg et faRiy gefaw A
(Special Refinance Facility) @ *g=g3re
heipRdl W fafdafed fder (Special
Liquidity Window) I Taraer &re.

IR ERFER YR I I e
IRAT ReE 58 TaeiRond 98t oo
GER @ &gt y9or (CRR) $7=1 %
TqiaR A, i fofdafed) sgavem = g
@®Rgeer Y© e R&E a1 (Variable Rate
Term Reverse Repo) SRl &agR J:4
G® PRUGNT 3Tel. W, 8 Fd SUF hedaral
JepichSIel TR &) 31fereh FHTTeTe JTEke.

IENICEISICECLLE

FoieX g¥ 030 HY SN refgaRergeial
TR 8 dhlele ) WRIER Jfeel. TR,
Y 2029 FOAKIUR HSH TeROME!
JESTae TRT TNIBRUT YhSelel o
Frea IRV TSERT Jrel 16 SV o
ST,

NI IRPR) HoRIET™ ATSTERE! SIRTfcTh
oRiRerchigey  onfdies awfear gatara =
RS, UfRed TEHE qaeRUde SRATE,
detren frmeiicidl SAR 3T SifiRed dReren
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MY auren Wdce RFMER A3 e
eI Flel. aiife Iz (Budget)
IRBRA IAYEIET SR B IFhH SR
ST R (Borrowing Programme),
q9d 3MRGA ATSERd Hletel! dIe @ A<l
Il fohAel! Fii Tebf3e aReIH ersTariaR fage
3TTeAT. 3Meh I-IRRIT S&T qUI BoR ATl
TSR 8T &.9( TIRIGR TRl

NP g 2020-29 FLY YRAN A3R INIRIT
Hisaarar e god Jfedl. THS d=ia
(Sensex) 2T AT (Nifty) & S e

aigd MIHH 4o0,03% T 9%,LE9 IR
EIEECH

YR AR IR dTeerel Qe Jaaves
GRES hHDIA IAREH Zﬁ?ﬂaﬁ, ST 030
IRET JUAT G4 d1g ATTel. TRy, HRd Refed
P MG MG SIRRISHHS IR
SR olvid 39 Hod 3MfYfep auid Rer
T f3. 39 A, 029 ASW T ¥3.RI N
EIEECH

GEEA K (ULIEEE

Ff@e-98 o Afge e ad
2020-39 I HhCH JHISall HROGRTT el
R SfeReIEl difdhgeea #amed Fae
HRAI el 3Tfieh auiean afeedn Qeal fommea
JTfTRT G Iaeil. Hg IRBR I R
ReE dohe srefcgaven AeRvareiRarn, O=¥F
TSI 4 gehiel AGd Ml IrpRal
3N 3METSIeR e i eefel.

aurean fag=n fodia ey Rifser e
SET-FIAAT §8 TEelel ash I7al o el
e I KR Aehel I Iedred (GDP)
R & 0.8 TIH R AA AR 9.6 THb

ST Wfen. IR Reid do anfdfes o
2029-33 HRAT Fhel IR I (GDP)
SR & .4 T VTEIel 3T SiQIS] aciidell TR
R, TgEIA BB TR STITARAT FBIAR
YUITRRITT IRINBROMAT I, Pldle-9% =T
I = A AR I IR
Saferene ATET ST6l ATl SN

b T STE (GDP) &R 81 31fefes aut=n
GO Tleld g 91 AR
SAde 3T ST SR, Bifeds- 9T Il
e anfdfes ad 2029-23=7 ufed MR
qRUIM STael. HS 3Mfd a¥ 2039-32
HIIeT Febel G I (GDP) R & HHE
R I TR, TF 0 @ AT G
W g Rerd dowmera anfdfes
2029-3 ALY WRAMEN Jhel I G
(GDP) SR &l §.4 T SeIehl JTETel 31 geRel
TRV Hehel LT Sedqre (GDP) &Rl
SR CIRSEIC

. onfefe af R030-39 wEfie JTUT TH=AT

FRIREEN sz® IR

o IFa TG FEEE . 39 A, 0207
763,932.93 @cgwd . 39 M,
2039 SN T§V,08.39 PIER TR
FIIRIA & a6 I3,620.9( DICT Fad
e

o Joe wEu 3 R 39 A, 0207
T3(,0(03.8% BTS2, 39 A, 2039
Aot T¥o,L00.§9 HIEAR  UErEedl.
3G9t a6 & T2,999.9% P STD!
3.

o §peu BRI (CASA) 3T T9,993.43
DI a6 B Q. 39 A, 00
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T90,933.8% PICITS Q. 39 A, 2039
Ao R @ T9,¥R0.9§ BICIR
arRIA.

o Shul fIRPI® DHol-HeET TS
T90,L48.88 PIEaed  T9,936.93
PIcH dargd 3. 39 A, 2029 IS0
799,8%3.09 BIEIaR e

o  Jbdl Jd® TP . 39 HE, 007
T649.6% PICITHT T9E.3& PICHT agd
f2. 39 A1, 2029 SN 7Y .04 BIER
EIHEC

o SPpa e 9% . 39 91, 00=
T40.9% PICITTT T9%.84 BICIH! ATgH
f3. 39 A/, 2029 IS IY0.2% BIEIAR
EIEEC)

o dear e JTgeaIed dofia Ygpur ot
3NTerel Y107 f2. 39 AT, 03077 9,45
CTRIIad GUrod Q. 39 A, 2039 sl
9.0% TIPb IoIb Vel

o SISl dhen @M ¥839.§§
DIl 16 B Q. 39 A/, 020
T3,432.0% PICITH Q. 39 AN, 039
o T3,843.90 PISTR YIErreT.

o f 39 A1, 2029 ASh dHA Wiead
ATl FET (CRAR) 9%.36 THRb S
et R Rere dob FHIfRT cheted
R TIRRITUET o 31N 3T,

3. fammErR s

(i) R
TEATATST BT IRRI SRIATTET M=
e Reel AR dorear FaREed
HEwaqul INTe fael. rasHer dEETEE
G AR, TE-TREAR TI-TFe! AL
Haeld g bl aEEl TREDS

qeAA TEhial hel, ADE! fhRbled
FHol-HAqIEAT el a6 AT 37T,
I Tl ST TTEch-JaT ST fohvepiss
FIITR faelell ¥y wR, & qeeEe
R FTTTRgGNT HRONYT 37T

Jifve=q’ (Retail Business Operations)
g “fe9 S&awHc”’  (Business
Development) & 3 fa%m @rRa
PO ATet. g alal faur s Red
IR A&T hald HRUIIHNT LA
et el BIT T AT G¥ TR Srgarerast
I M. e M@ SRIATE dopea
R Faqa™  SfEareiadl Fiell de
SYifdatl.

o P Hol:

IS I dpar  fPRPID
PHI-FAI 90,86 TSI ATl
f2. 39 AT, 0307 T90,L45.88
PIciae f2. 39 A, 2029 J6i
A T99,8%3.09 PICIR TEre.
gafdRed f&. 39 #™, 2029
Aot R RgRE (Tangible
Security) g ool @i
el T9,4§2.99 DI BT
e

BT TGV Hol-ATHRTAT o
PP HO-FIIT & ¥L.20
TIRITST 49.6 & TIHIIaR Naraal.

o fFRpe A
JEArATSl MU dbd UGV
(3,998 A9 BRI (CASA) @il
SISUIT ATl IFE 9%,3%2 Tad
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T L, L3R TN WA FHI TR,
PRI WY T9,993.03 PN
B 9§.4% il e
Je IMgaeaud el f2. 39 A,
00T %90,933.8%  PIAIdST
HNT 34 2. 39 9, 029 IS
792,880.9§ PIAAR DRI
HTRAT AT UHOT SATT SIOTET 4.9
THRART 30.§3 CIHIAR Arar.

YT 3ITETT ArSTT (PMAY):
aMfdis ad Q020-29 AA Fg
IRERAT “UIHHA AN Ao
I QPO 9,4&L IS HIAA
ST Qo3 I HSR el ;A
AoH3faa 3fEdleradi 32,004.34
@ g (Subsidy) fafdy
eI HolaRN AeTel.

=T (Priority) &SITAT &i-
gRder:

TR Rgd dp=n  Homigar
37T ¥ 030-39 HEY TPHUT Hoil-
FIIATAT 84 TIH PHoi-gRaal &
M &9 PRU RSB 2.
3NN Ieb YT T98,893.03 DIl
P WU & A $o, ®
THT 42.9% TdRb GV gIRA

e,

TTATTAE FHof § ARPHRI T

TISENSTE T TISHIIS! Seh deb
%90 PR fdRPpId Hol ek
BRI, T SN g GGT AT I Poi-
ASHIGRE TSB! ]

TROIGEAR &ol 9 Hod .
JTEaerasl e dhT T903.4L
PICIAr SA PHoi g T90 PICral gal
ol faaRId e,

A5 Afved wecigde SR
usF (CMEGP) @ uEw fafed
TArgHe SWReH 9E (PMEGP)
I AND ASHIGR  TaSEHITS!
MU dB FEATIEI A
32.L8 BIAT G T3.2§ P Fot
faeRIa el

TEPN  dfFT SEd FHoml
JRUMRME™E ALZH G SIg-SenTl
FHol o BN “shfee
RS T BR AGDI IS Al
tersgl” (CGTMSE) &t wRarr
fASIUIRY STl S &1 ufel dap 3TTR.
JEaTetayt CGTMSE 3feiid e
Job T903 PIETN g3 Pol faaNid
Hell JAMed. T9d “quF-waEen” a1
I Pifge Relld AcHeicrid
PHGTTih Rl T90,000 fIATART
ol STCTe] o] (e ST, ATASTGR
TGO 939 ol fAeRIT HRUGMT AT,
ORI I IWERAT AR
1 T32.24 AT ot fAeI .
ATAHIBTIATRT 0T Heh-ged
STEaTeTast S dohergr RS ekl
TR Afeel T ARSI Ao
o TS AT 3TfYfes FerA
PO 3el. 8,400 FA 3D
JITIE T 2,800 g 3P JAfRID
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FOGRMT  ARIPIBRAT i
Pol AT el Tl MU Tobd
FITICHA 8,600 W IgaTcias!
SIS Ao, IS ASRISGTAT
fafaer mameie s AftiaRid el
3 UErEel. ‘Afgen e fawr
qEHeR=Al  (MAVIM) - A1
31TV AT TaTTEIIT dgrad
e,  SEAISHl  TaasT T
I40.33 PN Ppol fAaRId el
2. fEdTelauid a1 990 TeRb dle
8IS T904.48 PICTAl Bl fdaRId
Pl Nell. TR AIPIBRATT  Hol
IS JIICTE! STgaretast 293 PIerd
ol fAaROT STt

T YT e SumHiEl
efRer:

ffem  Izgawic =fEFa
(Business Development
Vertical):

o, 098 A MY dHA
Ao faweErTdt (Sales) T
i3l S QAT HRUIT S SRfdet
2. 1 TR fuommed smas
I Lo HHARIEN o ‘fagmg
SEAHC BfdPha T FHuaTd
A, ¥ FHHAN! WEH-Ial TR
ST AR ARl TERTER
3MMed.

7 e e RN SEATE
AfheR’ (BDO) N dievard
3d. & BDO e Ureehidl gaar

e, JebeAr Arorral ol AR
QU T AR MR Jar 4T
fviaR dRIde! TfRIermT Suard .
IR Seic (Tablet) IR
T ISTBRUNGR AR @Il
IS, AT STIGRT TSI T2
RN Afech 0 AT Aaig &t
EF e -T2 BTl Barad 3R,
JTEITCIAT AT SAA I& 43 PICIAT o,
T33( DI 31 g TR0 Bl FaAR
IR F99d  (Third  Party
Busines), 39T Tl 899 e
fARPI® FHo-FTIIAT 0 TID
EN O I I I TR IS R
SHTHRRT =T WA T, SR
qufeT Jep=aT Sqaiior I areNITST
Rea STowiic ifbad’ = g
300 T AEfvaTE T A ST
e ST I (Product
Development Team):

AT AEHAT IUEIAR I
Jar g Ao ITEW HRO ®
e T JMAeT 3. AEhieal
RS, IR &, AR
oo g fafdy Fame Fag gi=n
HET A T Ao a9 faed e
ST B! Sael HIdT AT,

TS UES B dhAS HewdrEl
3. AT TROGIR ShT AT
SN, ITBRAT MGl §h
IR SR ST 1N d T

SR I SirEH Hepuian (Risk
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Indicators) fdaR woA ARSI
ITH JdT U OGNS Ueh oSt
e THUR TR

fafly  aoHBRar  emear  doA
PR (Tie-up) Felel 3Med, THE
CGTMSE 3idiid faamRer &,
Ap Afes Triioie SPReH aRH
(CMEGP), ursH ffest graiiafic
SREM YR (PMEGP) T AR

ORI 9erA Aol (AGSY)

ST FHAY SR,
FER RAv=y 3 [=ffRsr=

(Customer Relations &
Experience):

SEEIC OIS CIC I G|
YEHERIER Tcge] Jdg a1 WETd!
Pifge-a% ez TR B
bl AR, THS NI daha!
CRE ¢W & Real @ $-Heled

AT JTEh e qehict B,

EATATST AT Jh T DI ARl
HIEAT .40 TG ATEHTeN HIehiat
T HRUG el 9 9.40 o
UrEHIEN Ucael Harg AU 3MTell.
qER SGBINT 0,000 FIITAT
et (Business Leads) Suetee]
1. ARG AEHT=AT 9.38 o
THRID HaRT HRUATT 3MTel. MEH
§,030 3-Hod BMIBUWN el )
‘AR W 3T 2,000 AR
Pl (Missed Calls) FNHRUATT
3Tl AT d ATEhia qd 99 [ Tt
JHITHRBRT ArSAUT 37Tl

(Customer Re-engagement) a1
STHAGR | 4,000 T 3P UTEH TN
ueh LU 3. IT SUHHT FeIe
BIA TRHI ST Jaia AR a1
ST g AT P3O HIATEHY!
el 9. A FfRed  ‘JepH
Pifel  (Welcome  Calling)
JERad YU, UGS ARRGEN
T Siacy, Aes hrec ey S

IR N s LT AT,

$-3Rfe® @R (In-operative
Accounts) 31fer Deposit Education
and Awareness Fund (DEAF)
AoRicRTd AT el elel @I
ool BRUANIS!  ERIGRIE
AU AU SMel. A9V UTEd
ShEHS BN @MaT bR ‘Bright
Minds' e 3RS BRI 3Aet.
I WIS S S AT J
o= P! T9,000/-71 e
Fre RS 0T et

‘SAToe Sqet Sieid JTgaTeray! fafder
IER R difee’ (Mystery
Audit) PHROIIT 3ft. B Sifsca
SR & PN, AT HoIRE! A
UEh ATl TRE el ThaREI
Jaraq Ja1 R, TRE aREiEe)
3RTelel ‘May | Help You' &eexd
AEwd grel Uhal TEURREd @ gl
3T IHRT BIal.
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TR IRANA=T S
ICECE

o @

aMfdis af Q030-39 TA T
ERRC IR |22 I CE ICE I R
T92%.99 PICIAT fI9T BT SHT PHell
T TEHUIRRR.6§ PICId Scq fAzsfaat.

T f3T Ao

AR Jhd  TISNHA AR
TR b, fo. = wEemi
‘GIHAT Slg Sarn faar Ao
(PMJJBY) R =g sfear sfeg=
. 1. =1 Feprm qurwAl qReT
fomr deAr (PMSBY) IEahisRar
ST ol Jed. SEdrerdyl AT
FIFRITA bt T0.03 I ST
et

G Bs:

SMARY, 090 ALY AT S
RIS Be Aot 9o HRuasT
FoaT Fell. [T I TASITH,
vereeRlY, Uer dfe <, fwt gfem,
e foaf T mRRieTaAiema
ISR a1 =G Heid fauoe
P, AEAAI TR T4.33
PICIaT R e HqI™ Il
T e, TR RITGRTeT Teie THuT
TgE (AUM) %9(§.34 SICT Saa!
B, rEaTrasT AT AR 9.9
PSS AT,

f&e:

f$fc aeriaRar Ml ¥%
TICEEIN  (NSDL) @ Hiigsiget

(CDSL) 31 Jrr 3iRerfelt Her TR
JEITTST THT 9,389 A fSHe
ERT STSHA AT, 3N THR
39974, 2029 ol MU HeT THT
VL ,2us fSHe @Rl s smed.
ASBA TSGR §%+ FHIRTAgI=
(Equity) &2, <=cH  (Rights)
fagpran 4, TR AEfAwr=Ar (Debt)
99 FIERTE T hetl. qEHRI
UG Lo,000 (IPO) 3751 BTG
3met. fee FIERIGR TR T3.90
G S b I G L TR C
MAPBT T93. L & AT I feRISR
JRIRES fHC SR STt deted
AT SfHT  gAdGR M.
aMfdfs a§ 030-39 A &4 T
AP FAH ST TR SETSUITT e

ST FII:

TeMTeT YR T BRI 3 gfear (NPCI)=z
FEHIAT 3l §F Y TS SHiIT TS
faaRa &=a. f2. 39 A4, 09 NN
AT Hdl THU UL ,000 FA IAE
hfec Py ARG AR, AMTell b
AEHHT TN AT YRR H3ATE)
IR BRI THa Hocla! Yoob
- 3MhRe ‘Secured Credit Card’ ggT
faeRIeT vl

hTeC IS FTHRRET AMAH a¥ 030-
29 7Y b 35.0% PICI I AT,
S Tl TU. 30 BT e B

(i) =TS AfHT TaH:

PIEre-9% Meui=a qahpiR srEareat
ARG Bl AR g, SSEo
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AT bR B HRUIHG AR
USRS Bolmed g B
PRI S AIG HOIGRIAT ot HHT
FHRUIER R e, TR AlSan TR
FHARgd  (Consortium) M
AEURT HH Ppell g fdem™  Horari
FMREH  (Consortium) A faWRE
FoliaR AATGT STeil. HTERFIAT T FHIAR
JEATITST PoiqRivlel Aae qfdT S
TM@El Holidl I &S Wbl ATl
TSt (LCBD) Ja8Re! dritet aurea
SRR

g7 Jardr Yt aRom T ofren @
RIS Hol-IaaM . 39 714, 2029
Ao T9R, 6L &. 4R PICT ST 2.

(iii) fa<er fafew sgaam:

e dobebs fagw faffmg e
TRAFT G¥ 9%9% UL 8. TS BNy
R~z AT Sel da fager fafvea
JaT U HoT oal. JNgATAds! AT
JhdT TEHEN PRI Al faw
faf g a9 30,230,490 HIET SADI
2. 2. 39 7/, 2029 A Pt
f3eTell ot 819,86 %.33 BT D! K.
STEATHasT Pifcge- 9% A= TRIYHIR
ImTa-fAaia HaERN HRIETS Sae &
e ™ 8. TRy e do Td
AT JTRAIO FHAT HS ATgehi=T

Jopie AEERe e (Correspondent
Relations) SRefUd el MR, TR
faf a1 Suered o 3T TR,

(iv) PEFTR faumr:

a1 PYFIR AR & dpe g
frefl SR HE<aT YfAehT ST,
YT dpaT PRI fAYRT BT ARG TReTell
(Funds Management) SHa=eg &R
U0 EERIER Spal AR dRerd
IR g R hE fAesfad.
YT dhedT PINMR YA el M
T P TG W AR A

wETagol YfHehT ATae 3TR.

BTy HeTaeied! STfaRIAT AT
NS YR ReE g1 TRAEA
JIEIRYT 3T N9 &R HUT dhotl. TS
IO Sieled STgget aRRei=n o oa
PNMR AR b= Toar Agwayel
MR GTel. AR T IR THoT
(CRR) @ denfep aReran ST (SLR) &
AF Fepuad Fgl iR BICHR aTe
PRI 37T

facer fafFmr TaERIPRATE! ST PR
YT 2T GERg oAl Bed e
PSS! PNMR AR AEha 37T,
o, faceh e exiaRv S FdaER
FRASIIIOl IR qTEUIRT HEd hel.

1 BT Pesicrel A fafm e Sy Rfrea $RbT R

PHo el

el 9 <27 Ae<ar=dl faeell Te=me
FAER B, U S SHHRIAIST 3eh

fefeer darst & dfh e mren v sfavrsy
T Ieelel 3. AT HIoId [SfTe dichTd
Hewd 3feeper URRad Alelol 3.
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e 9 e fefiea-w<<’ (Digital
First) g1 1o+ el auigdra fSforee
i AU AT dhell. SeAvgE AT
g A IS qoelan 3faeid o oM
9goa e fRfeat gmem oMyl d
FARATO] AR ST 3772 IO AR 3Tg
B 31 Y, ITEATAINT Sh 2T YT ATERIb!
L9 TRp TR & FRTce Aemmg 3imet.

el dF FeAT 30 gF ¥ e Ja
NEHH J&H H. MY d5 M FNcHen,
SRBY  (UPS), IRWd d doo+, fwe
IS, I S <l dhetae (NETC),
AR e 9, dise 3t Jel SN 31eh el
fSRTeer AT Suetey 3.

FfAHIT=

JTEATAINTT TMEHIAT BT EUANIS! 3P
AT HT ATl A, TN IRUIRG
T TI-AIEHigR 3V AP ATepTId
TrEravaT ST el

YR A0 ATeh-Iubid fafder AR
EfAvaTd 3Tel:

o dpuu WA A, R av
IR, 030 Aol Id HNYRE, A&
q FrarR i MfeAgR Hasar Fa
PHRUIT 3Tedl.

o PIIS AHF Folcdl HHN DD
HRUGTNIS! 27 TR AR AR T TEpII
UehT STgICral M SHRuar STell. Ame
TP FHAN, Nford, TeBdl HIFIR,

LIPS J GEMferch=dl Jdeiiel HHAN
T =T e ST AT HRUITT 3T

3T JHaA Fofiarict fhAT SToTaRiar
9 QR AT Hd AT RN AT

3 5% ‘LinkedIn’ a7 STHTSTHISAHTIRE!
3T A HTetel! 3R, Heige, feacy,
SRCHA d gogd Il WIEgHiaRel SMdedl
ST 3 BN (Followers) 3T

faSTa I AMHcelcy a9d Has Al I
S STIRERTT BRUGT 3Med.

dope a1, Ao, HErAl G,
oM &R SR STfeRTil SgeuNT § o
YR HROIT 3Tl

SIS aT g fh_oT Seare faesoTm=an
e faheidt BReed  iRd
PRI PRV 37T

SR AR, el e T
NS TR Hheeer glaer <o
31T

T AT AT SN AR “HIRH ARG
feftear AerTe’ a1 PRiwpAa fSRea
I, SRS MYedr g feRted

JqT RIS qulgcﬁwgﬂ ‘x@'x’f%ﬂ?ﬂ 7
fayaraRieT BRIk AT Pt

IIR Rk "E™ JEdil
qefauarerdl S g ad g A
fRfeaier TR TR 3t
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§. Wolae S

Saraswat
Bank

PROJECT UDAAN

aUE SRy AT PR S oee o

ARG BIvgIhRaT “Se’° IT HE<ardhiel
drolged 9O U quigdl dpell B, S
IR dle el O dl, SOl 98afi=T g
@M THER SOFTHRAT T SfehT oren
TR ATITSH BN

“q. IR fI.7 a1 HueEl SudBuA
I “H. Tode RiRResq fa.” g
“iepet’”” & PIIR BT Yol repRar
fFasvarg ofell. “fhridel’’ WOl &l
INd 3P el g G esigdid
JhMEY T BT 3elell aIqR IT T&) ofefid
B I1 YoTTel=l 3ifwa: fRas sruardg ammen.

1 Wolee A deben fafdy faurr <.
feRteat Sfhm, PNMR (Treasury) SRR,
S HTRIERE BN T9E HulelaR
“fheichet’’ WUTe=dl 94 YR HIRIHS
raudT QU hedT. AEHeR 3. & Ui, 2039
RISH AT e T TGN Sfeh T JUTTeAaR RTATaRId
e, 99 9 A9 woe Red (Retail),
o%d (Wholesale), MR (Treasury) d@
et (Digital) dfHT 8 a1 Thra HoTeleR
WA SIS 3l Jobea Jar 3fdes
Fefa UEhiT T xodrd Achel. Sl
HsITel aAggaT faR Rl el dab
A o5 T PISR SfehTT TUTelaR AT
STeTel! 3TTR. IR 3TN AIGHT HIoiaeAsd S92
PIBI Bral AT fdhar sTeao Sgadid. il

Aifg<i-a=t=m™ (Information Technology) €
I T FARA TReBIe FAR1e10 5o i
FRIGHAT NI She Jael arcaTelid R
AE<IYUl o, Tl STFETel fI4TRT 3TR..

Wﬁ!ﬁ ﬁiﬂﬁa (Information Security)
TpreE RgRE &1 fRAvm J%=ar wifkh g
IR GREA T JHESIau HRogra
TSN FiHTeSa. AT dp=al 3 dif3ep
gl U wERaied  (Firewalls),  Anti-
Rogue, Anti-Phishing, Anti-Malware, ST
AN (Data Loss) ¥fEe, Ecxic SR
BT Tl HAGRRAT IR JReT R qre
Ho PHRNG Aed, IR STHHH RagRE
fAvRTIerg S@RW Saell I,

& A9 AR GRafAwT® 31 ThRA BRIshA
eI, TRE bl W4 B R
TRE afierr g Al IR R, S
TEGHE AR Rl SO @
THEATY (SMS), drerel fAfear ar A
B IR 39 14, IrbRar AT fAHFIS
TREHE AR RIS IR ATEhre
HiRIsR Aiarear S aavar 3.
I SheaT FRISRGRET ooieedd Qe
=T 1 ) AeraRiel HIST HeRTE fSfied
TERTS T BIRIHHTTE! AT Saheith TERIhRIT
PROI 3T

AT dp WRER GREAT I
Gl STE. AT A1 e AR 3P
STedl.
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L. Irgefad Fof

fEACIaY g Hol Il AR

3fdfs a¥ Q030-29 FE PlEre-a] i
srgia, IRO creedl-Age IRReNges Fame
I T AEIMIGIAR 3 Sreaul 37T,
AEGHIRIA FeH, DA Thd TN Hod
I IR 48 IS AFeiad Hoiral age
T ARG a9 <Y (Orders) Masfduar
3T ST SIS TFeAlaR e 3Tl

3T Sofict dTe BIoare Ieryell TN g9
3T bt FHot-ageitar R e, sy
e R Y <o ST agent
(Quick Recovery) &RUIN AT 3.
TYANBRT 3FIeh JAIE! RV JATel. I
UHp TRawe (Voluntary Repayment),
Folral R, BHol-RabSNe!  qSoiS

(Compromise  Settlements),  UHR®H!
Rebe T RER G A<= fagh 3Ry
3eh T aT9=R IGell hel el

g fAvrliel 9d et 9 SR I
BTl ST IRSHIHGS NI Scbe rediad
f2. 39 7, 030 SN THN A TR
Fol T 34189 BITHI TR Fa® rgeanfad dol
%903.8¢ PICH! HH BRI 30T JeRA!
e,

AT et ST BoATal STeraei agent
BIvaTeh e faey R Rt sifftheii fgh
Felell 3R, & W fdReie igafed @91 @
eI HIETHAT IReAIAR A&l FHaId BRUIR IR,
g7 S a9 §as, 91 9 AR AT fA9mTia

TRICAEAT BB TRH Pelel 3TTe.

PRI A1 STIedIad dofic SRIT 30§.3(
PICA dTE Hlelel! e 3!, TR UHUT I
3T ot Taur= % 9,38%.L0 DIl
JolrIdl SFEATTad! % 94,2004 PIEaR faed,
qROTH! Slae@ 3TedIiad dofial FHTeT ITaayrean
.93 CHRIGH YURA fa. 39 A, Q029
ST 8.4¢ TIRIGR TR Fas gafad Hoira
THIOT 9.4 CIRITGDT 9.0% TIRIAR 3.

frepIRIT (Write-Off) Fotfat asgen:
SpINIT  heted  Hol-TRAiFed  STgdTeas
% W.3L DI agell PO 3MTell. Igeirdl
R FH ST NI Fh TS
& IaHH I bl IpINTG dotrean agenar
YR & Johea AR O HR HTerd 3.

MR HES T

AT PollaRld  ARgQIdRal el
% JFART (IRAC)T 8 HIceRu
I, B W aIe Sawges THIOIeT 31t
TARIGE B, JTEATATST YT Sob=t T9%0.39
P AARTT ARG Porel! 3R, edId
poliep Rl dheled] TR T FoTord Mifest
PHExSl T (Provision Coverage Ratio),
g 2 39 A, 2039 IM w¥.L¥ THIAAR
qEel. TSl 29 T §§.94 b ISP
B, MRS Beaxsrd gge T & rgediad

HAAIST WeFehH RS hodTd Sl

. MiSde 9y« (CRAR)

Jopa WiSdel TSIl THIO ® TCaETeal 98,94
TGS . 39 A/, 2039 SN 98.3 THp
ESERGSE
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90. PT-faqRor

e ad R030-39 ALY AT dpea e

TlTeleh HE®M dhelell 3T
RESUERE! (% i)
IREg e (4%) &,94&.9  &,2&R.LY
M RABT 2,002.84  2,400.84
(90%)
el A (9%) 90.34 40.9%
IR AT 499.5§ --
90.40% (JH~T
FHHMT)
G SATHZ 0%  8,§90.00 -
(SRt SHHET)
FHAINIS APIE ¥,43§.00  3,900.00
IS 0%
IHRIG T e 40.00 40.00
HHAR] HedToT {1l 90.00 90.00
A, eMie™ 290.34 240.6%
T TEBN BRI
=l (9%)
WWQEEG?I@H 4,000.00 9,000.00
et
ﬁ?fﬂ'\’l@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ R,000.00 R,000.00
AR GG e 9(4.00  3,§3%.§Y
qeiel auiemre 930.§% 999.94
et
QpUT R19,98.8% 4,98.02
fPISY FHITT AT

f2. 39 A/, 2029 IS Juolewm quiBRAT
SfAIS WRIYRGIT 0 THRb ATHIST <ugra

UGB AT ATHIET:

f2. 399, 2029 A5l Huelean anffe quidRar
YR~ YRGBT 90.40 TIp ATHII 0T
RIPRY el Te® HRIT AR,

AU HTor e

JINTE Heaml AdiBRar Tuo.oo ARG i
PHRUIE RABPRY el Hed heId AR, &
RFHH S SR TR0 UG Hedml e
%9,393.40 ARG BT 3. FEATTau THoT
L 44 FURISHT JIhIT HE= T Sieell, a9
ARIGAT § O el aIREINe I
IRfvarT ot

FHATITAIS! AU IAYIH:
fd. 39 #ME, Q039 IS Aueledr e
AYIBRAT THAT HHAAA 0 THP AIIE

3T ST RIBRST HdTerds Hes i 3TR.

AdeIe e oAifdr WEhR &=
TS fAeh:

YR ReI€ Joh=a1 aRy=is %. UBD/(PCB)/
BPD/Cir./3 f. 99 tffidl, 2004 THR WRaFH
feommme a7 smie BrRHRa
F90.24 ARY Sl RIS PRUA RIeRA
oy <t fAeh:

TR AT TRYAIGAR faey IRdtg e
32,000 ARG T HRUIT RIGRA HaATAD HeD
PN 3T

¥ 099-209T YHT FHURTENI

AT
YR R dopzan Ry 6. RBI/R09%-
R0/29¢ . qu oI, 2030 TAR, e
g 209%-30TT BT FHHNTERIT THI
I Jobet FATRIA BT Tegall. TR, & AT
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qq.

3.

YR~ WRTEIRBT BeaTdT B Rl e by
YR R Tehahrs TIGYRIT Bl BN, ST
TR 3. 2% &R, 2030 IS YR
R do A= aArTen faeRomsT Hed e
T YR~ FHURT ATHEMEN 90.40 Teb IT SR
3493 PICA TRYGE! I b M
Folell AME. IS b TR FHd
JURIGHE A<l O MY a¥ 2098-3071
B AU, YBR=T YFTIRGHT fIakid Hxoard

A

Johear Sufadh) . 4 (e) (vii) T AT
gowil

IR .« (e) (vii): TEB= TN IW
ER-fagh fdhar a9 Fa8R BT, Hotrd
FER EI®Y (the negotiating of Loans
and advances)’ 3R 3T2.

TP (PMS) 3Rl PIvRIE! Jeaueie HaeR
R TR, 9% & Javes FeelR (Custodian)
TN ot o el Sufdeh WRa Rere
Jeh=a1 4R 5. DCBR.BPD(PCB)MC No.
8/9§.20.000/094-95 f3. 9 Fet, 094l
TS Rl AT IRIFBIGAR AR BRI
(PMS) 3fcFia TTehia Jofau]eh FeelRTR el
USie U JdT <% Ahd ). T afadh

. 4 (€) (Vii) TSI IRTd HievdTd I 3MTe.

JheT BTl REBR

IRl M dhNl  Wlelld  JREPRIA

I PRUATT 37T

B 039 SIS HIEI0T:

BT I I Tfited sMRe fgms
Tl S FdiM deprear Ikia
I Johal e AT afl HAe
FeTl e B ¥ AR T g fa<ig
JeRUSIaNIel faId oAl 3fode]
T P TfexeT T Hidhe RNTg HH]
TEHM 23 Ut fAfder Japiar Fdetor
Pol. BRI o,000 UEHiAN T
HeHfciel 7 SO odell. Jad gal
I PR AT Jeba AT JepiA
TSI I ROl & TRIGRT A
T PIGHRIS 919 3. YA S TEHI
Safdelen 8 34 PR IEUITNIe
HAN T B

fefirea eamTarel | wEaR Ra
IREPIR:

3. 3 SMaRI, 2023 IS el
FCBA 020 3Feig RIBR HeAd
I §pg ‘Te fRfea 96 7 ‘e
$-Uc SRR a1 RIBRIT I
PR ATeT.

f3. qu 7/, 039 AT HeledT TGl
FAPIT AT dbd  Sfeqe g
i ‘IR SHTATON 9, ‘IRe 2.
R 3fre IR RagREr sMRndasy
SEEACRAN MR IREI R R C T T
(SUfASIT) AT RRBRIAT I BRoAT
MTE REPR  GCHET ST
gl Aigfdell. TR ‘INT THTAToN dqep’
&1 [REBR el qraedial fig g St
facha SMMIeHT ATATER Petell M.
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Selierc| B oo BRI o oS K I K
UeRIe~g 3fdre 039 A ‘Resilient
CISO Award’ = g A1l U 37Tel.
T RGR 5T o faxig amnid
TP ARG Yoy SR
PHRUIT e,
AT Aiferda SUshH
3TN Sb el 3FTeh Y FHTSTSCT SRS
S S e fafde TSI SUshAET #ad
PRI, JMEATAIST PlfRs-a% AT I refran
NqMEAT ?ﬁfﬁ OHTHXIA  hXIdl  dliled]l.  SHHeA]
QY T IR : HERIERN AT HedT Higl
THOTER 99T, a1 RN 1R e oA
T 3T ST A TifSIeTdh el AT
I bt geaea fAed 9w Aea
o’ 1 IRITTTE T3 AARIT <URT STEdTetauTa
fae. Hag fhdbeardl Arem e gg anfor
TR fohchedgaa dereid g 3T AerRAm Rl
g1 o el smfad e,

1 AR Neifres, dTa 7 IMITe &=id
PR PROTAT €3 FAFT TP I 33.00
RG] QU] el FOMgael SUehHIRITd
QU 3T

TR TS

3T b TMEHTIIT NETAUITR R TRy FHHI
AEHAT M aaupeRiT 9T T 3nfdies
ST &R HRUGIBRAT TAla Hshid IR,
EaTtautaE g Riggt Ricamdar fafag
SIS el BIdT. AT ST ST TGN
i, e i smawgsdl, WEdR)

4.

UNIReID HE<d, Pl M 3did fafder R,
Holedl INaEr gy, " e,
U7 D1eed, ST g fAvgiaR Artes=
RN et

AT HearE! fRae®

A dba femE Ideie He® g UM
T HTAGIHRA . § AR, 09§ Ao
fYagH el 8. 209 O 03 I7 47 JuT<A
BIATTLIBRT Hellelh Hew fHaeuial Hicha
AT Sp=a UL AP Ug, AecReC l-
JTRfEeE 3fae 003 U HeW 84 g Aee! T
PI-3MIRfCE FexT 002 =T M 9% IR
(9)(31) 3FTFIA Yo HRUAN 3MTetel! ATE.

Aeel e Pl-IMRfeE T 002 = A
9 gR=E (9)(37) T Jaed HeBM
AT Yayeigdl &o e = el
ey I R G e B S G B
Hauiilel JaATIRY GA TRIG, I G D
SRS TSI AN, T A< dfchar
o FRegRar Refn  iifherdl A9

SRIAIER BRI AR,

IER, R 3 o, Q029w dF=
JdTeleh HS®TeT d3dId a¥ 039 T 03§ AT
FHATINIS FaSUdT oAbl AR
JHT YU 3o

Ry, Piieges-9% Fduge & FdwmeRT |
STTANTST FHROT ST T ATl

IR, 2. 99 S, 2029 IS Fewedr
RiATeieh HeRTel Sodbid a¥ 2039 T 0§ AT
PHIATINIS P FeTeIeh Heob fHaSvaeh Rl
THAR, f&. 30 AR, 039 sl HeATH!
.00 ol @M &1, UH. d€ 9WRE, I
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9%.

A, &g Pier, aex (Id) Ha8 - goo 09%
) TIITEIROT FHT Hvar fRf3 et 1.

Ao e PI-3RfeE IS T 002
=7 fm 9% uRewe (9)(81) 3icrid, Hamld
AeaM & Ed . 9dd, Sae s

INRER, §as () &R I 2039 T 03
Il HIAENBRAT BT Gl HSBIA

aeua st Refi iR =H T9uE dhetl
3ME.

ACNCE PI-3T. IR B 003 =T
= a aR=eg (9)(3) ofcria, a1 Fasue
Yeuidiar "ife<ht dopean HRIBRNT aretni
. I RER, P-ARRE ANREN,
T feeell I Bodfdetel TR

ATl HSBT= =T

e depeal Feloleh Headr™ YaT Afecsec
PI-3ITRREE AN 3 003 T §H=T
Qe fRMINIR Fell ST, e daeaT el
HERIT BABRI FaTAh IR HRT FaTelh
AR, IS A, dfafted enfor anffes /
JH1T g AR el STTHA T Tost eTerdhra
AT 3.

AT dbd FaTeleh, A, T U dfed g
FfRdp BRUNRGT P AP IS
TSI Qe @ @ 3. 2% SR, 020 Ash
STeicd JdTeih HS®IA] Sodi AR HRUANRT
37T, 5. 4fed g IS Ad*Hcce g ICFA
T ‘I 3 N BRFT JediER IR,
AN, dfeq N e AR d== (IT),
IEH FasE (Risk  Management),
Jicie g fafdy RO (Policies) Im&fauard
faoiean Aeaqt IreFEd d6 Wi Wad
EMINECH

0.

9¢.

. PR Toa RS I R 23 T,
2029 SN JheAT FAd HEBAR NP
(Co-opt) To+ BUdT 37Tel. £, TR & 5o
faendiory W.0a.. (TR1-HMR) TEdER
IR T AT IOl SFeege 3
Homic TTdomed ‘fewm 37 T dle
g IOET BN Tere S eMal J9 AT
HHRICHA HIAD O A T HARAIDHE
AT AT, & BT STRTcTeh RIS AT
fasres e & elt I auigs 31fde Pl
HRRG L. TR AN, AR ¢ fafder amnfores
STEATAaST I SJeheaT dlTeids HeaTeT UHvT
Y T el

HETABIT oA :

PR THRD Hol Hdelel A&, & e
A AT 3 quid T g e TRt
3. IR AL ST JoheaT Sufael 3. w4
3nfor & 3(AT) ALY FHRUAT AT L.

U<

f2. 39 A/, 2039 Y AT P TAN
fhar 31fSes THAURT STV GHNIG=N AT
?,39,363 STD! e, TR AFHE GHNG
IR L L,L 5% TP IMR.

Fufae s gt

RBI/2039-33/24 Ref. No. DoS.CO.ARG/
SEC.04/0(.89.009/2039-23 f3. 2V Ufila,
2039 TR AR WEHR dapmdia denfiems
RIS THYHIBRAT FTATEe SR
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74

el a1 FEHENgeR e era¥iersl 0. SeaisTelt

gl / EgwieRar vRdg R 5
RN MEATPF el a9, T94,000/-
PICeT AfIp ATem< (Assets) NTeted
IR GRS & fHAM Q9 oIRaTaRIeToT
eI TR0 PRI, A& T TG helel
3Me.

I IRIFHIEAR e b . a¢ A,
2029 S FIE IMAF RIS ALef=l
Y& U dobeal AP a¥ 039-A
JETRIETTRRT TRaE R dhes
RIS urefdel. PR . 8 S, 029
AN R Rerd 9 A, gdhs . fas
37T Huetr T &, o, @Y. e S7fdy e
I EOlerh IR YT dbd IAfh
TqH 2039-33 HRAT IUMH ACRIEH =IA
I BRI HRI et

A AR aMfdfes g 2039-33 BN
P orETRIed B H. He ¢. e
3TN B, TATCE APBISC T, IR AT, HYR
BT, TRIOT 4 %, A . 9, ey et (),
Has - oo o4y MU H. TH. I, I vy
&I, TAICE STBNCcH, I 8™, Ufeel
ST, feTellet QR AT, BIT, §ei - 800 009
I HU[H PRUFRIS! B Fllelsh Hexs RIBRY
I 3=

SR fAaes

AT S Sehea Siasiet famam=r f2. 39 979,
039 wHaan Mg g« fedifse sRR=

24.

SIS MU dpe ST HNET,
FHAI T g FiERE gEe M g,
T ATl Tl Hes MMERioTell 10T I
IR, AT FEAI= @ FAIh HSe

T TR,

peleidl
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To,

The Members,
Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd.,

REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

1.

We have audited the accompanying Financial
Statements of Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd
(“the Bank”), which comprises of Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2021 and Profit and Loss Account
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
on March 31, 2021 and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information
required by the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
the Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002
and the Rules made thereunder, the guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and
the Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies, in
the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India of the state of affairs
of the Bank as at March 31,2021 and its profit and
its Cash Flows for the financial year ended on that
date.

Basis of Opinion

3.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the code of ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Banking Regulations Act, 1949
and the rules made thereunder and under the
provisions of the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Act, 2002 and the rules made thereunder and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

in accordance with these requirements and the
code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter:

4.

WedrawattentiontoNote No. 18 of the Management
Notes on Accounts, which states that the extent of
impact on account of the COVID pandemic on the
Bank’s operations and asset quality depends on
future developments, which are uncertain. In the
opinion of Bank’'s Management, the Bank's results
in future are neither expected to be materially
adverse nor would there be any significant impact
on the going concern assumption.Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and
Auditor’s Report thereon

5.

The Bank’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included
in the Report of Board of Directors including other
explanatory information, but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. The report of the Board of Directors is
expected to be made available to us after the date
of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the Report of Board of Directors
including other explanatory information, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to those charged with governance and the
members in the Annual General Meeting.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

6.

The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible
for preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Bank in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards issued by ICAI, provisions
of Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the Rules
made thereunder, provisions of Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002 and the Rules made
thereunder and circulars and guidelines issued
by RBI from time to time. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Acts for safeguarding the assets of the Bank
and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing Bank’s Financial Reporting progress.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the financial
statements

7.

76

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s
use of going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Wealso providethose charged withgovernance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account

have been drawn up in Forms A and B respectively
of the Third Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 and the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Act, 2002, the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Rules, 2002.

As required by Section 73(4) of the Multi State Co-
operative Societies Act, 2002, we report that:

a. We have obtained all the information and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purpose of our audit and have found to be
satisfactory;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have been kept by the Bank
so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and proper returns adequate for
the purposes of our audit have been received
from the branches/offices;

c. The transactions of the Bank which came to
our notice have been within the powers of the
Bank;

d. TheBalance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Account
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
report, agree with the books of account and
the returns;

e. The accounting standards adopted by the
Bank are consistent with those laid down by
accounting principles generally accepted in
India so far as applicable to Banks;

f.  Inouropinion and according to information and
explanations given to us, we have not noticed

any material impropriety or irregularity in the
expenditure or in the realisation of money due
to the Bank.

10. As per the information and explanations given to

us and based on our examination of the books of
account and other record, we report as under on
the matters specified in clause (a) to (f) of Rule
27(3) of the Multi State Co-operative Societies
Rules, 2002:-

a. We have not come across any transactions
which appear to be contrary to the provisions
of the Multi-State Co-operative Societies Act,
2002, the rules or the bye-laws of the Bank.

b. We have not come across any material or
significant transactions which appear to
be contrary to the guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

c. Money belonging to the Bank which appears to
be bad or doubtful of recovery as on 31t March,
2021 was %1,102.64 crore (i.e. ¥1,075.79 crore
in respect of advances classified as NPA as
Doubtful and Loss Assets as per prudential
norms issued by RBI & ¥26.85 crore in respect
of other assets) for which adequate provision
has been made as per extant RBI guidelines.

d. The Bank has not given loans to the members
of the Board of Directors.

e. We have not observed any violation of
guidelines, conditions etc., issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

f. The Central Registrar of Co-operative Societies
in this regard has not specified any matters to
the Bank.

For: G. D. Apte & Co,,

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No 100 515W
sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532

UDIN: 21017532AAAAAB5681

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2021
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Balance Sheet A . varen 31,2021

(Amount in?)

Capital and Liabilities Schedule Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
(1) Capital 1 3,04,81,63,030 2,85,98,99,510
(2) Reserve Fund & Other Reserves 2 43,06,58,34,640 39,51,48,62,042
(3) Principal / Subsidiary State Partnership 0 0

Fund Account

(4) Deposits & Other Accounts 3 4,08,00,61,43,568 3,80,83,49,30,053

(5) Borrowings 4 11,17,15,75,000 17,06,49,25,000

(6) Bills For Collection Being Bills
Receivable as per Contra 31,71,16,81,817 38,09,73,93,290

(7) Securities Receivable as per Contra

i. Repo 0 0

ii. Reverse Repo 19,70,00,02,860 24,50,00,25,897
(8) Branch Adjustments 0 0
(9) Overdue Interest Reserve on Loan and Advances ( As per Contra) 1,12,99,75,180 1,07,61,43,028
(10) Interest Payable 54,90,22,461 62,59,79,461
(11) Other Liabilities 5 16,10,36,62,136 12,17,57,38,821
(12) Profit & Loss 6 2,71,42,42,076 2,51,97,02,102
Total 5,37,20,03,02,768 5,19,26,95,99,204
Contingent Liabilities : 13 73,12,00,58,788 78,31,26,35,067

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532
UDIN: 21017532AAAAAB5681

Mumbai : April 23,2021
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(Amount in %)

Property and Assets Schedule Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

(1) Cash 7 18,53,54,42,588 15,36,96,37,050
(2) Balances with other Banks 8 16,22,10,00,804 5,22,90,22,247
(3) Money at Call and Short Notice 22,57,40,43,938 27,68,23,72,873
(4) Investments 9 1,40,20,70,71,038  1,31,29,03,35,422
(5) Investments out of Principal/ Subsidiary 0 0

State Partnership Fund Account

(6) Advances 10 2,62,41,70,04,773  2,53,38,64,01,349

(7) Interest Receivable

i. onlInvestments 2,24,13,69,079 1,68,52,41,497
ii. onLoans & Advances(As per Contra) 1,12,99,75,180 1,07,61,43,028
(8) Bills Receivable Being Bills for Collection as per Contra 31,71,16,81,817 38,09,73,93,290

(9) Securities Receivable as per Contra

i. Repo 0 0

ii. Reverse Repo 19,70,00,02,860 24,50,00,25,897
(10) Branch Adjustments 75,08,65,965 37,33,75,359
(11) Fixed Assets 11 8,71,92,70,702 8,84,22,80,795
(12) Other Assets 12 12,91,55,34,391 11,71,10,05,134
(13) Non-Banking Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims 0 0
(14) Computer Software 7,70,39,633 2,63,65,263
Total 5,37,20,03,02,768 5,19,26,95,99,204

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar K. V. Rangnekar S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Mumbai : April 231, 2021
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PfOﬁt and LOSS ACCOU“t For the year ended March 31, 2021

(Amount in %)

Expenditure Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020
1) Interest on Deposits, Borrowings, etc. 21,94,77,13,862 23,07,72,28,009
2) Salaries and Allowances, Provident Fund 3,59,02,41,401 3,68,87,80,493
3) Directors' and local committee members' fees and allowances 62,47,500 59,10,000
4)  Rent, Taxes, Insurance, Lighting, etc. 1,25,42,39,039 1,24,45,53,013
5) Law Charges 1,52,90,358 1,03,95,212
6) Postage, Telegram and Telephone charges 6,91,50,373 7,93,90,771
7)  Auditor's fees 6,29,34,792 5,33,30,781
8) Depreciation on and repair to property 31,04,62,538 25,75,51,213
9) Stationery, printing and advertisement, etc. 10,73,30,761 19,43,91,859
10) Loss from sale of or dealing with non-banking assets 0 0

11) Other Expenditure :

i)  Repairs and Maintenance of assets 16,66,37,350 17,57,51,712
i)  Banker's Indemnity Insurance 1,07,50,861 44,79,848
iii) Premium paid to DICGC 45,11,79,826 36,04,22,753
iv) Premium paid to ECGC 1,22,12,931 1,61,64,688
v)  Cheque Processing Charges 75,49,051 1,21,09,305
vi) Leased Line Expenditure 6,95,72,761 6,70,50,388
vii) Travelling and Conveyance 2,64,52,515 2,99,04,196
viii) Security Service Charges 36,86,36,368 35,58,79,446
ix) Amortisation of Investments 25,22,12,508 16,39,34,002
X)  Professional Fees 11,48,02,324 9,37,19,452
xi) Bank Charges 5,00,69,009 20,80,92,868
xii) Digital Banking Expenses 31,26,23,710 33,72,35,334
xiii) Car Expenses 1,18,66,168 1,24,95,181
xiv) Housekeeping Charges 4,19,05,029 3,27,19,028
xv) Sundries 57,73,28,288 42,40,13,066
2,47,37,98,699 2,29,39,71,267
12) Provisions :
i) Provision for Depreciation on Investments 24,72,92,000 21,18,62,583
ii)  Bad And Doubtful Debts Reserve - (incl. Other Assets) 1,92,53,00,263 2,41,90,18,049
iii) Reserve for Restructured Assets- Covid 75,22,17,560 0
iv) Contingent Provision Against Standard Assets 3,92,00,000 0
v)  Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief 1,69,00,000 1,55,44,642
2,98,09,09,823 2,64,64,25,274
13) Income-Tax Expenses :
i)  Current Tax 1,30,50,00,000 1,40,30,00,000
i) Deferred Tax 43,47,00,000 (7,98,39,149)
iii) Short /(Excess) Provision for Tax of earlier years (Net) 0 9,78,44,194
1,73,97,00,000 1,42,10,05,045
14) Net Profit carried to Balance Sheet 2,70,24,47,574 2,50,79,47,682
Total 37,26,04,66,720 37,48,08,80,619

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/-

(C. M. Dixit)

Partner

Membership No. 017532
UDIN: 21017532AAAAAB5681

Mumbai : April 23,2021
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(Amount in %)

Income Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

1) Interest & Discount 30,76,58,94,859 32,32,56,51,194

2) Commission, exchange and brokerage 1,25,17,44,159 1,12,43,42,620

3) Profit on Sale of Securities (Net) 3,56,82,74,591 2,26,87,21,470

4) Other Receipts

i) Processing Fees 37,08,72,527 44,43,80,531
ii) Service Charges 62,43,26,309 67,69,70,497
iii) Recovery of Expenses 1,24,27,834 1,55,31,191
iv) Profit on Sale of Assets (Net) 1,95,56,512 20,15,249
v) Digital Banking Income 26,11,43,375 38,80,26,055
vi) Miscellaneous Income 18,73,44,281 9,73,49,098
vii) Dividend 2,93,896 9,33,685

1,47,59,64,734 1,62,52,06,306

5) Excess Provision of earlier years written back 32,36,726 58,16,355
6) Bad Debts earlier written off, now recovered 5,28,32,009 7,26,70,174
7)  Excess Contigent provision against standard assets written back 0 3,33,00,000
8) Excess Provision for Restructured Assets reversed 11,00,75,000 2,51,72,500
9) Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief written back 3,24,44,642 0
Total 37,26,04,66,720 37,48,08,80,619
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar K. V. Rangnekar S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Mumbai : April 231, 2021
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SCthUleS forming part Of ACCOUHtS For the year ended March 31, 2021

SCHEDULE 1 - CAPITAL

(Amountin¥)

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i)  Authorised Capital :
100,00,00,000 Shares of ¥ 10/- each 10,00,00,00,000 10,00,00,00,000
(Previous year 100,00,00,000 shares )
Subscribed Capital : 2,50,37,18,030 2,31,54,54,510
25,03,71,803 Shares of ¥10/- each
(Previous year 23,15,45,451 shares of ¥ 10/- each)
Amount Called up : 2,50,37,18,030 2,31,54,54,510
25,03,71,803 Shares of ¥10/- each
(Previous year 23,15,45,451 shares of ¥ 10/- each)
Of the above held by :
a) Individuals 2,50,37,18,030 2,31,54,54,510
b) Co-operative institutions 0 0
c) State Government 0 0
ii)Preference Share Capital
5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each 54,44,45,000 54,44,45,000
(Previous year 5,44,44,500 Preference Shares of ¥ 10/- each)
Total 3,04,81,63,030 2,85,98,99,510
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVE FUND & OTHER RESERVES
(Amount in¥)
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i) Statutory Reserve 9,12,59,52,795 8,43,08,73,368
ii)  Building Fund 2,52,90,93,933 2,52,90,93,933
iii) Dividend Equalisation Fund 0 0
iv) Special Bad Debts Reserve 0 0
v) Bad & Doubtful Debts Reserve 9,25,41,17,899 8,59,57,48,439
vi) Investment Fluctuation Reserve 3,00,35,00,710 2,30,35,00,710
vii) Other Funds and Reserve:
a) Restructured Assets Reserve 12,48,50,000 23,49,25,000
b) Contingency Reserve 3,25,81,28,450 3,00,73,33,650
c) Contingent provision against Standard Assets 1,05,02,00,000 1,01,10,00,000
d) Members' Welfare Fund 13,23,50,000 12,73,50,000
e) Provision for Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 14,69,20,879 13,40,38,504
f)  Provision for Staff Welfare 1,67,05,723 1,63,98,992
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(Amount in %)

g) Net Open Foreign Currency Position Reserve

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000

h) General Reserve

4,33,75,40,077 4,02,67,74115

i)  Revaluation Reserve

6,06,37,06,762 6,25,90,22,837

j)  Special Reserve u/s 36(1)(viii) of . Tax Act, 1961

1,88,28,00,000 1,68,28,00,000

k) Reserve for Excess Provision on Sale of Financial Assets 3,67,99,852 3,67,99,852
I)  Reserve for COVID Relief Account 0 1,55,44,642
m) Provision for Restructuring other loans 62,38,78,861 0
n) Provision for Restructuring MSME (Covid Framework) 12,83,38,699 0

o) Contingent Provision against Depreciation in Investments

1,33,09,50,000 1,08,36,58,000

Total  43,06,58,34,640  39,51,48,62,042

SCHEDULE 3 - DEPOSITS & OTHER ACCOUNTS

(Amount in %)

Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

i) Fixed Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others

2,15,79,68,70,287  2,06,15,73,11,829

b) Central Co-op. Banks

50,00,000 50,00,000

c) Other Societies

67,22,66,25,317 67,43,31,86,937

G

) 2,83,02,84,95,604 2,73,59,54,98,766

ii) Savings Bank Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others

92,04,12,37,809 79,51,76,12,934

b) Central Co-op. Banks

0 0

c) Other Societies

5,78,24,06,914 5,61,58,30,424

(i) 97,82,36,44,723  85,13,34,43,358

iii) Current Deposits :

a) Individuals & Others

25,90,25,41,986 20,74,80,65,914

b) Central Co-op. Banks

1,85,59,151 2,00,12,428

c) Other Societies

1,23,29,02,104 1,33,79,09,587

(i)  27,15,40,03,241  22,10,59,87,929

Total (i+ii+iii) 4,08,00,61,43,568 3,80,83,49,30,053
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SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS

Current Year
31.03.2021

i) From the Reserve Bank of India / State / Central Co-op Bank

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

a) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credits and Overdrafts 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and Other Approved Securities
B) Other Tangible Securities
b) Medium-Term Loans 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and other approved securities
B) Other Tangible securities
c) Long-Term Loans 0 0
of which secured against -
A) Government and other approved securities
B) Other Tangible securities
ii) From the State Bank of India
iii) From the State Government
iv) Loans from other sources (source and securities to be specified)
a) RBIRepo (LAF) 0 4,69,00,00,000
b) Repo Borrowings 0 0
c) Repo Borrowing under TREPS (TRIPARTY) 0 0
d) Foreign Currency Borrowing from Banks 1,09,66,50,000 0
e) Long Term (Subordinated) Deposits 10,07,49,25,000 12,37,49,25,000
Total 11,17,15,75,000 17,06,49,25,000
SCHEDULE 5 — OTHER LIABILITIES
(Amount in )
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i) Bills Payable 1,98,73,02,799 45,28,23,082
ii) Unclaimed Dividend 9,38,87,796 16,47,50,270
iii) Suspense 36,96,61,663 40,43,55,715
iv) Provision for Staff Pension 42,95,48,425 42,42,01,675
v) Rebate on Bills Discounted 2,38,43,907 2,05,53,300
vi) Credit balance in Bank Account 32,36,77,044 37,45,85,933
vii) Provision for Leave Encashment 0 2,96,56,039
viii) Provision for Taxation 6,91,08,56,259 5,60,58,56,259
ix) Other items 5,96,48,84,243 4,69,89,56,548
Total 16,10,36,62,136  12,17,57,38,821
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SCHEDULE 6 — PROFIT & LOSS

(Amountin¥)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

Current Year
31.03.2021

Profit as per last Balance Sheet (a) 2,51,97,02,102 2,92,27,07,920
Less : Appropriations of profit for the year 2019-20
Reserve Fund 62,69,87,000 72,82,13,000
Dividend 0 33,70,31,300
Dividend on Preference Shares 0 5,71,66,800
Public Charitable & Co-operative Purpose 2,50,79,500 2,91,28,600
Provision for Staff Welfare 10,00,000 10,00,000
Members' Welfare Fund 50,00,000 1,00,00,000
Ex-gratia to Employees 31,00,00,000 36,30,00,000
Education fund 2,50,79,500 2,91,28,600
Contingency Reserve 25,07,94,800 29,12,85,200
Investment Fluctuation Reserve 70,00,00,000 22,00,00,000
Special Reserve 20,00,00,000 22,00,00,000
General Reserve 36,39,66,800 62,50,00,000
(b) 2,50,79,07,600 2,91,09,53,500
(a)-(b) 1,17,94,502 1,17,54,420
Add : Profit for the year as per Profit & Loss Account 2,70,24,47,574 2,50,79,47,682
Total 2,71,42,42,076 2,51,97,02,102

SCHEDULE 7 - CASH
(Amountin¥)

Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

i) Cashinhand 2,45,33,32,666 2,90,68,83,863
ii) Cash with Reserve Bank of India 16,00,80,91,647 12,44,88,09,934
iii) Cash with State Bank of India 6,43,637 25,55,027
iv) Cash with State Co-operative Banks 49,120 50,064
v) Cash with Central Co-operative Banks 7,33,25,518 1,13,38,162
Total 18,53,54,42,588  15,36,96,37,050

SCHEDULE 8 - BALANCE WITH OTHER BANKS

(Amount in¥)

Current Year Previous Year

31.03.2021 31.03.2020

i)  Current Deposits 15,56,23,52,328 4,77,26,24,684
(Including ¥1334.81 crore with Banks in Foreign Countries [P.Y. ¥ 331.47 crore])

ii)  Savings Bank Deposits 0 0

iii) Fixed Deposits (including%15.60 crore pledged for securing funded/non-funded 65,86,48,476 45,63,97,563

facilities and treasury operations [P.Y. ¥ 20.09 crore])
Total 16,22,10,00,804 5,22,90,22,247
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SCHEDULE 9 - INVESTMENTS

Current Year

31.03.2021

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

i) a) InCentral and State Government Securities (at book value) 1,04,61,23,81,813  82,39,68,34,421
Face Value -Z 10311.04 crore (PY. % 8139.49 crore)
Market Value -310229.96 crore (PY. % 8301.91 crore)
(including ¥ 1717.04 crore pledged for Treasury operations (P.Y.Z 3003.13 crore))
b) Reserve Fund Investments
In Central / State Govt. Securities 9,12,59,53,159 8,43,08,74,857
Face Value - 903.43 crore (PY. % 834.63 crore)
Market Value - ¥ 937.76 crore (P.Y.Z 861.22 crore)
¢) Members’ Welfare Fund Investments
In Central / State Govt. Securities 13,23,50,040 12,73,50,170
Face Value -%13.27 crore (P.Y.% 12.77 crore)
Market Value -%13.93 crore (P.Y. % 13.28 crore)
ii)  Other trustee Securities 0 0
iii) Shares in Co-operative Institutions (Other than item (5) below) 22,58,518 22,58,518
iv) Bonds Issued by Public Sector Units 3,27,78,23,000 54,78,23,000
v) Other Investments:
Bonds Issued by Public Sector Banks 1,10,00,00,000 31,00,00,000
Bonds Issued by Other Institutions 2,59,98,51,251 1,35,00,00,000
Bonds of All India Financial Institutions 7,21,09,35,200 8,69,34,50,650
Shares of Limited Company 31,04,307 31,04,306
Units of Mutual Funds 0 1,00,00,000
Certificate of Deposit 10,09,11,93,750 27,32,67,31,500
Commercial Paper 0 0
Security Receipts 2,05,12,20,000 2,09,19,08,000
Total 1,40,20,70,71,038 1,31,29,03,35,422

SCHEDULE 10 — ADVANCES

Current Year

31.03.2021

(Amount in %)

Previous Year
31.03.2020

1) Short-Term Loans, Cash Credit,

Overdrafts & Bills Discounted

Of which secured against :

a) Government & Other approved Securities 53,36,95,545 50,16,03,969

b) Other Tangible Securities 1,04,78,93,85,829 1,03,46,51,15,244

c) Personal Advances 2,05,69,27,276 2,00,88,39,522
(1 1,07,38,00,08,650 1,05,97,55,58,735
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(Amount in¥)

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

1,05,35,20,54,368 1,04,41,08,12,826

Of the Advances, amount Overdue

6,73,23,66,195 7,06,47,51,177

Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for)

3,62,68,95,332 3,11,06,90,509

) Medium-Term Advances

Of which secured against :

a) Government & Other approved Securities 2,68,49,745 4,21,09,626
b) Other Tangible Securities 17,10,58,24,408 24,66,15,56,829
c) Personal Advances 1,12,70,79,461 43,47,54,686

() 18,2597,53,614  25,13,84,21,141

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

18,25,44,05,149 2513,02,17,057

Of the Advances, amount Overdue

2,44,77,31,291 4,09,17,61,807

Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for)

1,41,05,25,508 2,10,79,46,531

lll) Long-Term Advances

Of which secured against :

a) Government & Other approved Securities 5,13,60,875 5,22,83,660
b) Other Tangible Securities 1,36,64,70,84,176 1,22,17,11,97,301
c) Personal Advances 7,87,97,458 4,89,40,512

() 1,36,77,72,42,509 1,22,27,24,21,473

Of the Advances, amount due from individuals

1,36,33,46,25,096  1,21,82,82,46,740

Of the Advances, amount Overdue

1,91,08,26,219 2,34,16,56,300

Considered Bad & Doubtful of recovery (Fully Provided for)

2,04,51,31,283 1,34,52,20,423

Total (I+1I+11l) 2,62,41,70,04,773 2,53,38,64,01,349

SCHEDULE 11 - FIXED ASSETS

(Amount in¥)

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
| PREMISES LESS DEPRECIATION
i) Leasehold Land

Cost as on 1.04.2020 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880
(a) 1,75,61,880 1,75,61,880

Less : Amortisation
Amortisation upto last year (47,04,355) (44,97,687)
Amortisation for current year (2,06,665) (2,06,668)
(b) (49,11,020) (47,04,355)
Total (a-b) 1,26,50,860 1,28,57,525
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(Amountin )
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
ii) Premises (including freehold land)
Cost as on 1.04.2020 10,05,36,56,456 9,88,52,56,453
Add :Additions during the year 0 16,84,00,003
Less : Sales/Adjustment during the year (269,54,707) 0
(a) 10,02,67,01,749 10,05,36,56,456
Less : Depreciation
Depreciation upto last year (2,06,79,36,884) (1,82,16,07,207)
Depreciation for current year (5,58,37,818) (5,61,82,901)
Depreciation on Revalued Amount (18,99,94,736) (19,01,46,776)
Depreciation on sales 63,79,480 0
(b) (2,30,73,89,958) (2,06,79,36,884)
Total (a-b) 7,71,93,11,791 7,98,57,19,572
iii) Leasehold Improvement
Book value as on 1.04.2020 2,09,18,802 2,88,72,821
Add : Additions during the year 0 0
2,09,18,802 2,88,72,821
Less : Amortisation for current year (63,07,361) (79,54,019)
Total 1,46,11,441 2,09,18,802
I FURNITURE & FIXTURE LESS DEPRECIATION
Book value as on 1.04.2020 10,82,95,764 11,09,80,269
Add : Additions during the year 1,98,45,498 3,95,52,738
12,81,41,262 15,05,33,007
Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) (4,79,434) (7,97,515)
12,76,61,828 14,97,35,492
Less : Depreciation for current year (3,61,91,051) (4,14,39,728)
Total 9,14,70,777 10,82,95,764
Il OTHER ASSETS
i) Plant & Machinery
Book value as on 1.04.2020 9,62,42,270 8,39,20,449
Add : Additions during the year 3,80,55,918 4,89,76,389
13,42,98,188 13,28,96,838
Less : Sales/Adjustment (Net) (12,97,629) (10,19,059)
13,30,00,559 13,18,77,779
Less : Depreciation for current year (3,66,64,395) (3,56,35,509)
Total 9,63,36,164 9,62,42,270
ii) Computers
Cost as on 1.04.2020 62,95,96,948 46,14,64,151
Add : Additions during the year 14,18,88,463 20,64,22,423
Less : Sold during the year (2,32,78,968) (3,82,89,626)
(a) 74,82,06,443 62,95,96,948
Less : Depreciation upto last year (40,39,38,936) (36,31,35,984)
Depreciation for current year (13,56,76,457) (7,89,51,860)
Depreciation on sales 2,32,56,527 3,81,48,908
(b) (51,63,58,866) (40,39,38,936)
Total (a-b) 23,18,47,577 22,56,58,012
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(Amount in )
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

iii) Motor Cars

Cost as on 1.04.2020 10,82,96,560 10,20,04,020
Add : Additions during the year 13,32,906 1,38,82,427
Less : Sold during the year (48,15,093) (75,89,887)
(a) 10,48,14,373 10,82,96,560
Less : Depreciation upto last year (7,27,70,001) (6,58,88,942)
Depreciation for current year (1,06,78,271) (1,35,57,462)
Depreciation on sales 42,16,420 66,76,403
(b) (7,92,31,852) (7,27,70,001)
Total (a-b) 2,55,82,521 3,55,26,559
IV CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (PREMISES) 46,39,162 46,39,162
V  CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS (SOFTWARE) 52,28,20,409 35,24,23,129
Grand Total (1to V) 8,71,92,70,702 8,84,22,80,795

SCHEDULE 12 - OTHER ASSETS

(Amount in %)

Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i)  Deposit for Services 32,76,93,168 31,39,04,218
ii) Rent Receivable 4,35,181 4,18,591
iii) Renton Lockers in Arrears 51,42,180 60,06,451
iv) Stamps on Hand 22,86,752 23,82,330
v) Prepaid Expenses 8,01,33,816 7,03,87,925
vi) Deferred Tax Asset 1,89,66,41,672 2,33,13,41,672
vii) Income Tax paid 6,97,91,94,608 5,93,51,66,293
viii) Margin on Guarantee Fund (CCIL) 72,18,80,000 81,57,85,000
ix) Other dues 2,90,21,27,014 2,23,56,12,654
Total  12,91,55,34,391 11,71,10,05,134

SCHEDULE 13 — CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in %)
Current Year Previous Year
31.03.2021 31.03.2020
i) Letters of Credit 9,31,59,13,021 9,85,87,34,492
ii) Guarantees 6,14,72,30,607 6,67,20,16,830
iiiy Forward Sale/Purchase Contracts 56,31,36,29,905 60,59,49,93,274
iv) Unclaimed Liabilities under DEAF Scheme 1,34,32,85,255 1,18,68,90,471
Total 73,12,00,58,788  78,31,26,35,067
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Notes forming part of the Balance Sheet

As at March 31, 2021 and Profit and Loss Account for the year ended March 31, 2021.

I. OVERVIEW: (as modified by revaluation of premises) and

on “Going Concern” basis.
1) Background: g

Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd was 2) Foreign currency transactions:
incorporated in 1918 and provides a complete 2.1 Transactions denominated in foreign
suite of corporate and retail banking products. currencies are accounted for at the rates

prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Monetary foreign currency assets and
liabilities at the Balance Sheet date are
translated at rates notified by Foreign
Exchange Dealers’ Association of India
(FEDALI). All profits/losses resulting from

2) Basis of preparation:
The financial statements have been prepared
and presented under the historical cost
convention on the accrual basis of accounting,
unless otherwise stated and comply with

generally accepted accounting principles, year-end revaluations are recognised in
statutory requirements prescribed under the Profit and Loss account.

the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and the

Multi State Co-operative Societies Act, 2002, 2.2 Outstanding forward exchange contracts
circulars and guidelines issued by the Reserve and spot exchange contracts are revalued
Bank of India (RBI) from time to time, the at year end exchange rates notified by
Accounting Standards (AS) issued by the FEDAI. The resulting gains or losses on
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India revaluation are included in the Profit and
(ICAI) and current practices prevailing within Loss account in accordance with RBI/

the banking industry in India. FEDAI guidelines.

2.3 Contingent Liabilities on account of
foreign exchange contracts, guarantees,
acceptances, endorsements and other
obligations denominated in foreign
currencies are disclosed at closing rates
of exchange notified by FEDAI.

3) Use of estimates:
The preparation of the financial statements, in
conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles, requires Management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
revenues and expenses and disclosure of 2.4 The Bank has no foreign branches.
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial 3)
statements. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. Management believes
that the estimates used in the preparation
of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. Any revision to the accounting

Investments:

3.1 Categorization of investments:
In accordance with guidelines issued by
RBI, the Bank classifies its investment
portfolio into the following three
categories:

estimates is recognized prospectively. i) ‘Held to Maturity - Securities
Il. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: acquired by the Bank with the
intention to hold till maturity.
1) Accounting Convention: i) ‘Held for Trading’ - Securities
The financial statements are drawn up in acquired by the Bank with the
accordance with the historical cost convention intention to trade.
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3.2

3.3

iii) ‘Available for Sale’ - Securities
which do not fall within the above
two categories are classified as
‘Available for Sale’.

Classification of Investments:

For the purpose of disclosure in

the Balance Sheet, Investments are

classified as required under the Banking

Regulation Act, 1949 and RBI guidelines

as follows:—

Government Securities, Other Trustee
Securities, Shares in co-operative
institutions, Shares of limited companies,
PSU Bonds, Bonds of All India Financial
Institutions, Security Receipts and other
Investments.

Valuation of Investments:

(i) ‘Held to Maturity - These
investments are carried at their
acquisition cost less amortization.
Any premium on acquisition
is amortised over the period
remaining to maturity.

(i) ‘Held for Trading’ — The individual
scrip in the HFT category is marked
to market at monthly intervals. The
net resultant depreciation in each
classification (as mentioned in
Para 3.2 above) is recognized in
the Profit and Loss Account. Net
appreciation, if any, is ignored.

(iii) ‘Available for Sale’ — The individual
scrip in the AFS category is marked
to market at the year end or at more
frequent intervals. The net resultant
depreciation in each classification
(as mentioned in Para 3.2 above)
is recognized in the Profit and Loss
Account. Net appreciation, if any, is

ignored.
(iv) Market value of Government
Securities  (excluding  Treasury

Bills) is determined based on the
price list published by RBI or the

3.4

prices periodically declared by
FBIL for valuation at year-end. In
case of unquoted Government
Securities, market price or fair
value is determined as per the rates
published by FBIL.

(v) Market value of other approved
securities is determined based
on the yield curve and spreads
provided by FBIL.

(vi) Equity shares are valued at cost or
the closing quotes on a recognised
stock exchange, whichever is lower.

(vii) Treasury Bills are valued at carrying
cost, net of discount amortised
over the period to maturity.

(viii) Certificate of Deposits and
Commercial Papers are valued at
carrying cost.

(ix) Units of Mutual Funds are valued
at the lower of cost and net asset
value provided by the respective
Mutual Fund.

(x) Security Receipts - These are valued
at Net Asset Value as provided by
the Asset Reconstruction Company.

(xi) Broken period interest on debt
instruments is treated as a revenue
item. Brokerage, commission, etc.
pertaining to investments paid at
the time of acquisition are charged
to revenue.

(xii) Non performing investments are
identified and classified as per
applicable RBI guidelines.

Accounting for Repo / Reverse Repo

transactions (including transactions

under the liquidity Adjustment Facility

(LAF) with the RBI)

The securities sold and purchased under

Repo/ Reverse Repo are accounted as

Collateralized Borrowing and Lending

transactions. However, securities are

transferred as in the case of normal
outright sale/ purchase transactions and
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such movement of securities is reflected
using the Repo/ Reverse Repo accounts
and contra entries. The above entries
are reversed on the date of maturity.
Costs and revenue are accounted as
interest expenditure/income, as the
case may be. Balance in Repo account is
classified under schedule 4 (Borrowings)
and balance in Reverse Repo account is
classified under Money at Call & Short
Notice.

4) Provisioning for Advances and Overdue
Interest Reserve:

4.1

4.2

The classification of advances into
Standard, Sub-standard, Doubtful and
Loss assets as well as provision on non-
performing advances has been arrived at
in accordance with the guidelines issued
by RBI fromtime to time. In addition to this,
a general provision on standard assets is
made @0.40% of the outstanding amount
on a portfolio basis except in case of
direct advances to Agricultural and SME
sector @ 0.25%, advances to Commercial
Real Estate @ 1% and Commercial Real
Estate- Residential House Sector @
0.75%.

In respect of restructured advances,
including advances restructured
under the COVID Regulatory package,
adequate provisioning has been made
in accordance with the RBI guidelines
issued from time to time.

The overdue interest in respect of
non-performing advances is provided
separately under “Overdue Interest
Reserve” as per the directives issued by
RBI.

5) Revenue Recognition (AS 9):
5.1 Iltems of income and expenditure are

accounted for on accrual basis.

5.2 Income from non-performing assets is

92

recognised to the extent realised, as per

6)

53

5.4

5.5

5.6

the directives issued by RBI.

Interest on Government Securities,
debentures and other fixed income
securities is recognised on accrual basis.
Income on discounted instruments
is recognised over the tenor of the
instrument on a straight-line basis.

Dividend income is accounted on receipt
basis.

Exchange and brokerage are recognised
on realisation.

Income from distribution of insurance
products is recognised on the basis of
business booked.

Property, Plant and Equipment (AS 10):

6.1

6.2

Leasehold Land, Computers and Motor
Cars are stated at cost less amortisation/
depreciation. Furniture & Fixtures, Plant &
Machinery and Leasehold improvement
are stated at written down value after
providing depreciation/amortization.

Premises (including Freehold Land):
These are stated at the revalued amounts
less depreciation.

The Bank has framed its own policy for
the revaluation of immovable properties,
which is duly approved by it's Board of
Directors. Revaluations are carried out
by obtaining expert valuation reports by
using applicable methods of valuations.

Cost includes incidental expenses
incurred on acquisition of assets.

(i) Plant & Machinery, Furniture
& Fixtures and Motor Cars are
depreciated on written down value
method @30% p.a.

(i) Premises (excluding Freehold Land)
are depreciated on straight line
method @ 2.5% p.a.
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(iii) Lease improvement costs are
amortised over the period of lease.

(iv) Leasehold Land is amortised over
the period of lease.

(v) Computers are depreciated on
straight line method @ 33.33% as
directed by RBI.

(vi) Depreciation on revalued portion
of Premises is adjusted against
Revaluation Reserve.

6.3 Depreciation on fixed assets purchased
during the year is charged for the entire
year if 180 days or more have elapsed
since its purchase; otherwise it is charged
at 50% of the normal rate. No depreciation
is charged on fixed assets sold during the
year.

6.4 The additions to the Fixed Assets are net
of GST Input Tax Credit to the extent it is
availed by the Bank.

7) Deposit for Services:
The Deposit for Services like Telephone,
Electricity, etc. paid to the concerned
authorities is written off as expenditure in the
year in which the relevant service connection
is installed.

8) Employee Benefits (AS 15):
8.1 Gratuity:
The Bank provides for gratuity to all
employees. The benefit vests upon
completion of five years of service and
is in the form of lump sum payment to
employees on resignation, retirement,
death while in employment or on
termination of employment, an amount
equivalent to 15 days salary plus eligible
allowances payable for each completed
year of service, as per the Payment of
Gratuity Act,1972. The Bank makes
contributions to funds administered by
trustees and managed by the LIC of India.

8.2.

The defined gratuity benefit plans are
valued by an independent actuary as
at the Balance Sheet date, using the
projected unit credit method as per
the requirement of AS-15 “Employee
Benefits”, to determine the present value
of the defined benefit obligation and the
related service costs. Under this method,
the determination is based on actuarial
calculations, which include assumptions
about demographics, early retirement,
salary increases and interest rates.
Actuarial gain or loss is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provident fund:

In accordance with law, all the employees
of the Bank are entitled to receive
benefits under the provident fund. Every
employee contributes an amount, on a
monthly basis, at a determined rate. The
Bank contributes an equal amount. This
amount is transferred to PF account
managed by the Employees’ PF Trust.

In the case merged banks i.e. erstwhile
Maratha Mandir Co-op. Bank Ltd,
erstwhile Mandvi Co-op. Bank Ltd,
erstwhile South Indian Co-op. Bank
Ltd., erstwhile Nashik Peoples Co-op.
Bank Ltd., erstwhile Annasaheb Karale
Janata Sahakari Bank Ltd., erstwhile
Murgharajendra Sahakari Bank Ltd., and
erstwhile Kolhapur Maratha Co-op. Bank
Ltd, PF contribution of employees of
these merged banks and the employer’s
contribution is transferred to RPFC,
Bandra, Mumbai.

The Bank’s contribution to Provident
Fund is accounted for on the basis of
contribution to the scheme.

8.3 Leave Encashment:

In respect of leave encashment liability,
the Bank has obtained Insurance Policies
with four different insurance companies.

I Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 93



¢ Saraswat

Bank

PROGRESS. GROWTH. SAFETY.

The shortfall, if any between projected
benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets as on 31t March is provided
for and recognized as expense in the
Profit and Loss Account. The liability
of leave encashment is provided on the
basis of actuarial valuation as at the
Balance Sheet date and considered as
defined benefit scheme. The actuarial
valuation is carried out as per projected
unit credit method.

8.4 Pension and LTC

The liability towards Staff Pension and
unavailed LTC is provided on the basis
of actuarial valuation as at the Balance
Sheet date and considered as defined
benefit scheme. The actuarial valuation
is carried out as per projected unit credit
method.

9) Segment Reporting (AS 17):

In accordance with the guidelines issued by
RBI, Bank has adopted Segment Reporting as
under:

9.1 SBU Treasury includes all investment
portfolio, profit/loss on sale of
investments, profit/loss on foreign
exchange transactions, equities and
money market operations. The expenses
of this segment primarily consist of
interest expenses on funds borrowed
from external sources as well as internal
sources and depreciation/ amortization
of premium on Held to Maturity category
investments.

9.2 OtherBanking Operations include all other
operations not covered under Treasury
operations.

10) Related Party Disclosures (AS 18):

There are no related parties which require
a disclosure under AS 18 other than the Key
Management Personnel. Since Mrs. S. M.
Sandhane, the Managing Director of the

Bank is a single party under the category Key
Management Personnel, no further details
need to be disclosed in terms of RBI circular
dated 29™ March, 2003.

11) Operating Leases (AS 19):

Lease rental obligations in respect of assets
taken on operating lease are charged to Profit
and Loss Account on straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs are charged
to Profit and Loss account.

12) Earnings per Share (AS 20):

Basic earning per share is calculated by
dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the
weighted average number of shares (excluding
preference shares) outstanding during the year
calculated on monthly basis.

13) Income-Tax (AS 22):

13.1 Current income tax is measured at
the amount expected to be paid to the
Tax Authorities in accordance with the
applicable provisions under the Income
Tax Act, 1961.

13.2 Deferred Tax assets and liabilities are
recognized, subject to consideration
of prudence, on timing difference,
representing the difference between
taxable income and accounting income
that originated in one period and is
capable of reversal in one or more
subsequent periods. Deferred Tax
Assets and Liabilities are measured
using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantially enacted
by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognized and re-assessed
at each reporting date, based upon the
Management'’s judgement as to whether
realization is considered as reasonably
certain.

14) Intangible Assets (AS 26):

Intangible assets consist of Computer
Software acquired / self created. The same
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is amortized equally over the period of three
years as per RBI guidelines.

15) Impairment of Assets (AS 28):

The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet
date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired. Impairment loss, if any,
is recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss
to the extent, the carrying amount of asset
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Since the Bank has ascertained that there is
no material impairment of any of its assets, no
provision on account of impairment of assets
is required to be made.

16) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and

Contingent Assets (AS 29):

A provision is recognised when the Bank has
a present obligation as a result of past event
whereitis probablethatan outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. Provisions are not discounted to its
present value and are determined based on
best estimate required to settle the obligation
at the Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed

at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimates.

When there is a possible or present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made.

Contingent Assets are not recognised in the
financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic
benefits will arise, the asset and related
income are recognised in the period in which
the change occurs.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from
a past event, the existence of which will be
confirmed by occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not
within the control of the Bank or any present
obligation arising from past event which is
not recognized since it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation or a reliable estimate of the
amount of such obligation cannot be made.
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lll. NOTES TO ACCOUNTS:

1) The Share Capital includes 771023 shares of ¥ 10/- each in respect of the persons who have not subscribed
to additional shares to make their shareholding minimum of 50 shares as required under Bye-law No.6C and
as a result, they are not entitled to their membership rights.

2) Interms of RBI directives, following additional disclosures are made:

R in crore)
No.
1. Capital to Risk Weighted Asset Ratio 14.26% 14.75%
2. Movement in CRAR
(i) Total Capital Funds 3,706.53 3,643.24
(ii) Risk Weighted Assets 25,997.20 24,696.35
3. Investments :
(i) Book Value 14,020.71 13,129.03
(ii) Face Value 14,187.09 13,365.56
(i) Market Value 13,707.92 13,115.96
4. Advances against :
(i) Real Estate 814.04 849.84
(i) Construction Business 80.64 87.40
(iii) Housing 5,275.09 4,596.39
Advances against shares & debentures 25.16 29.24
6. Advances to directors, their relatives, companies/firms in which they are
interested:
(i) Fund based NIL NIL
(i) Non-Fund based NIL NIL
7. Average cost of deposits 5.37% 6.04%
NPAs
(i) Gross NPAs 1,200.58 1,249.80
(i) Net NPAs 263.36 382.30
9. Movement in NPAs
(i) Gross NPAs
Opening Balance 1,249.80 1,193.57
Add : Additions during the year 308.93 499.97
Less : Reduction / write off / upgradation during the year 358.15 443.74
Closing Balance. 1,200.58 1,249.80
(i) Net NPAs
Opening Balance 382.30 451.89
Add : Additions during the year 119.87 263.37
Less : Reduction during the year 238.81 332.96
Closing Balance 263.36 382.30
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(X in crore)

Sr. Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
No.

10.  Profitability :

(i) Interestincome as a percentage of working funds (%) 6.46 7.24
(i) Non-interest income as a percentage of working funds (%) 1.33 1.14
(iii)y Operating profit as a percentage of working funds (%) 1.53 1.46
(iv) Return on average Assets (%) 0.58 0.58
(v) Business (Deposits + Advances) per employee (% in crore) 15.80 14.94
(vi) Operating profit per employee (% in crore) 0.17 0.15
11.  Provisions made towards :
(i) NPAs 189.07 236.60
(i) Depreciation on investments 24.73 19.94
(iii) Standard Assets 3.92 (3.33)
(iv) Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief (1.55) 1.55
(v) Provision towards MSME & COVID related stress restructuring 75.23 0.00

12. Movement in Provisions :
(i) Towards NPAs

Opening Balance 834.20 741.68
Add : Additions during the year 189.07 236.60
Less : Reduction during the year 124.71 144.08
Closing Balance 898.56 834.20
(i) Towards Depreciation on investments
Opening Balance 108.37 88.43
Add : Additions during the year 26.29 19.94
Less : Reduction during the year 1.56 0.00
Closing Balance 133.10 108.37
(iii) Towards Standard Assets
Opening Balance 101.10 104.43
Add : Additions during the year 3.92 0.00
Less : Reduction during the year 0.00 3.33
Closing Balance 105.02 101.10
(iv) Towards COVID Relief Accounts:
Opening Balance 1.55 0.00
Add : Additions during the year 1.69 1.55
Less : Reduction during the year 3.24 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 1.55
(v) Towards MSME and COVID related Stress Restructured Accounts:
Opening Balance 0.00 0.00
Add : Additions for MSME Restructuring during the year 12.84 0.00
Add : Additions for COVID related restructuring during the year 62.39 0.00
Less : Reduction during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 75.23 0.00
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(X in crore)
No.
13. (i) Foreign currency assets 2,444.12 1,512.00
(ii) Foreign currency liabilities 291.62 185.50
14 (i) Payment of DICGC Insurance Premium 45.12 36.04
(ii) Arrears in payment of DICGC premium NIL NIL
15.  Penalty imposed by RBI NIL 0.30*
16.  Cost of premises
Original Cost 241.62 243.71
Add :- Revaluation 761.05 761.66
Closing Balance of premises 1,002.67 1,005.37
Closing Balance of Revaluation Reserve 606.37 625.90
*vide RBI letter dated 28.05.2020
3) In connection with Repo/Reverse Repo transactions:
(R in crore)
Particulars Minimum Maximum  Daily average Outstanding

98

outstanding
during the year

Security sold under Repo

outstanding

during the year

outstanding
during the year

ason
31t March 2021

i)  Government Securities 0.00 1,958.68 546.32 0.00
(0.00) (1,263.26) (537.66) (0.00)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Securities purchased under Reverse Repo

i)  Government Securities 0.00 1,698.46 48.64 0.00
(0.00) (1,139.61) (137.76) (0.00)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Securities sold under RBI Repos (LAF)

i)  Government Securities 0.00 492.00 229.27 0.00
(0.00) (469.00) (47.25) (469.00)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Securities purchased under RBI Reverse Repos (LAF)

i)  Government Securities 625.00 4960.00 2588.14 1970.00
(0.00) (2,670.00) (434.33) (2,450.00)

ii) Corporate Debt Securities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Note: i) Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
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4) Non - SLR Investments:
4.1 Issuer composition of Non-SLR investments:

(X in crore)

Sr.  Particulars Amount Extent of “Below Extent of Extent of
No. Investment Grade” “Unrated” “Unlisted”
Securities Securities Securities

1.  PSUs 327.78 0.00 0.00 0.00
(54.78) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

2. Fls 721.09 0.00 0.00 0.00
(869.35) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

3. Public Sector Banks 110.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(31.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

4. Mutual Fund 0.00 0.00 N.A. N.A.
(1.00) (0.00) (N.A) (N.A)

5. Others 465.65 0.00 0.00 0.00
(344.73) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

6.  Provision held towards depreciation 133.10 XXX XXX XXX
(108.37) (XXX) (XXX) (XXX)

1,624.52 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total
(1,300.86) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)
Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures.
4.2 Non-performing Non-SLR investments:

(R in crore)

Particulars Amount Amount
31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Opening Balance 0.00 0.00
Additions during the year 0.00 0.00
Reductions during the year 0.00 0.00
Closing Balance 0.00 0.00
Total provisions held 0.00 0.00
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5) Details of Advances Restructured as on 31t March, 2021 are given below:

(R in crore)

Sr.  Particulars Housing SME Debt CDR Others
No, Loans Restructuring

I Standard Numbers of Borrowers 0 12 0 3

Restructured © (13 © ®

Amount Outstanding 0.00 165.84 0.00 153.21

(0.00) (164.04) (0.00) (219.93)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 6.28 0.00 2.65

the Fair Value) (0.00) 717) (0.00) (5.45)

| Sub Standard Numbers of Borrowers 0 1 0 0

Restructared © © © ©

Amount Outstanding 0.00 4.33 0.00 0.00

(0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 0.07 0.00 0.00

the Fair Value) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00) (0.00)

Il Doubtful Numbers of Borrowers 0 5 2 9

Restructared © © @ ®

Amount Outstanding 0.00 40.51 40 186.77

(0.00) (44.20) (71.07) (128.30)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 1.59 0 1.91

the Fair Value) (0.00) 2.16) 0 8.71)

Total Numbers of Borrowers 0 18 2 12

(0 (19) (2) (13)

Amount Outstanding 0.00 210.68 40 339.98

(0.00) (208.24) (71.07) (348.23)

Sacrifice (Diminution in 0.00 7.94 0.00 4.56

the Fair Value) (0.00) (9.33) (0.00) (14.16)

Note: Figures in brackets represent previous year’s figures

Amount and number of borrower accounts in respect of which applications for restructuring are under process,
but the restructuring packages have not yet been approved/implemented, is ¥ 17.34 crore and 1 respectively as
on 31.03.2021. (Previous year — X 76.45 crore, 2 respectively)

6) Net Profit or Loss for the Period, Prior Period Items and Changes in Accounting Policies (AS 5):
Prior Period Items: During the year, there were no material prior period income / expenditure items.

Change in accounting policy: There is no change in the Significant Accounting Policies adopted during the year
ended 31t March, 2021 as compared to those followed in the previous financial year 2019-20.
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7) Employee Benefits- AS 15:
A. Defined Contribution Plan

7.1 Bank’s contribution to Provident Fund — < 26.99 crore
(Previous year-¥ 26.30 crore)

B. Defined Benefit Plan

7.2 Assumptions:

Sr.  Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
No. 31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
| Discount rate 6.82% 6.84% 6.91% 6.81%
Il Expected return on Plan Assets 6.82% 6.84% N.A. N.A.
Il Salary Escalation rate 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
IV Attrition Rate 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
\ Mortality Table IALM IALM IALM IALM
(2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08) (2006-08)
Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate Ultimate
7.3 Table showing change in the Present Value of Projected Benefit Obligation:
(X in crore)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
Present value of obligation at the 146.12 130.36 42.42 36.33
beginning of the period
Interest cost 9.99 10.15 2.89 2.82
Current service cost 7.06 5.98 0.66 0.53
(Benefits paid directly by the (0.26) (0.15) (2.69) (2.48)
Employer)
(Benefits paid from the Fund) (19.47) (18.15) - -
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on - 2.71 - (0.02)
Obligations-Due to Change in
Demographic Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on (0.80) 8.06 (0.42) 3.94
Obligations-Due to Change in
Financial Assumptions
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss on 2.24 7.16 0.09 1.30
obligations-Due to Experience
Present value of benefit obligation 144.94 146.12 42.95 42.42
at the end of the period
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7.4 Table showing Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets:

(X in crore)

Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)

31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
Fair value of plan assets at the 135.69 134.76 - -
beginning of the period
Expected return on Plan Assets 9.28 10.50 - -
Contributions by the Employer 18.57 9.72 - -
Benefits paid from the Fund (19.41) (18.15) - -
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan (0.11) (1.14) - -
Assets - Due to Experience
Fair value of plan assets at the end 144.02 135.69 - -

of the period

The plan assets are invested in the insurer managed fund which generally makes investment in secured
securities. Hence, the expected rate of return considered is yield on the government securities which match

the average term of the obligation.

7.5 Amount recognized in Balance Sheet:

(X in crore)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
(Present value of obligation at the (144.94) (146.12) (42.95) (42.42)
end of the period)
Fair value of plan assets at the end 144.02 135.69 - -
of the period
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficit)) (0.92) (10.43) (42.95) (42.42)
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognised in (0.92) (10.43) (42.95) (42.42)
the Balance Sheet
7.6 Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss:
(X in crore)
Particulars Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
Current service cost 7.05 5.98 0.66 0.53
Net Interest cost 0.71 (0.34) 2.89 2.83
Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 1.55 19.06 (0.33) 5.21
Expenses recognised in Statement 9.31 24.70 3.22 8.57
of Profit or Loss
7.7 Investments under Plan Assets are as follows:
(X in crore)
Category of Assets Gratuity (Funded) Pension (Unfunded)
31.03.21 31.03.20 31.03.21 31.03.20
Insurer Managed Funds 142.99 135.17 - -
Other 1.03 0.52 - -
Total 144.02 135.69 - -
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7.8 Actual Return on Plan Assets and Expected contribution for next year

(X in crore)
Expected return on plan assets 9.28 10.50
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Plan Assets- due to experience (0.17) (1.14)
Actual Return on Plan Assets 9.17 9.36
Expected Contribution for next year 8.39 17.49

7.9 Amounts of Gratuity and Pension for the current year and previous four years are as follows:
i.  Gratuity

(X in crore)
Particulars 2021 ‘ 2020 2019 2018 2017
(Present Value of Benefit (144.93) (146.12) (130.36) (131.96) (124.77)
Obligation at the end of the
Period)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at 144.02 135.69 134.76 129.26 125.23
the end of the Period
Funded Status (Surplus/ (0.92) (10.43) 4.40 (2.70) 0.46
(Deficit))
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 2.24 7.16 (1.35) 12.37 (4.03)
on Obligations - Due to
Experience
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (0.11) (1.14) (0.35) 0.44 (0.47)
on Plan Assets - Due to
Experience

ii. Pension

(R in crore)
Particulars 2021 ‘ 2020 2019 2018 2017
(Present Value of Benefit (42.95) (42.42) (36.33) (36.00) (36.34)
Obligation at the end of the
Period)
Fair Value of Plan Assets at = - - - -
the end of the Period
Funded Status (Surplus/ (42.95) (42.42) (36.33) (36.00) (36.34)
(Deficit))
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 0.09 1.30 (0.50) (0.87) 1.26
on Obligations - Due to
Experience

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) - - - - .
on Plan Assets - Due to
Experience
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C. Other Long-Term Employee Benefits

7.10 Compensated absences

The actuarial liability of compensated absences of accumulated privileged and sick leaves of the

employees of the Bank is given below:

(X in crore)
Privileged leave 91.97 81.95
Sick leave (vested) 18.68 20.33
Sick leave(non-vested) 2.97 -
Total actuarial liability 113.62 102.28
Assumptions
Discount rate
Privileged leave 6.82% 6.84%
Sick leave (vested) 6.85% 6.83%
Sick leave (Non-vested) 6.82% -
Salary escalation rate
Privileged leave 4.00% 4.00%
Sick leave (vested) 0.00% 0.00%
Sick leave (Non-vested) 4.00% -
8) Primary Segment Reporting (by Business Segments) AS 17:
(X in crore)
Particulars SBU Other Banking
Treasury Business (31st March 2020)
Segment Revenue 1,341.71 2,370.08 3,711.79
(1,121.24) (2,621.00) (3,742.24)
Segment Cost (incl. allocated provisions) 969.45 2,298.13 3,267.58
(894.43) (2,454.92) (3,349.35)
Operating Profit (after allocated provisions) 372.26 71.95 444.21
(226.81) (166.08) (392.89)
Profit before Tax 444.21
(392.89)
Income Tax 173.97
(142.10)
Net Profit 270.24
(250.79)
Other Information
Segment Assets 21,530.62 31,301.83 52,832.45
(20,397.37) (30,702.94) (51,100.31)
Unallocated Assets 887.58
(826.65)
Total Assets 53,720.03
(51,926.96)
Segment Liabilities 2,305.23 47,095.80 49,401.03
(3,314.13) (44,660.57) (47,974.70)
Unallocated Liabilities 691.09
(560.58)
Total Liabilities 50,092.12
(48,535.28)
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Note:
(i) These segments have been reported considering the nature of products or services, different risks and
returns attributable to them, organization structure and internal management information system.

(ii) Types of products & services in each business segment:

a) Strategic Business Unit (SBU) Treasury: Dealing operations in forex, money market & fixed income
products.

b) Other Banking Operations: Corporate & Retail Banking & Allied services.

(iii) Secondary Segment information: Bank caters mainly to the needs of Indian customers; hence separate
information regarding secondary segment i.e. Geographical Segment is not given.

(iv) Total Liabilities exclude Capital and Reserves other than those specifically identifiable with a segment.

(v) Figures in brackets represent previous year's figures.

9) Operating Lease comprises leasing of office premises (AS 19):
(X in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Future lease rental payable as at the end of the year:

- Not later than one year 49.39 47.81
- Later than one year and not later than five years 129.17 100.34
- Later than five years 23.35 17.10
Total of minimum lease payments realisation in the Profit and Loss account 65.01 62.66

for the year.

Total of future minimum sub-lease payment expected to be received under NIL NIL
non-cancellable sub-lease

Sub-lease payments realisation in the Profit and Loss account for the year NIL NIL

10) Major components of Deferred Tax (AS 22):

(X in crore)
Deferred Tax Asset
1 Sec.43B 1.87 3.25
2 Provision for BDDR (incl. Other Assets) 233.52 300.88
3 Amortisation of HTM Securities 0.48 0.91
4 Provision for Restructured Assets 3.14 8.21
5 Provision for Restructuring other loans and MSME (Covid Framework) 18.93 0.00
6 Other 1.67 1.48
Sub-Total (A) 259.61 314.73
Deferred Tax Liability
1 Difference in WDV of fixed assets 7.70 10.03
Special Reserve u/s 36(1) (viii) 46.61 57.72
3 Others 15.64 13.85
Sub-Total (B) 69.95 81.60
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A)-(B) 189.66 233.13

Note: Deferred Tax Asset has been recognised to the extent Management is reasonably certain of its realization.

I Saraswat Co-operative Bank Ltd. (Scheduled Bank) - Annual Report 2020-21 105



¢ Saraswat

Bank PROGRESS. GROWTH. SAFETY.

11) The Bank has decided to exercise the option of lower tax rate available under section 115BAD of the Income

Tax Act, 1961 as introduced by the Finance Act 2020 w.e.f. Assessment Year beginning on 1t April, 2021.
Accordingly, the Bank has recognized provision for tax and remeasured its deferred tax assets (DTA) at
315t March, 2021 based on the tax rate prescribed in the said section. This has led to a partial reversal of the
DTA, the impact of which is a one-time charge which is included in the tax expense of the Bank.

12) Details of Computer Software —other than internally generated (AS 26):

Amortisation rates used @33.33% p.a. on straight line method. (However, if useful life of software is shorter,
then proportionate rates are used).

(X in crore)

Opening Balance (at cost) as on April 1 38.24 35.42
Add : Additions during the year 7.95 2.82
Sub-Total (A) 46.19 38.24
Less : Amortisation made :

Opening Balance of Amortisation 35.60 33.24
Add : Amortisation during the year 2.89 2.36
Sub-Total (B) 38.49 35.60
Net carrying amount as on March 31 (A)-(B) 7.70 2.64

b. Amountof commitments (net of advance) for the acquisition of computer software — ¥23.11 crore (Previous

year- ¥ 21.56 crore).

13) The information in respect of their registration under Micro, Small, Medium Enterprises Development, Act 2006

is not received from suppliers / service providers by the Bank. Hence, information relating to the cases of
delays if any, in payments to such enterprises or of interest payments due to such delays could not be given.

14) The Bank has taken Group Mediclaim Policy covering its Directors. The Bank has paid premium of ¥ 1,85,190/-

on this account. (previous year ¥ 1,78,435/-)

15) Market Risk in Trading Book as on 31.03.2021:

106

a) Qualitative Disclosures

Market Risk is the risk that the value of investments may undergo change over a given time period, simply
because of economic changes or other events that impact the financial markets. In other words, Market
Risk is calculated for both, adverse movement in the price of an individual security owing to factors related
to the individual issuer as well as interest rate risk in the portfolio.

Methodology: The Bank follows the Standardized Duration Approach for calculation of Market Risk. The
Bank manages the Market Risk in the books on an ongoing basis and ensures that the capital requirement
for Market Risk is being maintained on a continuous basis i.e. at the close of each business day.

The capital charge is applied to the market value of securities in the Bank’s trading book. Market Value is
determined as per the extant RBI guidelines on valuation of investments.

Minimum Capital Requirement is worked out separately for
1. 'Specific Risk’ charge - for individual issuer related factors.

2. ‘General Market Risk’ — for interest rate risk in the portfolio.
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Scope: The portfolios covered under the said approach include:

1. Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT) category

2. Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS) category

3. Open Foreign Exchange Position Limits

Infrastructure/ MIS & Reporting: The Investment Policy as approved by the Board of Directors provides

detailed guidelines for all operational procedures, settlements, valuations and risk controls pertaining to the
investments.

A separate Mid-Office is also in place which acts as an intermediary, monitoring compliance of regulatory
guidelines and of the Banks’ Investment Policy and undertakes reporting to higher management.

Parameters for risk measurement: Risk Management and reporting is based on parameters such as Modified
Duration, Net Open Position Limits, Gap Limits, and Value- at- Risk (VaR).

b) Quantitative Disclosure:
(X in crore)

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

The Capital requirements for:

Interest Rate Risk 189.83 151.90
Equity Position Risk 0.05 0.06
Foreign Exchange Risk 3.29 3.29
16) Details of financial assets sold during the year to SC/RC for Asset Reconstruction:
(X in crore)
a.  No. of accounts 0 0
b.  Aggregate value (net of provisions) of accounts sold to SC/RC 0.00 0.00
c.  Aggregate consideration 0.00 0.00
d.  Additional consideration realised in respect of accounts transferred in 0.00 0.00
earlier years
e.  Aggregate gain/loss over net book value 0.00 0.00

17) Disclosure with respect to ‘The Depositor Education and Awareness Fund Scheme, 2014’ (DEAF) as per RBI

Circular dated 27/05/2014:

31.03.2021

(in crore)
31.03.2020

Opening balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 118.69 92.83
Add :- Amounts transferred to DEAF during the period 17.20 27.60
Less :- Amount reimbursed by DEAF towards claims for the year 1.35 1.35
Less :- Amount yet to be settled by DEAF till 31.03.2021 0.21 0.39
Closing balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 134.33 118.69
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18) The SARS-CoV2 virus responsible for Covid-19 pandemic continues to spread across the globe thus impacting

India. This has resulted in an adverse impact and volatility in global and Indian markets and disruption in
economic activity. Implementation of lockdown and extension of the same has resulted in disruptions of
business and common life. The current second wave of Covid-19 pandemic, where the number of new cases
has increased significantly in India, has resulted in re-imposition of localized/regional lockdowns in various
parts of the country. The extent of impact on account of the pandemic, including the current second wave
witnessed in the country, on the Bank’s operations and asset quality depends on future developments, which
are uncertain.

By creation of additional provisioning buffer, the Bank is gearing itself on all fronts to meet these challenges
imposed by the pandemic including the likelihood of a rise in the customer defaults and an increase in
provisioning requirements. Despite these events and conditions, the Bank’s results in future are neither expected
to be materially adverse nor would there be any significant impact on the going concern assumption.

19) In accordance with the RBI Circulars dated March 27, 2020, April 17, 2020 and May 23, 2020 on ‘COVID-19

Regulatory Package -Asset Classification and Provisioning’, the details pertaining to loan accounts to which a
moratorium on instalments and interest, as applicable, due between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 was
extended. The disclosures as required by RBI Circular dated April 17, 2020 are given below:

Sr.  Particular Amount
No. (X in crore)

1 Respective amounts in SMA/overdue categories, where the moratorium/deferment was extended 958.76
2 Respective amounts where asset classification benefits is extended 31.43
3 Provisions made during the Q4, FY2019-20 1.55
4 Provisions made during the Q1, FY2020-21 1.69
5 Provisions adjusted during the respective accounting periods against slippages -
6 Residual provisions written back as on March 31, 2021 3.24

20) Inaccordancewithguidelinesissued byRBIvide Circularno.RBI/2018-1/100,DBR.No.BP.BC.18/21.04.048/2018-

108

19 dated January 1, 2019, the disclosure of the MSME accounts restructured under these guidelines is as
follows:

No. of accounts restructured Amount (% in crore)

90 259.29
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21) Disclosure with respect to ‘Resolution of Stressed Assets’ as per RBI Circular No. DOR.No.BP.
BC/4/21.04.048/2020-21 dated August, 6 2020 :

Type of borrower

(A

Number of
accounts where

resolution plan has
been implemented
under this window

B)

Exposure

to accounts
mentioned

at (A) before
implementation of
plan

(X in crore)
() (E)

Additional funding
sanctioned, if
any, including

between invocation
of the plan and
implementation

©

Of (B), aggregate
amount of debt that
was converted into
other securities

Increase in
provisions on
account of the
implementation of
resolution plan

Personal loans 178 41.90 - 0.04 4.94
Corporate persons* 10 496.04 - 19.69 50.50
Of Which MSMEs - - - - -
Others 118 53.43 - 1.95 6.95
Total 306 591.37 - 21.68 62.39

*As defined in section 3(7) of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016

22) In accordance with the instructions in RBI circular No. DOR.STR.REC.4/21.04.048 /2021-22 dated April 7,2021,
the Bank is required to refund/ adjust ‘interest on interest’ to all the borrowers including those who had availed
of working capital facilities during the moratorium period, irrespective of whether moratorium has been fully
or partially availed, or not availed. As required by the RBI notification, the methodology for calculation of such
‘interest on interest’ has recently been circulated by the Indian Banks’ Association (IBA). The Bank is in the
process of implementing this methodology. As at March 31, 2021, estimating the liability towards interest
relief, the Bank has made an adhoc provision of ¥ 15 crore, estimating the liability towards interest relief, by way
of charge to its Profit and Loss account, pending refund/ adjustment of the same to the individual borrower
accounts. In the opinion of the management, there will not be any material variation from the estimated amount.

23) Earnings per Share (EPS)

(X in crore)
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Net Profit after Taxation 270.24 250.79
Weighted average No. of Shares 23.89 22.09
EPS (in actuals) 11.31 11.35
24) Commission income from Bank assurance business:
(X in crore)
Sr. Nature of Income 2019-20
No.
1. From selling Life Insurance Policies 17.82 11.21
2 From selling Non-Life Insurance Policies 4.81 4.49
3. From selling Mutual Fund Products 1.12 0.85
4 From Pradhanmantri Insurance Schemes 0.03 0.04
Total 23.78 16.59
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25) Detail of Priority Sector Lending Certificates (PSLC) purchased by the Bank as per RBI circular FIDD.CO.Plan.
BC.23/04.09.01/2015-16 dated 7™ April, 2016, are set out below:

R in crore)
1 PSLC-Small & Marginal Farmers NIL 1,250.00
2 PSLC-General 2,452.75 650.00
3 PSLC-Micro Enterprises NIL 400.00
Total 2,452.75 2,300.00

Details of PSLCs sold by the Bank are set out below:

Sr No. Category 315t March, 2021 31t March, 2020

1 PSLC-General 0 0

26) Claims against Bank not acknowledged as debts:

This includes liability on account of income tax, service tax and other legal cases filed against the Bank. The
Bank is a party to various legal proceedings in the normal course of business and has preferred appeals with
the appropriate appellate authorities. These are categorized as follows:

Contingent liabilities — Income tax, service tax and other legal cases where generally there are no legal
precedents.

i) Income Tax Act ¥ 46.37 crore, (previous year X 46.37 crore),
i) Service Tax¥ 10.23 crore (previous year X 10.72 crore)
iii) Other legal cases ¥ 5.84 crore (previous year ¥ 5.59 crore).

27) The Reserve Bank of India, vide its circular dated April 17, 2020 had restrained banks from making dividend
payouts from profits pertaining to the financial year ended March 31, 2020 until further instructions, with a
view that banks must conserve capital in an environment of heightened uncertainty caused by COVID-19.
Consequently, the Bank had not proposed any dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 on the equity as
well as the perpetual non-cumulative preference shares (PNCPS). Subsequently, RBI vide its circular dated
4" December 2020 decided that banks shall not make any dividend payment on equity shares from the profits
pertaining to the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

Considering the above and also in view of specific communication by RBI permitting the payment of dividend
on PNCPS out of profits of financial year 2019-20 in compliance with their guidelines, the Bank has drawn an
amount of ¥ 5.72 crore from General Reserve for distribution of dividend for the year 2019-20 to the perpetual
non-cumulative preference shareholders and is in the process of completion of formalities for the distribution of
said dividend.
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28) Previous year’s figures are regrouped or rearranged, wherever necessary, to conform to the layout of the
accounts of the current year.

As per our report of even date
For G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(C. M. Dixit) S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar K. V. Rangnekar
Partner Managing Director Director Director

Membership No. 017532
UDIN:21017532AAAAAB5681

sd/- sd/-
Place: Mumbai S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Date: April 231, 2021 Vice- Chairman Chairman
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CaSh FI OW Statement for the year ended 315t March, 2021 Zin crore

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit as per P/L account 270.24 250.79

Add: Adjustments for

Depreciation on Assets 31.05 25.76

Fixed assets written off 0.03 0.03

Amortisation of Investment 25.22 16.39

Depreciation of Investment 24.73 21.19

Provision for BDDR (incl Other Assets) 192.53 241.90

Reserve for Restructured Assets- Covid 75.22 0.00

Contingent provision against Standard Assets 3.92 0.00

Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief 1.69 1.55

Provision for Tax 130.50 150.08

Deferred tax 43.47 528.36 (7.98) 448.92

Less: 798.60 699.71

Profit on Sale of Assets 1.95 0.20

Profit on Sale of Securities 356.83 226.87

Excess Provision for Restructured Assets reversed 11.01 2.52

Provision towards a/c under Covid Relief written back 3.24 0.00

Excess Contigent provision against standard assets written back 0.00 373.03 3.33 232.92

425.57 466.79

Adjustments for

Decrease/(Increase) in Investments (580.29) (1,679.69)

Decrease/(Increase) in Advances (903.06) 458.85

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets (155.54) (19.84)

Increase/(Decrease) in Funds (126.89) (139.15)

Increase/(Decrease) in Deposits 2,717.12 2,068.62

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 228.17 1,179.51 (106.27) 582.53

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities before Tax 1,605.08 1,049.31

Income Tax paid (Net) (101.74) (144.65)

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities after Tax (A) 1,503.34 904.66

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of Property, plant & Equipment (45.11) (69.63)

Sale Proceeds of Property, Plant & Equipment 4.09 0.46

Net Cash generated from Investing Activities (B) (41.02) (69.17)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital 26.67 30.56

Refund of Share Capital (7.84) (8.54)

Proceeds from Borrowing 3,438.89 29,381.69

Repayment of Borrowing (4,028.23) (29,896.51)

Dividend Paid (7.09) (38.34)

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities (C) (577.60) (531.14)

Net increase in Cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 884.72 304.35

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,782.46 4,478.11

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 5,667.18 4,782.46

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash 1,853.54 1,536.96

Balance with other banks (excluding Term Deposits maturing beyond 1,556.24 477.26

3 months)

Money at Call & Short Notice 2,257.40 2,768.24
5,667.18 4,782.46

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include highly liquid short term investments for short period in form of Cash, balances held in current accounts with
other Banks(including Term Deposits maturing within 3 months) and Money at Call & Short Notice.

2 Cash flow Statement is prepared by using indirect method as mentioned in AS 3.

As per our report of even date

For G. D. Apte & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 100515W

sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/-
(C. M. Dixit) S. M. Sandhane S. N. Sawaikar K. V. Rangnekar S. K. Sakhalkar G. E. Thakur
Partner Managing Director Director Director Vice-Chairman Chairman

Membership No.017532
UDIN: 21017532AAAAAB5681
Mumbai : April 231, 2021
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Involvement of the Small Man

OUR MEMBERS
No. of Shares Held No. of Members Percentage
50-51 52,395 22.08
52-250 38,073 16.05
251-1500 70,193 29.58
1501-2500 76,601 32.29
Total 2,37,262 100.00
OUR DEPOSITORS
No. of Accounts Percentage
Upto 1000 8,64,121 24.62
1001 to ¥ 5000 5,31,984 15.16
¥ 5001 to ¥ 10000 2,43,963 6.95
10001 to ¥ 20000 2,68,492 7.65
320001 to ¥ 30000 1,86,360 5.31
Above ¥ 30000 14,14,354 40.31
Total 35,09,274 100.00
OUR BORROWERS
No. of Accounts Percentage
Upto 5000 13,561 9.96
¥ 5001 to ¥ 10000 2,580 1.89
10001 to ¥ 25000 7,239 5.31
Above T 25000 1,12,821 82.84
Total 1,36,201 100.00
ADVANCES TO PRIORITY SECTOR
No. of Accounts (X in crore)
Small Scale Industries 2,193 3,776.50
Small Businessmen & Traders 10,466 4,590.36
Other Priority Sector 48,343 6,045.17
Total 61,002 14,412.03
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Progress at a Glance (Year 1920-2021)

 in lakh)

Year No. of Paid-up Reserve & Deposits Advances Total

Members Capital Other Funds No. of A/cs Amount No. of A/cs Amount Business
1920 190 0.06 - - 0.01 - 0.06 0.07
Silver Jubilee
1943 1,698 1.25 *1.00 4,293 23.48 - 3.23 26.71
Golden Jubilee
1968 15,207 14.43 *18.82 41,703 565.33 2,718 247.80 813.13
1975 29,978 44.88 *44.43 87,912 1,527.06 5,323 893.11 2,420.17
1976 32,830 51.52 *54.78 1,04,025 1,961.57 6,081 1,006.99 2,968.56
Diamond Jubilee
1978 39,104 76.91 130.40 1,44,520 3,189.41 10,557 1,373.30 4,562.71
1979 44,049 94.12 194.92 1,67,198 3,989.92 13,712 1,969.00 5,958.92
1980 50,694 120.60 261.94 1,93,033 4,911.84 18,603 3,025.17 7,937.01
1981 57,489 156.79 387.94 2,32,317 6,194.37 22,235 3,381.47 9,575.84
1982 64,240 192.63 488.99 2,75,121 8,106.71 24,591 5,106.81 13,213.52
1983 69,042 223.24 567.46 3,19,602 10,445.95 25,090 6,508.41 16,954.36
1984 75977 262.24 624.58 3,58,366 12,991.46 26,728 7,676.78 20,668.24
1985 83,162 312.79 693.10 3,19,528 15,849.76 29,922 8,971.03 24,820.79
1986 90,606 366.09 840.96 4,18,708 19,373.40 33,177 11,322.06 30,695.46
1987 97,071 409.37 974.48 4,49,286 22914.72 36,379 13,550.34 36,465.06
1988 1,02,384 462.70 1,184.18 4,75,335 28,451.01 37,747 16,163.43 44,614.44
1989 1,10,269 531.51 1,446.63 5,02,284 31,038.07 43,484 19,233.62 50,271.69
1990 1,21,740 630.21 1,952.28 5,44,548 37,447.63 51,428 23,709.05 61,156.68
1991 1,27,646 706.07 2,893.61 5,97,496 45,541.01 54,405 26,051.59 71,592.60
1992# 1,30,074 760.90 4,120.52 6,48,424 51,451.77 53,226 28,473.76 79,925.53
Platinum Jubilee
1993 1,29,284 820.94 4,778.02 7,111,219 63,211.46 54,151 34,424.40 97,635.86
1994 1,30,758 902.32 4,924.41 7,79,212 79,233.15 61,263 45,837.00 1,25,070.15
1995 1,31,569 986.22 6,295.41 8,45,341 91,120.13 73,138 59,682.67  1,50,802.80
1996 1,32,046 1,049.29 9,145.06 8,97,713 1,08,930.40 77,154 71,324.70  1,80,255.10
1997 1,32,909 1,157.12 12,575.32 9,14,713 1,38,141.97 79,654 88,087.80  2,26,229.77
1998 1,34,061 1,291.49 15,810.05 9,47,833 1,68,035.59 82,429 1,13,907.47  2,81,943.06
1999 1,36,007 1,519.43 19,458.27 10,00,141 2,03,181.86 84,531 1,38,380.24  3,41,562.10
2000 1,42,031 2,035.28 24,410.99 10,84,261 2,37,951.84 87,642 1,70,310.76  4,08,262.60
2001 **83,272 2,443.81 31,236.00 11,09,969 2,81,776.31 75,006 1,80,542.56  4,62,318.87
2002 **85,636 2,709.00 39,795.96 12,17,662 3,37,767.21 75,381 2,04,339.78  5,42,106.99
2003 **89,117 3,044.44 47,841.14 12,99,736 3,66,059.68 73,308 2,22,359.50  5,88,419.18
2004 *%94,044 3,457.77 55,587.75 12,29,976 4,05,270.26 77917 2,61,675.60 6,66,945.86
2005 **1,00,581 4,156.48 70,162.39 11,80,900 4,78,614.38 85,312 3,24,722.93  8,03,337.31
2006 **1,06,264 4,896.57 82,198.60 14,00,757 6,20,428.65 1,00,115  4,60,898.62 10,81,327.27
2007 **1,23,169 6,877.24 97,362.05 18,11,635 8,92,494.33 1,16,687 6,37,045.87 15,29,540.20
2008 **1,26,174 7,120.97 1,05,973.67 21,92,673 11,43,081.93 1,22,626 7,44,830.67 18,87,912.60
2009 **1,29,741 7,749.67 1,09,671.08 25,02,655 12,91,884.64 1,27,769 8,11,040.59 21,02,925.23
2010 **1,34,417 8,623.11 1,18,413.65 24,39,699  14,26,672.86 2,75,479 9,25,035.47 23,51,708.33
2011 **1,62,560 10,283.24 1,37,375.92 25,59,939  15,80,096.07 1,11,991  11,51,199.23 27,31,295.30
2012 **1,68,529 11,691.66 1,59,877.47 29,32,606  19,25,270.98 112,196  13,952270.49 33,20,541.47
2013 **1,72,282 12,690.93 1,83,440.27 31,86,120 21,14,433.16 1,04,923 15,02,341.51 36,16,774.67
2014 **1,75,242 16,768.78 1,97,412.18 35,59,404  23,93,951.03 97,364  15,47,005.02 39,40,956.05
2015 **1,78,747 18,930.10 2,05,757.04 39,15156  27,17,084.05 96,718 17,79,812.40 44,96,896.45
2016 **1,82,008 20,275.76 2,16,839.75 41,59,753  31,49,584.33 95,376  20,36,611.50 51,86,195.83
2017 **1,88,249 21,522.60 2,46,967.82 43,18,903  33,73,741.87 97,092  21,53,607.14 55,27,349.01
Centenary Year
2018 *%1,99,616 23,674.57 2,63,228.49 41,98,064 35,05,665.84 1,02,326  23,46,911.29 58,52,577.13
2019 **2,13,836 26,396.89 2,97,341.24 41,57,976  36,01,487.01 1,09,004 25,79,749.27 61,81,236.28
2020 *%2,25,245 28,599.00 3,23,605.42 35,12,260  38,08,349.30 1,28,084 25,33,864.01 63,42,213.31
2021 **2,37,262 30,481.63 3,64,887.78 35,09,274  40,80,061.43 1,36,201  26,24,170.05 67,04,231.48

* Including Interest Reserve
** Shareholders holding shares 50 and above
# Financial Year: Change of Bank'’s accounting year since 1992 (April-March)
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(% in lakh)
Year Investments Working Capital Net Profit Dividend Amount Dividend (%) No. of Branches
1920 - 0.07 0.02 - - 1
Silver Jubilee
1943 19.95 26.15 0.15 0.07 6.25 2
Golden Jubilee
1968 290.37 623.05 2.52 1.30 9.00 9
1975 675.50 1,763.27 9.01 3.80 9.00 20
1976 1,005.92 2,222.87 15.47 5.80 12.00 20
Diamond Jubilee
1978 1,951.06 3,611.75 26.09 8.30 12.00 24
1979 2,188.60 4,535.81 30.52 10.25 12.00 26
1980 2,188.62 5,901.83 35.11 12.40 12.00 30
1981 3,182.74 7,728.06 51.16 16.50 12.00 34
1982 3,434.15 9,991.28 65.09 20.75 12.00 35
1983 4,275.89 15,767.14 70.57 24.75 12.00 37
1984 5,640.36 15,581.07 59.79 28.50 12.00 39
1985 7,040.29 19,311.54 69.94 33.90 12.00 41
1986 8,796.67 24,213.61 118.76 40.00 12.00 41
1987 10,231.78 26,570.23 145.47 46.02 12.00 42
1988 13,120.54 32,802.00 165.75 51.19 12.00 42
1989 9,231.86 36,532.31 196.01 58.07 12.00 42
1990 10,119.16 44,464.08 301.40 69.25 12.00 45
1991 13,092.37 55,242.28 430.46 78.90 12.00 47
1992# 17,560.62 64,032.95 468.33 81.75 15.00 50
Platinum Jubilee
1993 31,022.23 84,821.62 633.50 116.45 18.00 50
1994 34,974.74 1,06,411.84 679.96 126.40 15.00 52
1995 35,185.80 1,30,031.69 742.66 140.00 15.00 56
1996 42,042.27 1,61,866.40 865.54 151.00 15.00 58
1997 53,534.87 1,96,927.69 1,100.00 204.00 18.00 59
1998 63,459.20 2,47,374.86 1,239.01 185.00 15.00 61
1999 85,431.42 3,12,590.57 1,423.97 228.00 15.00 63
2000 95,639.19 2,95,608.33 1,734.09 314.90 18.00 69
2001 1,25,554.41 3,41,061.54 2,341.54 390.00 20.00 72
2002 1,65,198.50 4,06,281.05 2,600.00 492.05 20.00 75
2003 1,77,262.65 4,38,696.89 2,935.85 408.03 18.00 76
2004 1,56,615.16 4,93,749.72 6,225.26 553.47 18.00 75
2005 2,05,289.40 5,90,348.41 7,037.88 659.52 18.00 75
2006 1,98,977.97 7,63,100.74 10,120.29 789.99 18.00 86
2007 2,60,989.72 10,74,547.13 15,517.92 1,138.42 18.00 105
2008 4,35,006.22 13,87,410.43 20,226.06 1,285.00 20.00 153
2009 4,79,150.75 15,62,281.73 21,079.23 1,489.13 20.00 175
2010 5,32,139.11 17,07,105.88 11,967.42 1,590.62 20.00 200
2011 5,25,376.69 19,18,937.24 21,226.72 1,847.16 20.00 216
2012 5,62,698.78 22,43,562.49 23,556.92 2,181.58 20.00 226
2013 6,44,403.06 24,79,080.40 11,209.11 1,213.10 10.00 229
2014 7,80,474.21 28,13,279.55 14,709.37 1,292.80 10.00 267
2015 7,73,511.53 31,37,109.58 19,017.71 2,019.29 15.00 267
2016 9,38,847.77 35,94,150.08 21,119.15 2,139.02 15.00 283
2017 8,87,279.19 38,44,221.27 23,405.32 4,573.29 30.00 282
Centenary Year
2018 9,56,797.41 40,52,029.80 24,067.53 2,972.70 17.50 281
2019 11,01,369.00 42,91,512.10 29,128.52 3,370.31 17.50 284
2020 13,12,903.35 44,70,056.72 25,079.48 0.00 0.0 284
2021 14,02,070.71 47,66,982.94 27,024.48 4,670.00 20.00 283
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Amendment to Bye-Laws

ANNEXURE A
Proposed that the following amendment to Bye-law No. 5 (e) (vii) be approved by this 103rd Annual General
Meeting of the Bank:

Bye Text in existing Bye-Laws Proposed Amendment Text after incorporation Reasons for amendment

Law

No.

5(e)(v) “The purchasing and selling DELETE Nil To make our Bye laws
of bonds, scrips or other compatible  with  RBI
forms of securities on Regulations and  RBI
behalf of constituents or Master Circular DCBR.
others, the negotiating of BPD (PCB) MC. No.

loans and advances;".

4/16.20.000/2015-16
dated July 1, 2015.

Resolved that the amendment as proposed to Bye-law no. 5 (e) (vii) be and is hereby approved by this 103 Annual
General Meeting of the Bank”.
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State-wise/Region-wise Branch Network

Sr.  Name of the Branch Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)
No.
MAHARASHTRA
MUMBAI
1 Andheri (East) (022) 26822522, 26822523
2 Andheri (East), Marol (022) 29202254, 29201705, 29206119
3 Andheri (East), MIDC (022) 28324488, 28324487
4 Andheri (East), Pump House (022) 28349777, 28349779
5 Andheri (East), Saki Naka (022) 28571545, 28472356
6 Andheri (West), Veera Desai Road (022) 26742487, 26742489, 26742269
7 Andheri (West), Barfiwala Raod (022) 26231136, 26284287
8 Andheri (West), Lokhandwala (022) 26367467/68
9 Ballard Estate (022) 22631114, 22621115
10  Bandra (East), Bandra Kurla Complex (022) 26599182-85, 26599181
11 Bandra (East), Chetana College, Govt. Colony (022) 26428544, 26432636, 8097055151
12 Bandra (West), National Library (022) 26419249, 26419265
13 Bhandup (West), L.B.S. Marg 86579 22351/52/53/54
14  Borivali (East), Carter Road (022) 28050372, 28621117/18, 28622170
15  Borivali (West), Shimpoli (022) 28014653, 28014634
16  Borivali (West), Chandavarkar Lane (022) 28922725, 28940518, 28940537, 28912520
17  Borivali (West), | C Colony (022) 28921388, 28920699
18  Borivali (West), Sai Baba Nagar (022) 28090029/30
19  Borivali (East) Nancy Colony (022) 28962006/07
20  Carnac Bunder, Vyapar Bhavan (022) 23481265/66
21 Chembur (West), Sion Trombay Road (022) 25287760/61
22 Chembur (West), Tilak Nagar (022) 25275503/04
23 Chembur (East), Collector'S Colony. (022) 25534016
24 Chhatrapati Shivaji Maharaj Terminus (022) 22061122,22071121
25  Corporate Banking Branch, Lower Parel (022) 24821801, 24821841
26  Dadar (East), Dadasaheb Phalke Road (022) 24163114, 24106870, 24161145
27  Dadar (East), Hindu Colony (022) 24120460
28  Dadar (West), Gadkari Chowk (022) 24374258, 24374293
29  Dadar (West), Madhukendra off. N C Kelkar Road (022) 24221180
30 Dahisar (East), Maratha Colony (022) 24671273, 28281759
31  Dahisar (West) (022) 28929561
32  Dharavi, R P Nagar (022) 24035627
33  Fort,D N Road (022) 22043006, 22047972, 22885005
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Sr.  Name of the Branch Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)

No.

34  Ghatkopar (East), Opp Ghatkopar Railway Station (022) 25012167

35  Ghatkopar (West), Barvenagar (022) 24671156, 25140646, 25113189

36  Ghatkopar (West), L B S Road (022) 25001334/35

37  Ghatkopar (West), Maneklal Estate (022) 25166663/64

38  Girgaon, SV Sovani Path (022) 23841162-65

39  Goregaon (East), Hub (022) 26864150/51

40  Goregaon (East), Nagri Niwara (022) 28401550, 28421440

41 Goregaon (East), Walawalkar Wadi (022) 29275045/46/55/56

42 Goregaon (West) (022) 28745611/12, 28720962

43  Goregaon (West), Link Road (022) 28776248, 28774924

44  Jogeshwari (East), Majaswadi (022) 28270677, 28204101

45  Juhu, N S Road No.13 (022) 26117538/39, 24671254, 26119121

46  Kalbadevi (022) 22079406/07

47  Kandivali (East), Thakur Complex (022) 28546881, 28546883

48  Kandivali (East), Thakur Village (022) 24671178, 28878883

49  Kandivali (West), Dahanukarwadi (022) 28627002/03

50 Kandivali (West), GIE - Govt. Indl. Easate (022) 24671175/76, 28677141

51 Kandivli (West), Junction of SV Road & (022) 24671177,28020457, 28643704
Jamnadas Adukia Road

52  Kandivli (West), M.G.Road (022) 24671275/76, 28655009, 28084244

53  Kanvivali (West), Charkop (022) 24671124, 28690593, 28696225

54  Khar (West), Pali Hill (022) 26460873, 26460874

55  Khar, Linking Road (022) 26461179, 26487589

56  Lower Parel, N M Joshi Marg (022) 24378832, 24379930

57  Mahim, Sitaladevi Temple Road (022) 24453328, 24468864, 24465754

58 Malad (West), Orlem (022) 28619454/55

59  Malad (West), Link Road (022) 28798533

60 Malad (West), Mamlatdar Wadi (022) 28441183/84

61  Masjid Bunder (022) 23411087, 23433058, 23426305

62 Matunga (East), Telang Road (022) 24032796, 24014624, 24026419

63 Mazgaon (022) 23707475/76

64  Mulund (East), L T Road (022) 21636137, 24671277,21635054

65 Mulund (West), M G Road (022) 25911189/90, 25618749

66  Mulund (West), RRT Road (022) 25903041

67  Mulund (West), Veena Nagar (022) 21643655/56, 24671292

68  Mulund (West), Sarvoday Nagar (022) 25601025, 25901290/91

69  Mumbai Central (022) 23012024/25

70  Marine Line- Overseas (022) 49205656, 22096019
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Sr. Name of the Branch
No.

Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)

71 Parel (West), M D College 022) 24161146
72  Powai, Hiranandani 022) 25701726, 25793010
73 Powai, Opp. I.L.T. 022) 25784868

74  Prabhadevi, Opp Ravindra Natya Mandir

022) 24223780, 24671200, 24228328

75  Santacruz (East)

022) 26175133/34

76  Santacruz (East), Kalina

022) 26654361/62

77  Santacruz (West), Station Road

022) 26040096, 26040180

78  Sion (West), Swami Vallabhadas Road

022) 24083727/ 6353,

79  SME - Vikhroli LBS Marg

022) 42499900, 42499988

80  SME - Vileparle, Subhash Road

022) 42349999/53, 42349988

81  Vidyavihar (West)

022) 25134137/38

82  Vikhroli (East), Behind Vikroli Bus Depot

022) 25741105/06

83  Vikhroli (West), Station Road

022) 25780245, 25785770

84  Vile Parle (East) Nehru Road

022) 26171224, 26171227

85  Vile Parle (West), Besant Road

022) 26147095, 24671293, 26147097

86  Wadala, Antop Hill

022) 24016030, 24671113, 24038069, 24099438

87 Wadala, R A Kidwai Road

022) 24161230, 24183696, 24183432

88  Worli, Dr. A. B. Road

~l~I~I~I~I~l~|l~|~|I~|I~I~|I~|I~|~|~|~ |~

022) 24221209/10

THANE/PALGHAR DISTRICTS

89  Ambernath (East)

0251) 2609292, 2609797

90 Badlapur (East) Branch

0251) 2697711

91  Bhayander (West) Dr. Ambekar Marg

022) 28186905/907

92  Bhiwandi, Gauri Pada

02522) 230060/61

93  Boisar, Ameya Park

02525) 2694666/278666,

94  Dombivali (East), Bhagat Singh Road

0251) 2447690/2447689/2437872

95  Dombivali (West), M G Cross Marg

0251) 2489022/2493013,

96  Kalwa, Station Road

022) 25347456, 24671173/74

97  Kalyan (East), Kolshewadi

0251) 2363862/63

98  Kalyan (West), Shil Road

99  Kalyan, Khadakpada

0251) 2302208/209

100 Kalyan, Murbad Road

0251) 2200081, 2205037, 2210427

101 Mira Road, Royal Complex

022) 28551848, 28551851

102 Palghar, Kacheri Road

02525) 250695, 252604, 254966

103 Thane (West), Panchpakhadi

022) 25348645, 25348646

104 Thane (East), Kopri

022) 25325016/23

105 Thane (West), Brahmand

022) 25841365/66

106 Thane (West), Hiranandani

022)21730758/959

107 Thane (West), Jambhali Naka

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(0251) 2971661/62
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

022) 25381210/11, (022) 25346090
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No.
108 Thane (West), Kasarvadvali (022) 49687559 / 49687507
109 Thane (West), Khopat (022) 25372175/76
110 Thane (West), Naupada (022) 25332677 / 25332754
111 Thane (West), Vartak Nagar (022) 25390772, 25399974
112 Thane (West), Vijay Nagari (022) 25971603/2242
113 Thane (West), Wagle Estate (022) 25837767/68
114 Ulhasnagar (0251)2732716/17
115 Vasai (East), Vasai Nallasopara Link Road 8087056054/55
116 Vasai (West) (0250) 23409344/55
117 Virar (East), Bazar Ward (0250) 2520527, 2526162, 2526667, 2521098
118 Virar (West), Agashi Road (0250) 25055962,7276055161,7276083276
119 Virar (West), Arnala (0250) 2588311
NAVI MUMBAI
120 Airoli, Sector — 7 (022) 27602655/56
121 APMC (022) 27831160/61
122 CBD Belapur, Sector - 11 (022) 27560083/ 84
123 Kamothe, Sector - 7 (022) 27431571/72
124 Khanda Colony, New Panvel (022) 27453183/84
125 Kharghar, Sector -7 (022) 27746911/22
126 Koparkhairane, Sector - 20 (022) 27551328/29
127 Nerul (East), Sector - 21 (022) 27712666/67
128 Nerul (West), Sector - 4 (022)27729922/3657
129 Sanpada, Sector -4 (022) 27755292, 27755381, 27755381
130 Seawoods (022) 27724551, 27714551
131  Turbhe (022) 27842234/35
132 Uran, Karanja Road (022) 27231008/09
133 Vashi, Sector-12 (022) 27667615/16
134 Vashi, Sector-17 (022) 27890192, 24671218
PUNE
135 Akurdi (020) 27662133/2157/2087
136 Aundh (020) 25890332/31, 25886169
137 Baner Road (020) 27292957/58
138 Bavdhan (020) 22951512/2434
139 Bhosari (020) 27112366/67
140 Bhusari Colony, Kothrud (020) 25286002/04
141 Bibwewadi (020) 24231467, 24213217
142 Budhwar Peth (020) 24462131, 24455226
143 Chakan (02135) 249331/30
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Sr. Name of the Branch
No.

Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)

144 Chinchwad

020) 27351313/1414

145 Dahanukar Colony

020) 25462500/9648

146 Fergusson College Road 020) 25652491/92
147 Fatima Nagar 020) 26861046/0181
148 Ganesh Khind Road 020) 25582249

149 Ganesh Nagar

020) 25435066/77

150 Hadapsar

020) 26999081/4424

151 Hinjewadi

020) 22933567/66

152 Karve Road

020) 25431780/5937/2056

153 Katraj

154 Kharadi 020) 27014026/27
155 Kondhava 020) 26851073/74
156 Narayan Peth 020) 24465178/205

157 Narhe

020) 24390115/14

158 Pashan

020) 25870092/0492

159 Paud Road

020) 25449122/29

160 Pimple Nilakh

020) 27276000/01

161 Pimple Saugadar

020) 27206600/01

162  Pimpri

020) 27474671/5856/7757

163 Rajguru Nagar

(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(020) 24364847/48
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(
(

02135) 223377/88

164 Ranjangaon

7276007102

165 Sahakar Nagar

020) 24221211/1411

166 Shivane

020) 25294914/15

167 Sinhagad Road

020) 24109120/21

168 SME - Pune

020) 41422200/09, 24671164/65, 23821240

169 Somwar Peth

020) 26063721, 26134722, 26131368

170 Talegaon

171 Tilak Road

020) 24444257, 24448941, 24440565

172 Undri

020) 26909075/83

173 Vamnicom

020) 66221420

174 Viman Nagar

020) 26630226/27

(
(
(
(
(
(02114) 224004/5
(
(
(
(
(

175 Vishrantwadi 020) 26696172/73

176 Wagholi 8087001175

177 Wakad (020) 29705755/66

178 Warje Branch (020) 25215154/55
AHMEDNAGAR

179 MIDC (0241) 2777602/03

180 Savedi Road

(0241) 2341121/20
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No.
NAGPUR

181 Chhapru Nagar (0712) 2730266/60

182 Gandhibaug (0712) 2721769, 2722694, 2725157

183 Hingana Road (07104) 237022/26

184 Kalamana Market (0712) 2680325/544

185 Pratap Nagar (0712) 2243260/80

186 Wardha Road (0712) 2252903/04
AKOLA

187 Akola (0724) 2436611
AURANGABAD

188 CIDCO (0240) 2243006/07/020

189 Gajanan Maharaj Temple (0240) 2243012/13

190 Khadkeshwar (0240) 2243000/01/19

191 MGM, Medical College (0240) 2243008/030

192 MIT- Hospital (0240) 2243027/009

193 Station Road (0240) 2243011/31/10

194 TV Centre (0240) 2243028/29

195 Waluj (0240) 2243005/21
SOLAPUR

196 Solapur (0217) 2727225/26
RAIGAD

197 Alibaug Branch (02141) 225951-53

198 Mahad (02145) 223822/23

199 Panvel, M.C.C.H (022)27467944/45

200 Panvel, S. N. Road (022)27461161/64

201 Pen (02143) 255584/85

202 Roha 02194-232352/53

203 Ulwe 9833918247
JALGAON

204 Baliram Peth (0257) 2233613/14

205 Jalgaon (0257) 2234382/83
SATARA

206 Karad (02164) 225505/07

207 Satara (02162) 227355, 227455
NASHIK

208 CIDCO (0253) 2390432

209 Gangapur Road (0253) 2314538/39
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Sr. Name of the Branch
No.

Telephone Nos. (Land Lines)

210 Jail Road

0253) 2416430

211 Mahatma Nagar

0253) 2357461, 2360434

212 Main Road

213 Musalgaon

02551) 240752

214 Sharanpur

(
(
(0253) 2502220/21
(
(

0253) 2581293, 2317677,2314916

RATNAGIRI
215 Chiplun 02355) 257138, 255201
216 Lanja 02351) 230195/96

217 Lavel, Chiplun

218 Rajapur

02353) 232344/45

219 Ratnagiri

(
(
(02356) 262640
(
(

02352) 223690/91

SINDHUDURG
220 Devgad 02364) 261828/29
221 Kankavli - Rameshwar Plaza 02367) 230241/42
222  Kudal 02362) 221150/51
223 Malvan

224 Sawantwadi

02363) 274413/14

225 Vaibhavwadi

02367) 237585/6

226 Vengurla

(
(
(
(02365) 252114/45
(
(
(

02366) 262509/10, 262104

SANGLI

227 Mahavirnagar

0233) 2624267, 2622106

228 Shastri Chowk

0233) 2332294

229 Miraj Laxmi Market

0233) 2223138/151

230 Shivaji Nagar

0233) 2375899/90

~l~~l~| |~

231  Kupwad 0233) 2346878
232 Vita 02347) 276230
KOLHAPUR

233 Ichalkarnaiji

0230) 2432597

234 Mahapalika

0231) 2644208

235 Mangalwar Peth

236 New Shahupuri

0231) 2651753/54

237 Rajarampuri

(
(
(0231) 2621319
(
(

0231) 2521681/550, 2527012

GUJARAT

Ahmedabad

238 Anand Nagar

(079) 26769351/52

239 Bapu Nagar

(079) 22777754/55

240 C.G.Road

(079) 26401387/88, 26420313
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No.

241 Ghatlodia (079) 27402740/41

242  Isanpur (079) 25810004/5

243 Mani Nagar (079) 25461004/5

244 Naranpura (079) 27492958/3026
VADODARA

245 Karelibaug (0265) 2481299/49

246 Fatehganj (0265) 2750586/7

247 Manjalpur (0265) 2643506/7

248 Alkapuri (0265) 232900
SURAT

249 Adajan - Surat (0261) 2780168/186

250 Ring Road - Surat (0261) 2335230, 2335231

251 Surat (0261) 2552093/94, 2562090, 2552092
VAPI

252 Vapi (0260) 2425663-64
KARNATAKA
BELGAUM

253 Samadevi (0831) 2420433, 2436342

254  Tilakwadi (0831) 2468544/630
HUBLI

255 Hubli (0836) 2256015, 2356468
BENGALURU

256 Banashankari (080) 26763781, 26763815

257 Chamrajpeth (080) 26601213, 26600050

258 Gandhinagar (080) 22341151/2

259 Jayanagar (080) 26532275/6

260 Koramangala (080) 25502275, 25508876, 25502276

261 Malleshwaram (080) 23466656/7
DAVANGERE

262 Davangere (08192)233453, 233452
DHARWAD

263 Dharwad (0836)2443396
MANGALORE

264 Bhavanthi Street (0824) 2440636/7

265 Chilimbi (0824) 2452143/4

266 Kodialbail - M.G.Road (0824) 2495671/2
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MYSORE

267 Mysore (0821) 2542266, 2544666
TUMKUR

268 Tumkur (0816) 2277667/68
UDUPI

269 Udupi (0820) 2526010, 2529010
GOA

270 Bicholim (0832) 2360460

271 Curchorem - Sanvordem (0832) 2654044

272 Mapusa (0832) 2264064/268

273 Margaon (0832) 2732321, 2736114, 2732594

274 Panjim (0832) 2228023, 2425662/210

275 Ponda (0832) 2318556/726

276 Porvorim (0832) 2412502/03

277 SME - Goa (0832) 2437021/31/22

278 Sankhali, (Sanquelium) (0832) 2365677/8

279 Vasco (0832) 2515170, 2517732, 2515553
INDORE-MADHYA PRADESH

280 Annapurna Road (0731) 2473232

281 Shrivardhan Complex (RNT marg) (0731) 2528791-94/96
DELHI

282 Connaught Place (011) 23412100

283 Lajpat Nagar (011) 26422100
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awarded 'BEST DIGITAL BANK®

by the Frontiers in Co-operativ
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Saraswat Bank Recognized As

The Best in
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Security!

(in Co-operative Banks' category)
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Technology Awards 2021
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